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PART I

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardidimg statements within the meaning of Section 7A
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and Se2fiéof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aleénWe us
words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimdtémay,” “intends,” “expects” and similar expressis to identify
forward-looking statements. Discussions contairiorgzard-looking statements may be found in the malteet
forth under “Business,” “Management’s Discussiod &malysis of Financial Condition and Results ofe@gtion”
and in other sections of the report. All forwardhong statements are inherently uncertain as theypased on our
expectations and assumptions concerning futuretevAny or all of our forward-looking statementstlivis report
may turn out to be inaccurate. We have based fbesard-looking statements largely on our currexgestations
and projections about future events and finanoéds that we believe may affect our financial ¢tod, results of
operations, business strategy and financial nddusy may be affected by inaccurate assumptions igbtrmake o
by known or unknown risks and uncertainties, inolgdhe risks, uncertainties and assumptions destiin the
section entitled Item 1A and elsewhere in this rego light of these risks, uncertainties and aggtions, the
forward-looking events and circumstances discuss#us report may not occur as contemplated, andaotual
results could differ materially from those antidigd or implied by the forward-looking statementd.férward-
looking statements in this report are made asetltite hereof, based on information available tasusf the date
hereof, and we assume no obligation to update @myafd-looking statement.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

lululemon athletica inc. is a designer and retaifgiechnical athletic apparel operating primaiily
North America and Australia. Our yc-inspired apparel is marketed under the lululentbfetica brand name. We
believe consumers associate our brand with innexatéchnical apparel products. Our products aseggded to
offer performance, fit and comfort while incorpanat both function and style. Our heritage of contugn
performance and style distinctly positions us tdrads the needs of female athletes as well asvargya@ore of
consumers who desire everyday casual wear thansstent with their active lifestyles. We also tone to
broaden our product range to increasingly appeaidle athletes and athletic female youth. We affer
comprehensive line of apparel and accessoriesdimgifitness pants, shorts, tops and jackets dedifpr athletic
pursuits such as yoga, running and general fittesef January 30, 2011, our branded apparel wiasipally sold
through 137 stores that are located in Canadd/tiited States and Australia. We believe our velrtiegil strategy
allows us to interact more directly with, and geadback from, our customers while providing ushvgteater
control of our brand.

We have developed a distinctive community-basextegyly that we believe enhances our brand and reggo
our customer loyalty. The key elements of our styptare to:

« design and develop innovative athletic apptra combines performance with style and incoriasraeal-
time customer feedbac

« locate our stores in street locations, lifestenters and malls that position each lululentbfetica store as
an integral part of its communit

* create an inviting and educational store envirortrtieat encourages product trial and repeat viaitsl

* market on a grassroots level in each commuimtjuding through social media and influentiahéss
practitioners who embrace and create excitemeninarour brand

We were founded in 1998 by Dennis “Chip” WilsorMancouver, British Columbia. Noting the increasing
number of women participating in sports, and speadify yoga, Mr. Wilson developed lululemon athéetito addres
a void in the women'’s athletic apparel market. fichending principles established by Mr. Wilson driver
distinctive corporate culture with a mission of yicing people with the components to live a londperalthier and
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more fun life. Consistent with this mission, we pate a set of core values in our business, whiclude
developing the highest quality products, operatiity) integrity, leading a healthy balanced lifedaraining our
employees in self responsibility and goal settifigese core values attract passionate and motieatgpdbyees who
are driven to succeed and share our vision of &leg the world from mediocrity to greatness.” Waiéve the
energy and passion of our employees allow us toessfully execute on our business strategy, enhanacel
loyalty and create a distinctive connection with customers.

We believe our culture and community-based busiappsoach provides us with competitive advantalyas t
are responsible for our strong financial perfornear@ur net revenue has increased from $40.7 miifidiscal 2004
to $711.7 million in fiscal 2010, representing &btompound annual growth rate. Our net revenueasad from
$452.9 million in fiscal 2009 to $711.7 million fiscal 2010, representing a 57% increase. Duriscafi2010, our
comparable store sales growth was 37% and we egportome from operations of $180.4 million. Durfrsgal
2009, our comparable store sales growth was 9%waneported income from operations of $86.5 millibnfiscal
2010, our corporate-owned stores opened at leasyesr averaged sales of approximately $1,726qers foot,
compared to sales per square foot of approxim&kfy18 for fiscal 2009. We believe this is amonglilest in the
apparel retail sector.

Our Market

Our primary target customer is a sophisticatedexiutated woman who understands the importance of an
active, healthy lifestyle. She is increasingly &dkvith the dual responsibilities of career andiffaiand is
constantly challenged to balance her work, life hedlth. We believe she pursues exercise to acpieyscal
fitness and inner peace.

As women have continued to embrace a variety né$is and athletic activities, including yoga, wkelve
other athletic apparel companies are not effegtimedressing their unique style, fit and perforneaneeds. We
believe we have been able to help address thisindlte marketplace by incorporating style alonthveiomfort and
functionality into our products through our verticatail strategy. Although we were founded to &ddrthe unique
needs of women, we are also successfully desigmiogducts for men and athletic female youth who alspreciate
the technical rigor and premium quality of our prots. We also believe longer-term growth in atblearticipation
will be reinforced as the aging Baby Boomer genendiocuses more on longevity. In addition, we &ed consum
purchase decisions are driven by both an actual feedunctional products and a desire to cregtargicular
lifestyle perception. As such, we believe the diditly and authenticity of our brand expands outgmbial market
beyond just athletes to those who desire to leaattine, healthy, and balanced life.

Our Competitive Strengths
We believe the following strengths differentiatefiesn our competitors and are important to our sssc

« Premium Active Branc lululemon athletica stands for leading a healbafanced and fun life. We believe
customers associate the lululemon athletica bratidhigh quality premium athletic apparel that inparates
technically advanced materials, innovative funadeatures and style. We believe our focus on wome
differentiates us and positions lululemon athlet@address a void in the growing market for worsen’
athletic apparel. The premium nature of our braneinforced by our vertical retail strategy and selective
distribution through yoga studios and fitness cliitzg we believe are the most influential withie fitness
communities of their respective markets. While lotand has its roots in yoga, our products are asingly
being designed and used for other athletic andatdifestyle pursuits, such as running and genidrass.
We work with local athletes and fitness practitie® enhance our brand awareness and broademaaluct
appeal.

« Distinctive Retail Experienct We locate our stores in street locations, lifiestgnters and malls that
position lululemon athletica stores to be an iraégart of their communities. Our retail concepbésed on a
community-centric philosophy designed to offer ousérs an inviting and educational experience. We
believe that this environment encourages prodiadt purchases and repeat visits. We coach oue stes
associates, whom we refer to as “educators,” teldgva personal connection with each customer. Our
educators receive approximately 30 hours -house training within the first three months of sart of
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their employment and are well prepared to explaéntechnical and innovative design aspects df eac
product.

* Innovative Design Proces We offer high-quality premium apparel that isigeed for performance,
comfort, functionality and style. We attribute alnility to develop superior products to a numbefagtors,
including:

« our feedback-based design process throughhwhic design and product development team prodgtive
and frequently seeks input from our customers andllfitness practitioner:

« close collaboration with our third-party supps$ to formulate innovative and technically-adveshfabrics
and features for our products; ¢

« although we typically bring products from dgsio market in eight to 10 months, our verticéhile
strategy enables us to bring select products t&eham as little as two months, thereby allowingais
respond quickly to customer feedback, changing etar&nditions and apparel tren

« Community-Based Marketing ApproaciWe differentiate lululemon athletica through anadvative,
community-based approach to building brand awaseard customer loyalty. We use a multi-faceted
grassroots marketing strategy that includes sowélia, partnering with local fithess practitionarsl
creating instore community boards. Each of our stores hasl@ated community coordinator who organi
fitness or philanthropic events designed to heigliie image of our brand in the community. We helithis
grassroots approach allows us to successfully aserbrand awareness and broaden our appeal while
reinforcing our premium brand imag

* Deep Rooted Culture Centered on Training and Paak@nowth. We believe our core values and
distinctive corporate culture allow us to attraasgionate and motivated employees who are drivendcee
and share our vision. We provide our employees wisipportive, goal-oriented environment and erageir
them to reach their full professional, health aptspnal potential. We offer programs such as patson
development workshops and goal coaching to assistraployees in realizing their lorigrm objectives. W
believe our relationship with our employees is @tiomal and a key contributor to our succe

» Experienced Management Team with Proven Abiligg@ecute Our founder and Chief Innovation and
Branding Officer, Mr. Wilson, plays a key role inrporate innovation strategy and in promoting our
distinctive corporate culture. Our Chief Execut®#icer, Ms. Day, whose experience includes 20 yaar
Starbucks Corporation, most recently serving asiteat of Asia Pacific Group of Starbucks Interoadil
from 2004 to 2007, joined us in January 2008. Msy Bas assembled a management team with a
complementary mix of retail, design, operationgduoict sourcing, marketing and information technglog
experience from leading apparel and retail compasieh as Abercrombie & Fitch Co., The Gap, In&keN
Inc. and Speedo International Limited. We belieue management team is well positioned to execwge th
long-term growth strategy for our busine

Growth Strategy
Key elements of our growth strategy are to:

e Grow our Store Base in North Americas of January 30, 2011, our products were saiolidh
122 corporate-owned stores in North America, inclgdi4 in Canada and 78 in the United States. Vipfe&x
that most of our near-term store growth will occuthe United States. We plan to add new stores to
strengthen existing markets and selectively erger markets in the United States and Canada. Weedpen
net 12 stores in the United States and Canadadalf2010, including one franchised store that was
reacquired, and we plan to open approximately 227tadditional stores in fiscal 2011 in the Unigtdtes
and Canade

¢ Develop our Direct to Consumer Sales Chan We launched our retail website in the first geadf fiscal
2009. The addition of e-commert®our direct to consumer sales channel has alregggnded our custom
base and supplemented our growing store base. &ieglcontinue developing oe-commerce
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website to further reflect the distinctive reeiperience that our customers enjoy in our stotéke
providing greater shopping flexibility and to enbarour online experienc

* Increase our Brand Awarenes We will continue to increase brand awarenesscaistbmer loyalty through
our grassroots marketing efforts, social mediagladned store expansion. We believe that increlssut
awareness will result in increased comparable saless and store productivity over tin

« Introduce New Product Technologic We remain focused on developing and offering potsl that
incorporate technology-enhanced fabrics and pedaoa features that differentiate us in the market.
Collaborating with leading fabric manufacturers, ae jointly developed and trademarked names for
innovative fabrics such as Luon and Silverescemt,ratural stretch fabrics using organic elememtt s
cotton and seaweed. Among our ongoing efforts, mwelaveloping fabrics to provide advanced feataueh
as UV protection and inherent reflectivity. In ailuhi, we will continue to develop differentiated
manufacturing techniques that provide greater siuppmtection, and comfor

« Broaden the Appeal of our Produc We will selectively seek opportunities to expdie appeal of our
brand to improve store productivity and increaseauerall addressable market. To enhance our ptoduc
appeal, we intend tc

« Expand our Product Categorie We continue to expand our product offerings imptementary existing
and new categories such as bags, underwear armiveate

* Increase the Range of Athletic Activities our Praidurarget We expect customers increasingly to
purchase our products for activities such as yngaing and general fitness as we educate therheon t
versatility of our products and expand our produategories

« Expand Beyond North Americ As of January 30, 2011, we operated 11 corparatged stores and four
showrooms in Australia, and one corporate-ownedvsetom in Hong Kong. We plan to open 2 additional
lululemon stores in fiscal 2011 in Australia. Otiere, we intend to expand on our own or pursue
additional joint venture opportunities in other &siand European markets; ¢

« Grow our Men’s BusinessWe believe the premium quality and technical rigbour products will
continue to appeal to men and that there is anrtymity to expand our men’s business as a propoufo
our total sales

« Grow our Youth Brand.We launched our youth focused brand, ivivva &itde in the fourth quarter of fisc
2009. We believe the premium quality and techniicgr of our dance-inspired products designed éondle
youth serve an open market and provide us withpgrounity to expand this lin

Our Stores

As of January 30, 2011, our retail footprint inaddd44 stores in Canada, 82 stores in the UnitaesStiur of
which are franchise stores, and 11 stores in Alist\&hile most of our stores are branded lululeratiretica, two
of our corporate-owned stores are branded iviviieita and specialize in dance-inspired appareiimale youth.
Our retail stores are located primarily on streeations, in lifestyle centers and in malls.
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The following store list shows the number of brashdtores (including corporate-owned stores andcchize

Canada

Alberta

British Columbia
Manitoba

Nova Scotic
Ontario

Québec
Saskatchewa

Total Canada
United States

Arizona
California
Colorado
Connecticu
District of Columbis
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Illinois
Maryland
Massachusett
Michigan
Minnesota
Missouri
Nevada

New Jerse)
New York
Ohio

Oregon
Pennsylvani:
Tennesse
Texas
Virginia
Washingtor

Total United States
International

Australia

Total International
Overall total, as of January 30, 201:
Overall total, as of January 31, 2010

stores) operated in each Canadian province, Uag, sind internationally as of January 30, 2011:

Corporate-Owned Franchise Total
Stores Stores Stores
9 — 9
11 — 11
1 — 1

1 — 1
17 — 17
4 — 4

1 — 1
44 — 44
2 — 2
19 1 20
— 3 3
2 — 2

2 — 2

4 — 4

1 — 1

1 — 1

8 — 8

2 — 2

5 — 5

1 — 1

2 — 2

1 — 1

1 — 1

3 — 3

7 — 7

1 — 1

2 — 2

2 — 2

1 — 1

6 — 6

2 — 2

3 — 3
78 4 82
11 — 11
11 — 11
13z 4 137
11C 14 124
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Store Economic:

We believe that our innovative retail concept anst@mer experience contribute to the success oftoues.
During fiscal 2010 our corporate-owned stores agtdpast one year, which average approximately2sgjiare
feet, averaged sales of approximately $1,726 pesregfoot.

Management performs an ongoing evaluation of oufg@m of corporate-owned store locations. In &2010
we closed one corporate-owned ivivva athleticaestoBritish Columbia and one corporate-owned kiubn
athletica store in Australia. As we continue oualegtion we may in future periods close additicraporateewnec
store locations.

Store Expansion

From February 1, 2002 (when we had one store, imcWaver) to January 30, 2011, we opened 121 net
corporate-owned stores in North America. We opengdirst corporate-owned store in the United Stame2003.
Over the next few years, our new store growth léllprimarily focused on corporate-owned storefidn t
United States, an attractive market with a popoifatif over nine times that of Canada. We opened®stores in
the United States and Canada in fiscal 2010, imetudne franchised store that was reacquired.

Direct to Consumer

In fiscal 2009 we launched our e-commerce websitiehly along with phone sales, makes up our dicect t
consumer channel. Direct to consumer is an inangssubstantial part of our business, represergpgoximately
8% of our net revenue in fiscal 2010, comparedoot our net revenue in fiscal 2009. We believe thdirect to
consumer channel is convenient for our core cust@me enhances the image of our brand. Our diceobtisumer
channel makes our product accessible in more nmsathkah our corporate-owned store channel aloneustahis
channel to build brand awareness, especially inmewkets, including those outside of North America.

International Stores

Beyond North America, we intend to expand our glgasence as part of our long-term business glyaiwe
believe that partnering with companies and indigldwith significant experience and proven sucaedise target
country is to our advantage. As of January 30, 2@&lhad 11 corporate-owned stores and four shansan
Australia and one showroom in Hong Kong.

Wholesale Channel

We also sell lululemon athletica products througénum yoga studios, health clubs and fitness centéis
channel represented 2% of our net revenue in f&@AD and 2% of our net revenue in fiscal 2009.Baleve these
premium wholesale locations offer an alternativardiution channel that is convenient for our cosasumer and
enhances the image of our brand. We do not intdralesale to be a significant contributor to ovesales. Instead,
we use the channel to build brand awareness, edlyeninew markets.

Franchise Stores

As of January 30, 2011, we had four franchise storg¢he United States. In fiscal 2010 we reacalihe
franchise rights of nine Australia locations, whigh previously held an equity interest in, and 8askatchewan,
Canada location, thereby decreasing the net reveained through our franchise channel. This charepeésented
1% of our net revenue in fiscal 2010 and 3% ofrmtrrevenue in fiscal 2009. We began opening frigecstores in
select markets in 2002 to expand our store netwiile limiting required capital expenditures. Opemninew
franchise stores is not part of our near-term sgoosvth strategy. We continue to evaluate the tgttidi repurchase
attractive franchises, which, in some cases, wecoatractually acquire at a specified percentageailfing
12-month sales. Unless otherwise approved by udranchisees are required to sell only our brarmmteducts,
which are purchased from us at a discount to tiggested retail price.
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Our Products

We offer a comprehensive line of performance agzare accessories for women, men and female yQuih.
apparel assortment, including items such as fitpasss, shorts, tops and jackets, is designedefaittry lifestyle
activities such as yoga, running and general finahough we benefit from the growing number ebple that
participate in yoga, we believe the percentageuofpooducts sold for other activities will continteeincrease as we
broaden our product range to address other aesvi@ur fitnesselated accessories include an array of items ae
bags, socks, underwear, yoga mats, instructiorgd Y2VDs and water bottles.

We believe the authenticity of our products is drivoy a number of factors. These factors includeathlete-
inspired design process, our use of technical ni@ddéepur sophisticated manufacturing methods andrmovative
product features. Our athletic apparel is desigmmatimanufactured using cutting-edge fabrics desdigmeleliver
maximum function and athletic fit. We collaboratghateading fabric suppliers to develop advanceddits that we
sell under our trademarks. Our in-house design tearks closely with our suppliers to formulate fiabrthat meet
our performance and functional specifications saglstretch ability, capability to wick moisture)adfastness and
durability, among others. Advanced fabrics thatowerently incorporate in our products include:

e Luon, included in more than half of our products, wiekgay moisture, moves with the body and is designed
to eliminate irritation

« Luxtreme, our inherently wicking fabric is primarily used our running lines and is silky and
lightweight; anc

« Silverescenincorporates silver directly into the fabric to vee odors as a result of the antibacterial
properties of the silver in the fabr

Our design team continues to develop fabrics theabelieve will help advance our product line arftedentiate
us from the competition.

Our products are constructed with advanced seveicigniques, such as flat seaming, that increasearbanrfd
functionality by reducing skin irritation and stgthening important seams. Our apparel productsidgcinnovative
features to promote convenience, such as pocksigradal to hold credit cards, keys, digital audaypls and clips
for heart rate monitors.

Our Culture and Values

Since our inception, the Company has developedtmdiive corporate culture with a mission to pdsvpeoplt
with components to live a longer, healthier anderfon life. We promote a set of core values inlmusiness, whic
include developing the highest quality productgraging with integrity, leading a healthy balantiésiand
instilling in our employees a sense of self resfmlity and personal achievement. These core vadtiesv us to
attract passionate and motivated employees whdrasen to succeed and share our vision of “eleggtire world
from mediocrity to greatness.”

Community-Based Marketing

We differentiate our business through an innovatteenmunity-based approach to building brand awesgn
and customer loyalty. We pursue a multi-faceteatstyy which leverages our local ambassadors, soeéla, in-
store community boards and a variety of grassrindtiatives. Our ambassadors, who are local fitrgsstitioners,
share our core values and introduce our brandeio filness classes and communities leading taestdn the bran
store visits and word-of-mouth marketing. Our iarstcommunity boards further position our stores@amunity
destinations designed to educate and enrich otomass. Each of our stores has a dedicated comyncmatrdinato
who selectively organizes events that heightenntiage of our brand in the community. Each of ounownity
coordinators customizes a local marketing plarotu$ on the important athletic and philanthropiivéees within
each community.
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Product Design and Developmen

Our product design efforts are led by a team ofghess based in Vancouver, British Columbia partrgewith
international designers. Our team is comprisecedichted athletes and users of our products whaéynbur
design philosophy and dedication to premium quafityr design team identifies trends based on mamkatigence
and research, proactively seeks the input of oestpuand our ambassadors and broadly seeks iispicansistent
with our goals of style, function and technical sugrity. Our ambassadors have become an integrabp our
product design process as they test and evaluajgroducts, providing real-time feedback on perfance and
functionality. Our design team also hosts meetaash year in many of our markets. In these meetlogal
athletes, trainers, yogis and members of the ftiredustry discuss our products and provide us adititional
feedback and ideas. Members of our design teanredgdarly work at our stores, which gives themdpgeortunity
to interact with and receive direct feedback framesfs. Our design team incorporates all of thistitg adjust fit,
style, function and to detect new athletic trenald & identify desirable fabrics.

To ensure that we continue to provide our guesdtis fuinctional fabrics, our design team works clgseith our
suppliers to incorporate innovative fabrics thamgmparticular specifications to our products. Tehepecifications
include characteristics such as stretch abilitpabdity to wick moisture, color fastness and diligh among
others. In addition, to ensure the quality of abric and its authenticity, we test our producisgis leading testing
facility, as well as actual wear tests done onp@wtgntial fabric. We also partner with a leadindependent
inspection, verification, testing and certificatioompany, which conducts a battery of tests bedah season on
our fabrics, testing for a variety of performanbamacteristics including pilling, shrinkage, abossiesistance and
colorfastness. We collaborate with leading fabupiers to develop fabrics that we ultimately watdhrk for brand
recognition whenever possible.

We typically bring new products from design to metriq approximately eight to 10 months; however, ou
vertical retail structure enables us to bring getesv products to market in as little as two monte believe our
lead times are shorter than a typical apparel vefabde due to our streamlined design and developprecess as
well as the real-time input we receive from oursuimers and ambassadors through our corporate-ostoed
locations. Our process does not involve edits bgrinediaries, such as retail buyers or a saleg famd we believe
it incorporates a shorter sample process thandypjgparel wholesalers. This rapid turnaround tith@wvs us to
respond relatively quickly to trends or changingkeaconditions.

Sourcing and Manufacturing

We do not own or operate any manufacturing faesitinor do we contract directly with third-partynders for
fabrics and finished goods. The fabric used ingroducts is sourced by our manufacturers from @dimumber ¢
pre-approved suppliers. We work with a group ofragjmately 45 manufacturers, four of which produced
approximately 65% of our products in fiscal 201@riRg fiscal 2010, no single manufacturer producexte than
33% of our product offering. During fiscal 2010 papximately 60% of our products were produced ifn@h
approximately 26% in South/South East Asia, appnaxely 4% in Canada and the remainder in the UrStates,
Israel, Peru, Korea and Taiwan. Our North Americamufacturers provide us with the speed to mar&eeéssary t
respond quickly to changing trends and increasetadd. While we plan to support future growth thioug
manufacturers outside of North America, our inierélso to maintain production in Canada and thieddrStates
whenever possible. We have developed long-stanédiatjonships with a number of our vendors and taieat care
to ensure that they share our commitment to qualtity ethics. We do not, however, have any long-tggreements
requiring us to use any manufacturer, and no matwfar is required to produce our products in treglterm. We
require that all of our manufacturers adhere todeaf conduct regarding quality of manufacturiwgrking
conditions and other social concerns. We curreaidg work with a leading inspection and verificatiirm to
closely monitor each supplier’'s compliance withlaggble law and our workplace code of conduct.

Distribution Facilities

We centrally distribute finished products in No&merica from distribution facilities in VancouveBritish
Columbia and Sumner, Washington. We operate thigliiton facilities in Vancouver and Sumner, whinte
leased and are approximately 102,000 and 82,008rsdeet, respectively. We believe these modeiifitias
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enhance the efficiency of our operations. We belieur distribution infrastructure will be sufficieto accommoda
our expected store growth and expanded produdtindfe over the next several years. Merchandisgisally
shipped to our stores through third-party delivegyvices multiple times per week, providing thernthve steady
flow of new inventory.

Competition

Competition in the athletic apparel industry iswpipally on the basis of brand image and recogmitie well as
product quality, innovation, style, distributionchprice. We believe that we successfully compettherbasis of ot
premium brand image, our focus on women and otmieal product innovation. In addition, we beliewa vertica
retail distribution strategy differentiates us fromr competitors and allows us to more effectivaptrol our brand
image.

The market for athletic apparel is highly compeitilt includes increasing competition from eststidid
companies who are expanding their production andetiag of performance products, as well as froegérent nev
entrants to the market. We are in direct competitiith wholesalers and direct sellers of athletiparel, such as
Nike, Inc., adidas AG, which includes the adidad Beebok brands, and Under Armour, Inc. We alsopstienwith
retailers specifically focused on women'’s athlegiparel including The Gap, Inc. (including the Atal collection),
Lucy Activewear Inc., and bebe stores, inc. (inclgdhe BEBE SPORT collection).

Our Employees

As of January 30, 2011, we had 4,572 employeeshath 2,321 were employed in Canada, 2,021 were
employed in the United States, and 230 were emplayernationally. Of the 2,321 Canadian employé&es33
were employed in our corporate-owned stores, 5@ warployed in distribution, 110 were employed isige,
merchandise and production, and the remaining @8@mpned selling, general and administrative ariot
functions. Of the 2,021 employees in the UnitedeStal, 935 were employed in our corporate-owneeestand
showrooms, 44 were employed in distribution angh&4ormed selling, general and administration fioms. Of the
230 international employees, 183 were employedimidernational retail locations, 13 were employed
distribution, and 24 performed design, merchangisejuction, and administrative functions. Non®of
employees are currently covered by a collectivgdiaing agreement. We have had no latedated work stoppage
and we believe our relations with our employeesacellent.

Intellectual Property

We believe we own the material trademarks usedimection with the marketing, distribution and saf@ll of
our products in Canada, the United States anceimther countries in which our products are culyemtintended
to be either sold or manufactured. Our major traabninclude lululemon athletica & design, the latgsign
(WAVE design) and lululemon as a word mark. In #ddito the registrations in Canada and the Untades,
lululemon’s design and word mark are registereovier 66 other jurisdictions which cover over 114miies. We
own trademark registrations for names of severaloffabrics including Luon, Silverescent, VitaS8ayla, Boolu»
and Luxtreme.

Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

Our website address is www.lululemon.com. We previge access to various reports that we file vaith,
furnish to, the United States Securities and Exgha@ommission, or the SEC, through our websitspas as
reasonably practicable after they have been fitddmished. These reports include, but are noitdidhto, our
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omt10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any ainamts to
those reports. Our SEC reports can also be accdssejh the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Alsdlakle on
our website are printable versions of our Code wsiBess Conduct and Ethics and charters of thetAudi
Management Development and Compensation, and Néingrand Governance Committees of our Board of
Directors. Information on our website does not titute part of this annual report on Form 10-K ay ather report
we file or furnish with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves a hagrak of risk. You should carefully consider tlsisi
described below together with all of the other indation included or incorporated by reference irsth
Form 1(-K before making an investment decision. If angheffollowing risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition or results of operations coulthterially suffer. In that case, the trading prigieour commol
stock could decline, and you may lose all or pagaur investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

General economic conditions and volatility in theowdwide economy has adversely affected consumer
spending, which has negatively affected our resudfooperations and may continue to do so in thetftg.

Our operations and performance depend significamtlgconomic conditions, particularly those in Gimnand
the United States, and their impact on levels oSomer spending. Consumer spending on non-essi@tied is
affected by a number of factors, including consuowerfidence in the strength of economies, feargecdssion, the
tightening of credit markets, higher levels of umpdmyment, higher tax rates, the cost of consumeditand other
factors. The current volatility in the United Sgconomy in particular has resulted in an ovetalving in growth
in the retail sector because of decreased consspeeding, which may remain depressed for the feedde future.
These unfavorable economic conditions may contiodead our customers to delay or reduce purchisearo
products.

In addition, we could experience reduced traffioim stores and limitations on the prices we cargdh for our
products, which may include price discounts, eittfexhich could reduce our sales and profit margitonomic
factors such as those listed above and increaaegpiortation costs, inflation, higher costs of laliesurance and
healthcare, and changes in other laws and regnfatimy increase our cost of sales and our operasitigng,
general and administrative expenses. These andetbaomic factors could have a material adverseiabn the
demand for our products and on our financial caoiét, operating results and stock price.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and we hawgited operating experience at our current scale of
operations; if we are unable to manage our operatsoat our current size or to manage any future gribw
effectively, our brand image and financial performae may suffer.

We have expanded our operations rapidly sincermaption in 1998 and we have limited operating erpee
at our current size. We opened our first storeandla in 1999 and our first store in the UnitedeStan 2003. Our
net revenue increased from $40.7 million in fis2@04 to $711.7 million in fiscal 2010, representingompound
annual increase of approximately 61%. We expechetirevenue growth rate to slow as the numbeeof stores
that we open in the future declines relative tolauger store base. Our substantial growth to baseplaced a
significant strain on our management systems aswurees. If our operations continue to grow, ofchithere can
be no assurance, we will be required to continuexfrand our sales and marketing, product developareh
distribution functions, to upgrade our managemefarmation systems and other processes, and tinahtare
space for our expanding administrative support@hdr headquarters personnel. Our continued growaaid
increase the strain on our resources, and we @idrience serious operating difficulties, inclygdifficulties in
hiring, training and managing an increasing nuntdemployees, difficulties in obtaining sufficiersw materials
and manufacturing capacity to produce our prodaetd,delays in production and shipments. Thesgdifies
could result in the erosion of our brand image la@ad to a decrease in net revenue, income fromatipas and the
price of our common stock.

Any material disruption of our information systenould disrupt our business and reduce our sales.

We are increasingly dependent on information systeEnoperate our e-commengebsite, process transactio
respond to customer inquiries, manage inventorgchase, sell and ship goods on a timely basis aidtain cost-
efficient operations. Throughout the past few yparsupgraded certain of our information systemsuigport recel
and expected future growth. These system upgrag@®yed our ability to capture, process and shgiamer
orders, and transfer product between channelsndlered additional costs associated with theseadagrin fiscal
2010. We believe these systems are stable uporingitation, but there can be no assurance
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that future disruptions will not occur. We may esipace operational problems with our informatiosteyns as a
result of system failures, viruses, computer “hagker other causes. Any material disruption om&glown of our
systems, including a disruption or slowdown causgdur failure to successfully upgrade our systerosld cause
information, including data related to customeressg to be lost or delayed which could — especiéliye
disruption or slowdown occurred during the holidg@ason — result in delays in the delivery of mendmse to our
stores and customers or lost sales, which couldceedemand for our merchandise and cause ourtsatiesline.
Moreover, we may not be successful in developingoguiring technology that is competitive and resgixe to the
needs of our customers and might lack sufficiesbueces to make the necessary investments in teghynim
compete with our competitors. Accordingly, if chasdn technology cause our information systemstmine
obsolete, or if our information systems are ina@éguo handle our growth, we could lose customers.

Our direct to consumer channel, which includesmoerce, is an increasingly substantial part oftauginess,
representing approximately 8% of our revenuessicafi 2010. In addition to changing consumer prefese and
buying trends relating to e-commerce, we are valblerto certain additional risks and uncertaindiesociated with
e-commerce, including changes in required technyoloigrfaces, website downtime and other techrfeglires,
security breaches, and consumer privacy concemnsfalure to successfully respond to these risid ancertaintie
could reduce e-commerce sales and damage our brapmlitation.

We have taken over certain portions of our infoiorasystem needs that were previously outsourcedibird-
party and continue making upgrades to our inforomasiystems. We may take over other outsourcedopsrtf our
information systems in the near future. If we amahle to manage these aspects of our informatistesys or the
planned upgrades, our receipt and delivery of nardise could be disrupted, which could result deeline in our
sales.

Problems with our distribution system could harm ioability to meet customer expectations, managegntory,
complete sales and achieve objectives for operasfigiencies.

We rely on our distribution facilities in Vancouy@ritish Columbia and Sumner, Washington for sabgally
all of our product distribution. Our distributioadilities include computer controlled and automatgdipment,
which means their operations are complicated andbeasubject to a number of risks related to secoricompute
viruses, the proper operation of software and hardwelectronic or power interruptions or othettesysfailures. In
addition, because substantially all of our prodacesdistributed from two locations, our operationsld also be
interrupted by labor difficulties, or by floodstds or other natural disasters near our distributenters. If we
encounter problems with our distribution systenr, ahility to meet customer expectations, managernitry,
complete sales and achieve objectives for operafiiicjencies could be harmed.

We are subject to risks associated with leasingiletpace subject to long-term non-cancelable lems@d are
required to make substantial lease payments under aperating leases, and any failure to make thdsase
payments when due would likely harm our businesfitability and results of operations.

We do not own any of our store facilities, but @&t lease all of our corporate-owned stores ungerating
leases. Our leases generally have initial ternizetieen five and 10 years, and generally can endgt only in
five-year increments if at all. All of our leases requarfixed annual rent, and most require the paymkeadditiona
rent if store sales exceed a negotiated amountei@ly, our leases are “net” leases, which requér¢o pay all of
the cost of insurance, taxes, maintenance antiegil\We generally cannot cancel these leases atption.
Payments under these operating leases accounsigniéicant portion of our cost of goods sold. Esample, as of
January 30, 2011, we were a party to operatinggfeassociated with our corporate-owned stores bhasvether
corporate facilities requiring future minimum legs®yments aggregating $176.5 million through JanBar 2016
and approximately $72.5 million thereafter. We etfihat any new stores we open will also be le&seds under
operating leases, which will further increase goerating lease expenses.

Our substantial operating lease obligations coalklsignificant negative consequences, including:

« increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneoonic and industry condition

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financir
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e requiring a substantial portion of our avaiéabash to pay our rental obligations, thus redyiciash available
for other purpose:

« limiting our flexibility in planning for or racting to changes in our business or in the inglustwhich we
compete; an

* placing us at a disadvantage with respect to sdrmaracompetitors

We depend on cash flow from operations to pay easé expenses and to fulfill our other cash néedsr
business does not generate sufficient cash flom perating activities, and sufficient funds aré oiberwise
available to us from borrowings under our availatskdit facilities or from other sources, we may be able to
service our operating lease expenses, grow oundssi respond to competitive challenges or fundther
liquidity and capital needs, which would harm ousiness.

The cost of raw materials could increase our co$goods sold and cause our results of operationslan
financial condition to suffer.

The fabrics used by our suppliers and manufactumelsde synthetic fabrics whose raw materialsudel
petroleum-based products. Our products also inahadigral fibers, including cotton. Our costs fovnaaterials are
affected by, among other things, weather, conswaerand, speculation on the commodities marketelative
valuations and fluctuations of the currencies oidpicer versus consumer countries and other fatttatsare
generally unpredictable and beyond our control.és@mple, during 2010, cotton prices hit their leigtfHevels in
140 years. Increases in the cost of cotton caritri@shigher costs in the price we pay for our oatyarn and cotton-
based textiles. We are not always successful ireffarts to protect our business from the volatitf the market
price of cotton and other raw materials, and owiress can be adversely affected by dramatic mowesnire prices
of raw materials. The ultimate effect of this chamgn our earnings cannot be quantified, as theteffenovements
in raw materials prices on industry selling priees uncertain, but any dramatic increase in thesegpcould have
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations, financial condition and cash flows.

Increasing labor costs and other factors associateith the production of our products in China coulishcrease
the costs to produce our products.

During fiscal 2010, approximately 60% of our prothuwere produced in China. Given that the majaftgur
manufacturing is conducted by third-party manufeatsilocated in China, increases in the costshafrland other
costs of doing business in China could significairttrease our costs to produce our products anhil d@mve a
negative impact on our operations, revenues anmdreg. Factors that could negatively affect ouriess include a
potential significant revaluation of the Chineseayiuwhich may result in an increase in the cogtroflucing
products in China, labor shortage and increaskbr costs in China, and difficulties in movinggucts
manufactured in China out of Asia and through thespon the western coast of North America, whethuer to port
congestion, labor disputes, product regulationgaridspections or other factors, and natural désasor health
pandemics impacting China. Also, the impositiottrafle sanctions or other regulations against prtsdogorted b
us from, or the loss of “normal trade relationsdtss with, China, could significantly increase oast of products
imported into North America or Australia and haror business.

We may not be able to successfully open new stocations in a timely manner, if at all, which couldarm our
results of operations.

Our growth will largely depend on our ability toceessfully open and operate new stores. Our albdity
successfully open and operate new stores depenasion factors, including, among others, our abitity

« identify suitable store locations, the availabilitiywhich is outside of our contrc
* negotiate acceptable lease terms, including des#reght improvement allowance
« hire, train and retain store personnel and fieltag@ment

 assimilate new store personnel and field manageimenbur corporate cultur
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« source sufficient inventory levels; a
« successfully integrate new stores into our existipgrations and information technology syste

Successful new store openings may also be afféstedir ability to initiate our grassroots market&ffprts in
advance of opening our first store in a new manké.typically rely on our grassroots marketing gfdo build
awareness of our brand and demand for our prodQcitisgrassroots marketing efforts are often lengtig must be
tailored to each new market based on our emergidgnstanding of the market. Accordingly, there lbamo
assurance that we will be able to successfully @mgnt our grassroots marketing efforts in a pdetramarket in a
timely manner, if at all. Additionally, we may basuccessful in identifying new markets where ouhtécal
athletic apparel and other products and brand imaljjee accepted or the performance of our stavilisbe
considered successful. Further, we will encountergpening costs and we may encounter initial lngdgle new
stores commence operations.

We plan to open new stores in the near future tbtadur existing store base. Of the 137 storexparation as
of January 30, 2011, we opened 12 net new stodsiith America (including one franchise store tivas
reacquired) and 11 net new stores in Australid{ifing nine franchise stores that were reacquiiefiscal 2010. Ii
fiscal 2011, we expect to open a total of 20 t@d8itional lululemon stores and two ivivva storedNiorth America
as well as three additional lululemon stores intPalg. We estimate that we will incur approximst8L5.0 million
to $19.0 million of capital expenditures in fis@dl11 to open these 25 to 30 additional storesdtlitian, our new
stores may not be immediately profitable and we mayr losses until these stores become profitaiiere can be
no assurance that we will open the planned numbmeew stores in fiscal 2011. Any failure to sucdekg open anc
operate new stores will harm our results of opensti

If we fail to maintain the value and reputation afur brand, our sales are likely to decline.

Our success depends on the value and reputatitie ddilulemon brand. The lululemon name is integwadur
business as well as to the implementation of categgies for expanding our business. Maintainimgpmting and
positioning our brand will depend largely on theass of our marketing and merchandising effortsaam ability
to provide a consistent, high quality customer eigmee. We rely on social media, as one of our etarg
strategies, to have a positive impact on both oaind value and reputation. Our brand could be adhenffected if
we fail to achieve these objectives or if our palifhage or reputation were to be tarnished by megaublicity.
Any of these events could result in decreasesl@ssa

Our limited operating experience and limited bramdcognition in new markets may limit our expansion
strategy and cause our business and growth to suffe

Our future growth depends, to a considerable extanbur expansion efforts outside of Canada, éalhen
the United States. Our current operations are blasgdly in Canada and the United States. As ofidan30, 2011,
we had 44 corporate-owned stores in Canada, 82@igowned stores in the United States, incluébig
franchised stores, and 11 corporate-owned stor@sstralia. We have limited experience with regoigt
environments and market practices outside of Caaadahe United States, and cannot guarantee thatilbe
able to penetrate or successfully operate in anmkebautside of North America. As previously dis#d, we have
discontinued our operations in Japan. In connedatiitim our initial expansion efforts outside of NmAmerica, we
have encountered many obstacles we do not facanada or the United States, including cultural larglistic
differences, differences in regulatory environmelatisor practices and market practices, difficsliie keeping
abreast of market, business and technical develofsnaed foreign customers’ tastes and preferences.

We may also encounter difficulty expanding into nearkets because of limited brand recognition leg.to
delayed acceptance of our technical athletic appgreustomers in these new markets. In particul@rhave no
assurance that our grassroots marketing effortgwalve successful outside of the geographic reginrwhich they
have been used in the United States and Canadantégate that as our business expands into nekatsaand as
the market becomes increasingly competitive, maiimtg and enhancing our brand may become increbsing
difficult and expensive. Conversely, as we penettiaése markets and our brand becomes more widailahle, it
could potentially detract from the appeal stemnfiogn the scarcity of our brand. Our brand may &ls@dversely
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affected if our public image or reputation is tatveéd by negative publicity. Maintaining and enhagaur brand
will depend largely on our ability to be a leadethe athletic apparel industry, to offer a unigtere experience to
our customers and to continue to provide high ¢palioducts and services, which we may not do sssfady.
Failure to develop new markets outside of North Aozeor disappointing growth outside of North Aneariwill
harm our business and results of operations. litiaddif we are unable to maintain or enhance lmand image ot
results of operations may suffer and our businesg Ine harmed.

Our ability to attract customers to our stores depls heavily on successfully locating our storessinitable
locations and any impairment of a store locatiomciuding any decrease in customer traffic, coulduse our
sales to be less than expected.

Our approach to identifying locations for our sttgpically favors street locations, lifestyle aenstand malls
where we can be a part of the community. As a tesuf stores are typically located near retaitgrtness
facilities that we believe are consistent with oustomerslifestyle choices. Sales at these stores are dEringart
from the volume of foot traffic in these locatio&tore locations may become unsuitable due topandales
volume and customer traffic generally may be harimgdamong other things:

« economic downturns in a particular ar

« competition from nearby retailers selling athletiparel,

» changing consumer demographics in a particular etg

« changing lifestyle choices of consumers in a paldicmarket; ant

« the closing or decline in popularity of other biesises located near our stc

Changes in areas around our store locations thalt i@ reductions in customer foot traffic or athése render
the locations unsuitable could cause our sales feds than expected.

We operate in a highly competitive market and theesand resources of some of our competitors mdgval
them to compete more effectively than we can, réaglin a loss of our market share and a decreaseour net
revenue and profitability.

The market for technical athletic apparel is higttynpetitive. Competition may result in pricing gsares,
reduced profit margins or lost market share oilarfato grow our market share, any of which cosutbstantially
harm our business and results of operations. Wepetadirectly against wholesalers and direct extsibf athletic
apparel, including large, diversified apparel compa with substantial market share and establisbetpanies
expanding their production and marketing of techhathletic apparel, as well as against retailpexiically
focused on women'’s athletic apparel. We also facepetition from wholesalers and direct retailersradlitional
commodity athletic apparel, such as cotton T-slind sweatshirts. Many of our competitors are lagggarel and
sporting goods companies with strong worldwide breetognition, such as The Gap, Inc., which inciuithe
Athleta brand, Nike, Inc. and adidas AG, which init#s the adidas and Reebok brands. Because ohtmdnted
nature of the industry, we also compete with otigrarel sellers, including those specializing igyyapparel. Mar
of our competitors have significant competitive atages, including longer operating histories,daand broader
customer bases, more established relationshipsakitibader set of suppliers, greater brand redogréind greater
financial, research and development, store devedopnmarketing, distribution and other resources tive do. In
addition, our technical athletic apparel is sold @remium to traditional athletic apparel.

Our competitors may be able to achieve and maitaind awareness and market share more quickly and
effectively than we can. In contrast to our “grasgs” marketing approach, many of our competitomsnwte their
brands primarily through traditional forms of acigng, such as print media and television comna¢sciand
through celebrity athlete endorsements, and havstantial resources to devote to such efforts.d@opetitors ma
also create and maintain brand awareness usinigjdread forms of advertising more quickly in new rkats than w
can. Our competitors may also be able to increalss & their new and existing markets faster tharo by
emphasizing different distribution channels thandeesuch as catalog sales or an extensive franackeisvork,
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as opposed to distribution through retail stordsylesale or internet, and many of our competitargehsubstantial
resources to devote toward increasing sales in\sags.

In addition, because we own no patents or exclusteiectual property rights in the technologyhrias or
processes underlying our products, our currentiaiude competitors are able to manufacture andosetucts with
performance characteristics, fabrication techniqures styling similar to our products.

Our inability to maintain recent levels of comparbbstore sales or average sales per square footccoause
our stock price to decline.

We may not be able to maintain the levels of comipiarstore sales that we have experienced histigrita
addition, we may not be able to replicate outsidearth America our historic average sales per sgti@ot. Our
sales per square foot in stores we have openeslwmmarkets, which have primarily been in the Unitdtes, have
generally been lower than those we have been alalehieve in Canada. As sales in new markets grdvecome a
larger percentage of our overall sales, our avesatgs per square foot will likely decline. The eeggte results of
operations of our stores have fluctuated in th¢ @ad can be expected to continue to fluctuatberfuture. For
example, over the past three fiscal years, our evaigpe store sales have ranged from a decrea®®ofr2the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 to an increase of 3@%hme fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. A varietyfattors affect bot
comparable store sales and average sales per $qagracluding foreign exchange fluctuations,Has trends,
competition, current economic conditions, pricimilation, the timing of the release of new meratliae and
promotional events, changes in our merchandise tméxsuccess of marketing programs and weatheiiteomsd
These factors may cause our comparable storereslgiés to be materially lower than recent periadd our
expectations, which could harm our results of ofp@na and result in a decline in the price of ommenon stock.

Our net sales are affected by direct to consumdesa

We sell merchandise over the Internet through exoramerce website www.lululemon.cor®ur
e-commerce operations, included in our direct tasaoner channel, are subject to numerous risksjdimgl reliance
on third party computer hardware and software d#@ihnological change, diversion of sales fromstares,
liability for online content, violations of state federal laws, including those relating to onlprévacy, credit card
fraud, risks related to the failure of the compusgstems that operate our websites and their cefatpport systems,
including computer viruses, telecommunicationsufai$ and electronic breaks and similar disruptions. There is
assurance that our e-commerce operations will goatio achieve sales and profitability growth.

Failure to comply with trade and other regulatiorould lead to investigations or actions by governme
regulators and negative publicity.

The labeling, distribution, importation and saleoaf products are subject to extensive regulationarious
federal agencies, including the Federal Trade Casion, or the FTC, state attorneys general in tise, the
Competition Bureau and Health Canada in Canadaesw by various other federal, state, provindadal and
international regulatory authorities in the cousdrin which our products are distributed or sdigvd fail to comply
with those regulations, we could become subjestgnificant penalties or claims, which could harar esults of
operations or our ability to conduct our businéssddition, the adoption of new regulations orraes in the
interpretation of existing regulations may resnlsignificant compliance costs or discontinuatiépmduct sales
and could impair the marketing of our productsultasg in significant loss of net sales.

In addition, our failure to comply with FTC or stategulations, or with regulations in foreign maskinat cove
our product claims and advertising, including dirdaims and advertising by us, could result inoecément action
and imposition of penalties or otherwise harm tis¢ritution and sale of our products.
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Our plans to improve and expand our product offege may not be successful, and implementation ofst
plans may divert our operational, managerial andrathistrative resources, which could harm our comjiete
position and reduce our net revenue and profitahyjli

In addition to our store expansion strategy, we ptagrow our business by improving and expanding o
product offerings, which includes introducing nemguct technologies, increasing the range of athéetivities ou
products target, growing our men’s and female yuisinesses and expanding our accessories, undeanega
outerwear offerings. The principal risks to ourliépto successfully carry out our plans to imprared expand our
product offering are that:

« introduction of new products may be delaydidyang our competitors to introduce similar protan a
more timely fashion, which could hurt our goal ®o\iewed as a leader in technical athletic apparel
innovation;

« if our expanded product offerings fail to main and enhance our distinctive brand identity,lmand image
could be diminished and our sales may decre

« implementation of these plans could divert eggment’s attention from other aspects of our lmssimand
place a strain on our management, operationalianddial resources, as well as our informationesyst an

« incorporation of novel technologies into ovogucts that are not accepted by our customeisabiare
inferior to similar products offered by our compeits.

In addition, our ability to successfully carry autr plans to improve and expand our product oftgricould be
affected by economic and competitive conditiongnges in consumer spending patterns and changessamer
athletic preferences and style trends. These mglamisl be abandoned, could cost more than anticpatd could
divert resources from other areas of our busirass of which could impact our competitive positiemd reduce our
net revenue and profitability.

We rely on third-party suppliers to provide fabriésr and to produce our products, and we have liedtcontrol
over them and may not be able to obtain quality gucts on a timely basis or in sufficient quantity.

We do not manufacture our products or the raw rasefor them and rely instead on third-party signsl
Many of the specialty fabrics used in our prodaetstechnically advanced textile products develapet!
manufactured by third parties and may be availablthe short-term, from only one or a very limitegmber of
sources. For example, Luon fabric, which is incthdemany of our products, is supplied to the mills use by a
single manufacturer in Taiwan, and the fibers usedanufacturing Luon fabric are supplied to ounilanese
manufacturer by a single company. In fiscal 20 ppraximately 69% of our products were produced toytop five
manufacturing suppliers.

If we experience significant increased demand eadrto replace an existing manufacturer, therebeam
assurance that additional supplies of fabrics wrmaaterials or additional manufacturing capacitit e available
when required on terms that are acceptable torwa,all, or that any supplier or manufacturer wioallocate
sufficient capacity to us in order to meet our iegments or fill our orders in a timely manner. BvEwe are able t
expand existing or find new manufacturing or falseeirces, we may encounter delays in productioreddéd cos!
as a result of the time it takes to train our sigppland manufacturers in our methods, productgjaatity control
standards. Delays related to supplier changes @sitdarise due to an increase in shipping timaswf suppliers
are located farther away from our markets or frahepparticipants in our supply chain. Any delagpsgrruption or
increased costs in the supply of fabric or manuf&cbf our products could have an adverse effectusrability to
meet customer demand for our products and resldinar net revenue and income from operations bothe short
and long-term.

There can be no assurance that our suppliers andfacdurers will continue to provide fabrics andira
materials or manufacture products that comply withtechnical specifications and are consistert witr
standards. We have occasionally received, and mtheifuture continue to receive, shipments of potsl that fail
to comply with our technical specifications or tffeit to conform to our quality control standarttsthat event,
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unless we are able to obtain replacement prodncigimely manner, we risk the loss of net reverasellting from
the inability to sell those products and relatedtéased administrative and shipping costs.

Additionally, if defects in the manufacture of quoducts are not discovered until after such prtslace
purchased by our customers, our customers coudddasfidence in the technical attributes of ourdpieis and our
results of operations could suffer and our busicestd be harmed.

We do not have long-term contracts with our suppsieand accordingly could face significant disruptis in
supply from our current sources.

We generally do not enter into long-term formaltten agreements with our suppliers, including tHfose
Luon, and typically transact business with our $igppon an order-by-order basis. There can bessorance that
there will not be a significant disruption in thepply of fabrics or raw materials from current smg or, in the evel
of a disruption, that we would be able to locateraktive suppliers of materials of comparable igpat an
acceptable price, or at all. Identifying a suitadlgplier is an involved process that requireusetome satisfied
with their quality control, responsiveness and erinancial stability and labor and other ethjmactices. Any
delays, interruption or increased costs in the gugifabric or manufacture of our products arisfmgm a lack of
long-term contracts could have an adverse effectusrability to meet customer demand for our prasland result
in lower net revenue and income from operationk bothe short and long-term. Similarly, there canassurance
that the suppliers of our fabrics, such as Luoti,ivait sell the same fabric to our competitors.

We do not have patents or exclusive intellectuabperty rights in our fabrics and manufacturing tectology. If
our competitors sell similar products to ours, onet revenue and profitability could suffer.

The intellectual property rights in the technolofarics and processes used to manufacture ouupi®dre
owned or controlled by our suppliers and are gdiyemat unique to us. Our ability to obtain intedteal property
protection for our products is therefore limitedlame currently own no patents or exclusive inteéllat property
rights in the technology, fabrics or processes tiyithg) our products. As a result, our current antlife competitors
are able to manufacture and sell products withgoeréince characteristics, fabrics and styling simdaour
products. Because many of our competitors, sudthasGap, Inc., which includes the Athleta brankd\inc. and
adidas AG, which includes the adidas and Reebakdstehave significantly greater financial, disttibn, marketing
and other resources than we do, they may be abhabwufacture and sell products based on our fabrids
manufacturing technology at lower prices than we ¢aour competitors do sell similar products tor®at lower
prices, our net revenue and profitability couldfeuf

Our future success is substantially dependent oa ttontinued service of our senior management.

Our future success is substantially dependent @cdhtinued service of our senior management. d$ge df the
services of our senior management could make ierdificult to successfully operate our business achieve our
business goals.

We also may be unable to retain existing manageresiinical, sales and client support personnéldie
critical to our success, which could result in haonour customer and employee relationships, l6&sp
information, expertise or know-how and unanticipatecruitment and training costs.

We do not maintain a key person life insurancegyatin Mr. Wilson, Ms. Day or any of the other memsbef
our senior management team. As a result, we waaNé ho way to cover the financial loss if we weréose the
services of members of our senior management team.

Our operating results are subject to seasonal anthderly variations in our net revenue and incomsom
operations, which could cause the price of our commstock to decline.

We have experienced, and expect to continue torexqme, significant seasonal variations in ourregenue
and income from operations. Seasonal variatiomsiimet revenue are primarily related to increassdes of our
products during our fourth fiscal quarter, reflagtiour historical strength in sales during the dafiseason. We
generated approximately 36%, 39% and 29% of oliy&dr gross profit during the fourth quartersie€él 2010,
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fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively. Histalli, seasonal variations in our income from operet have been
driven principally by increased net revenue in fowrth fiscal quarter.

Our quarterly results of operations may also flatguwsignificantly as a result of a variety of otfeators,
including, among other things, the following:

« the timing of new store opening

* net revenue and profits contributed by new stc

* increases or decreases in comparable store

* increases or decreases in e-commercesales;

« changes in our product mix; a

« the timing of new advertising and new product idtrctions.

As a result of these seasonal and quarterly fltictus, we believe that comparisons of our operatasylts
between different quarters within a single fisoahyare not necessarily meaningful and that thesgparisons
cannot be relied upon as indicators of our futledgrmance.

Any future seasonal or quarterly fluctuations im msults of operations may not match the expextatof
market analysts and investors. Disappointing qdsrtesults could cause the price of our commoaglsto decline.
Seasonal or quarterly factors in our business asualts of operations may also make it more diffibml market
analysts and investors to assess the longer-tesfitgility and strength of our business at anytipatar point,
which could lead to increased volatility in ourckqrice. Increased volatility could cause our ktpiice to suffer it
comparison to less volatile investments.

If we are unable to accurately forecast customenu#End for our products our manufacturers may not béle
to deliver products to meet our requirements, ahéstcould result in delays in the shipment of procis to our
stores and may harm our results of operations angtomer relationships.

We stock our stores based on our estimates ofdfutemand for particular products. If our inventangd
planning team fails to accurately forecast custodesnand, we may experience excess inventory lewelshortag
of products available for sale in our stores. Thezne be no assurance that we will be able to sefidgsmanage ot
inventory at a level appropriate for future customhemand.

Inventory levels in excess of customer demand reaylt in inventory write-downs or write-offs anckthale of
excess inventory at discounted prices, which wealagse our gross margin to suffer and could impba&irstrength
and exclusivity of our brand. We wrote-off $1.0 lioih, $0.8 million and $0.9 million of inventory iftlscal 2010,
fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively. In additif we underestimate customer demand for oadpets, our
manufacturers may not be able to deliver productaeet our requirements, and this could resulelays in the
shipment of products to our stores and may damageeputation and customer relationships. Therebeano
assurance that we will be able to successfully marmear inventory at a level appropriate for futaustomer
demand.

Our current and future joint ventures may not be stessful.

As part of our long-term growth strategy, we plarexpand our stores and sales of our productsio
locations outside North America. Our successfulbegion and operation of new stores outside Nortler#ea may
depend on our ability to find suitable partners emduccessfully implement and manage joint venteli@ionships.
If we are able to find a joint venture partner ispeecific geographic area, there can be no guardhéd such a
relationship will be successful. Such a relatiopsifien creates additional risk. For example, artrers in joint
venture relationships may have interests thatrdiffen ours or that conflict with ours, such as tineing of new
store openings and the pricing of our product®uwrpartners may become bankrupt which may asaipahmatte!
subject us to such partners’ liabilities in coni@twith the joint venture. In addition, joint vemés can magnify
several other risks for us, including the poteritigb of control over our cultural identity in thearkets where we
enter into joint ventures and the possibility tbat brand image could be impaired by the actionsuof
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partners. Although we generally will seek to maimtgufficient control of any investment to permitrabjectives to
be achieved, we might not be able to take actighomt the approval of our partners. Reliance ontjeénture
relationships and our partners exposes us to isedeask that our joint ventures will not be sustelsand will
result in competitive harm to our brand image ttmatld cause our expansion efforts, profitabilityl aasults of
operations to suffer.

If our independent manufacturers fail to use ethichusiness practices and comply with applicable taand
regulations, our brand image could be harmed duentegative publicity.

Our core values, which include developing the higlygiality products while operating with integrigre an
important component of our brand image, which makeseputation particularly sensitive to allegatmf
unethical business practices. While our interndl\aandor operating guidelines promote ethical lessmractices
such as environmental responsibility, fair wagecpicas, and compliance with child labor laws, amotigers, and
we, along with a third-party that we retain forstipurpose, monitor compliance with those guidelimesdo not
control our independent manufacturers or theirfess practices. Accordingly, we cannot guaranteie th
compliance with our guidelines. A lack of demongdacompliance could lead us to seek alternatipplgers,
which could increase our costs and result in delaladivery of our products, product shortages beptlisruptions
of our operations.

Violation of labor or other laws by our independergnufacturers or the divergence of an independent
manufacturer’s labor or other practices from thgseerally accepted as ethical in Canada, the Uitatés or other
markets in which we do business could also attragative publicity for us and our brand. This codilchinish the
value of our brand image and reduce demand formmurchandise if, as a result of such violation, vezento attract
negative publicity. Other apparel manufacturersshavcountered significant problems in this regandi these
problems have resulted in organized boycotts af fireducts and significant adverse publicity. & vor other
manufacturers in our industry, encounter similabpems in the future, it could harm our brand imageck price
and results of operations.

Monitoring compliance by independent manufactuieomplicated by the fact that expectations oicath
business practices continually evolve, may be sulbistly more demanding than applicable legal resjaents and
are driven in part by legal developments and bgidig groups active in publicizing and organizinpljguresponses
to perceived ethical shortcomings. Accordingly,aa@not predict how such expectations might devigldpe future
and cannot be certain that our guidelines woulidfyadll parties who are active in monitoring angbficizing
perceived shortcomings in labor and other busipesstices worldwide.

Because a significant portion of our sales are geated in Canada, fluctuations in foreign currencyxehange
rates have negatively affected our results of ofg@mas and may continue to do so in the future.

The reporting currency for our consolidated finahstatements is the U.S. dollar. In the future ewgect to
continue to derive a significant portion of our netenue and incur a significant portion of ourragtieg costs in
Canada, and changes in exchange rates betweeitiagli@n dollar and the U.S. dollar may have a Bagmt, and
potentially adverse, effect on our results of opens. A portion of our net revenue is generatedustralia. Our
primary risk of loss regarding foreign currency lexcge rate risk is caused by fluctuations in tteharge rates
between the U.S. dollar, Canadian dollar and Aliatralollar. Because we recognize net revenue Bales in
Canada in Canadian dollars, if the Canadian daliskens against the U.S. dollar it would have atiegimpact
on our Canadian operating results upon translatidhose results into U.S. dollars for the purpasfesonsolidatior
The exchange rate of the Canadian dollar agaiest/tB. dollar has increased over fiscal 2010 amdeasults of
operations have benefited from the strength inGtheadian dollar. If the Canadian dollar were to keearelative to
the U.S. dollar, our net revenue would decline amdincome from operations and net income coulddersely
affected. A 10% depreciation in the relative vadfithe Canadian dollar compared to the U.S. doWawld have
resulted in lost income from operations of appraatety $11.3 million in fiscal 2010 and approximgtel
$11.2 million in fiscal 2009. A 10% depreciationtire relative value of the Australian dollar cormgghto the
U.S. dollar would have resulted in lost income froperations of approximately $0.1 million in fis@9110. We
have not historically engaged in hedging transastiand do not currently contemplate engaging iryimed
transactions to mitigate foreign exchange riskswa&scontinue to recognize gains and losses indareurrency
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transactions, depending upon changes in futuregayrrates, such gains or losses could have disat, and
potentially adverse, effect on our results of opens.

The operations of many of our suppliers are subjéatadditional risks that are beyond our control drihat
could harm our business, financial condition and selts of operations.

Almost all of our suppliers are located outside thted States. During fiscal 2010, approximately df our
products were produced in Canada, approximately ®0@hina, approximately 26% in South and Southt Baga
and the remainder in the United States, Israelj Bed Taiwan. As a result of our international digpp, we are
subject to risks associated with doing businessaahrincluding:

« political unrest, terrorism, labor disputesi@tonomic instability resulting in the disruptiohtrade from
foreign countries in which our products are mantufised;

« the imposition of new laws and regulationgjuding those relating to labor conditions, quatityd safety
standards, imports, duties, taxes and other cham@nports, as well as trade restrictions andimsns on
currency exchange or the transfer of fur

« reduced protection for intellectual propetights, including trademark protection, in some daes,
particularly China

« disruptions or delays in shipments; ¢

¢ changes in local economic conditions in caestwhere our manufacturers, suppliers or custoamers
located.

These and other factors beyond our control couktinpt our suppliers’ production in offshore féls,
influence the ability of our suppliers to export guoducts cost-effectively or at all and inhibitrsuppliers’ ability
to procure certain materials, any of which couldchihaur business, financial condition and resultspdrations.

Our ability to source our merchandise profitably @t all could be hurt if new trade restrictions aimposed or
existing trade restrictions become more burdensome.

The United States and the countries in which oadpcts are produced or sold internationally haveoised
and may impose additional quotas, duties, tarffsither restrictions or regulations, or may adegradjust
prevailing quota, duty or tariff levels. For examplinder the provisions of the World Trade Orgaiona or the
WTO, Agreement on Textiles and Clothing, effectageof January 1, 2005, the United States and btTed
member countries eliminated quotas on textilesapmhrel-related products from WTO member countiie2005,
China’s exports into the United States surgedrasalt of the eliminated quotas. In response tq#reeived
disruption of the market, the United States impasea quotas, which remained in place through tltea$r2008, ol
certain categories of natural-fiber products thatimport from China. These quotas were lifted aruday 1, 2009,
but we have expanded our relationships with suppbeatside of China, which among other things leaslted in
increased costs and shipping times for some predGctuntries impose, modify and remove tariffs atiekr trade
restrictions in response to a diverse array obfactincluding global and national economic andtjgall conditions,
which make it impossible for us to predict futumvdlopments regarding tariffs and other trade ic&tns. Trade
restrictions, including tariffs, quotas, embargaageguards and customs restrictions, could inerdaescost or
reduce the supply of products available to us oy require us to modify our supply chain organizatoy other
current business practices, any of which could hammbusiness, financial condition and resultspdrations.

We may be subject to potential challenges relatingvertime pay and other regulations that impactro
employees, which could cause our business, finahc@ndition, results of operations or cash flows $offer.

Various labor laws, including U.S. federal, U.Sitstand Canadian provincial laws, among otherseigoour
relationship with our employees and affect our apirg costs. These laws include minimum wage reqguénts,
overtime pay, unemployment tax rates, workers’ cemgation rates and citizenship requirements. Tlaege
change frequently and may be difficult to inter@atl apply. In particular, as a retailer, we magligiect to
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challenges regarding the application of overtime @alated pay regulations to our employees. A dateation that
we do not comply with these laws could harm ountrenage, business, financial condition and refltgperation
Additional government-imposed increases in minimuages, overtime pay, paid leaves of absence or atathd
health benefits could also cause our businesq)diabcondition, results of operations or cash 8aw suffer.

Our franchisees may take actions that could harmrdausiness or brand, and franchise regulations and
contracts limit our ability to terminate or replacender-performing franchises.

As of January 30, 2011, we had four franchise stor¢he United States. Franchisees are indepeidsitiess
operators and are not our employees, and we dexeotise control over the day-to-day operationtheir retail
stores. We provide training and support to fraredss and set and monitor operational standardshéwfuality of
franchise store operations may decline due to dévéactors beyond our control. For example, fraseds may not
successfully operate stores in a manner consigfiémbur standards and requirements, or may netdmd train
qualified employees, which could harm their saled as a result harm our results of operations aseaur brand
image to suffer.

Franchisees, as independent business operatordranagime to time disagree with us and our strieg
regarding the business or our interpretation ofreapective rights and obligations under applicétalechise
agreements. This may lead to disputes with ourcfreees, and we expect such disputes to occurtfroento time,
such as the collection of royalty payments or othatters related to the franchisee’s successfuitipa of the
retail store. Such disputes could divert the aitbandf our management and our franchisees fronoperations,
which could cause our business, financial condjtiesults of operations or cash flows to suffer.

In addition, as a franchisor, we are subject todtigan, U.S. federal, U.S. state and internaticanaslregulating
the offer and sale of franchises. These laws impegistration and extensive disclosure requirementshe offer
and sale of franchises, frequently apply substargtandards to the relationship between franchisdrfranchisee
and limit the ability of a franchisor to terminaterefuse to renew a franchise. We may therefonegqeired to
retain an under-performing franchise and may bélenta replace the franchisee, which could harmresults of
operations. We cannot predict the nature and effieahy future legislation or regulation on ounfchise operation

Ouir failure or inability to protect our intellectubproperty rights could diminish the value of ourénd and
weaken our competitive position.

We currently rely on a combination of copyrighidemark, trade dress and unfair competition lawsyell as
confidentiality procedures and licensing arrangesigo establish and protect our intellectual propeghts. We
cannot assure you that the steps taken by us tegbraur intellectual property rights will be adatgito prevent
infringement of such rights by others, includingtation of our products and misappropriation of braind. In
addition, intellectual property protection may bewailable or limited in some foreign countries wehkaws or law
enforcement practices may not protect our intali@cproperty rights as fully as in the United Ssade Canada, and
it may be more difficult for us to successfully tbage the use of our intellectual property rigbysother parties in
these countries. If we fail to protect and maintaim intellectual property rights, the value of @and could be
diminished and our competitive position may suffer.

Our trademarks and other proprietary rights couldfentially conflict with the rights of others and evmay be
prevented from selling some of our products.

Our success depends in large part on our brand ena@/e believe that our trademarks and other progmyet
rights have significant value and are importantemntifying and differentiating our products frohose of our
competitors and creating and sustaining demanduoproducts. We have obtained and applied for some
United States and foreign trademark registratians, will continue to evaluate the registration ddliéional
trademarks as appropriate. However, we cannot gtesgdhat any of our pending trademark applicatioiishe
approved by the applicable governmental authoriNesreover, even if the applications are approvieitd parties
may seek to oppose or otherwise challenge thesstnagons. Additionally, we cannot assure you thiagtacles
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will not arise as we expand our product line arelghographic scope of our sales and marketingd Hairties may
assert intellectual property claims against usti@darly as we expand our business and the numiygroducts we
offer. Our defense of any claim, regardless ofrigit, could be expensive and time consuming amdtodivert
management resources. Successful infringement €lagainst us could result in significant monetaiyility or
prevent us from selling some of our products. Iditoh, resolution of claims may require us to r&ida our
products, license rights from third parties or eeasing those rights altogether. Any of these eveatild harm our
business and cause our results of operationsdliguand financial condition to suffer.

Failure to maintain adequate financial and managemieprocesses and controls could lead to errors i o
financial reporting, which could harm our businesand cause a decline in our stock price.

Ongoing reporting obligations as a public compamy eur continued growth are likely to place a cdesible
strain on our financial and management systemsggses and controls, as well as on our persommatidition, as
public company we are required to document andot@sinternal controls over financial reporting guant to
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ab dlir management can certify the effectivenessiofnternal
controls and our independent registered public étog firm can render an opinion on our internathtrol over
financial reporting on an annual basis. As a restdthave implemented the required financial andagarial
controls, reporting systems and procedures andetgried substantial expenses to test our systeth®anake
additional improvements and to hire additional parel. If our management is unable to certify tfieativeness of
our internal controls or if our independent registepublic accounting firm cannot render an opiroorthe
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting, or if material weaknesses in our intdrcontrols are
identified, we could be subject to regulatory sicuand a loss of public confidence, which couldnh@ur business
and cause a decline in our stock price. In addiffome do not maintain adequate financial and nganaent
personnel, processes and controls, we may notlbaabccurately report our financial performanoeadimely
basis, which could cause a decline in our stoaepsind harm our ability to raise capital. Failwatcurately report
our financial performance on a timely basis cous geopardize our continued listing on the Nas@#apal Select
Market, the Toronto Stock Exchange or any otherksexchange on which our common stock may be listed
Delisting of our common stock on any exchange woettlice the liquidity of the market for our comnstack,
which could reduce the price of our stock and iaseethe volatility of our stock price.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price has been volatile and your investrhan our common stock could suffer a decline inlua.

The market price of our common stock has been sutgjesignificant fluctuations and may continudlttuate
or decline. Since our initial public offering inly2007 until January 30, 2011, the closing pri€ew common
stock has ranged from a low of $4.49 to a high##.51 on the Nasdaqg Global Select Market and fréowaof
CDN $5.79 to a high of CDN $74.71 on the TorontocBtExchange. Broad market and industry factors haagn
the price of our common stock, regardless of otwa®perating performance. Factors that could €flustuation
in the price of our common stock may include, amotiger things:

« actual or anticipated fluctuations in quastexperating results or other operating metricshaagcomparable
store sales, that may be used by the investmentcrity;

« changes in financial estimates by us or by anyrigesianalysts who might cover our sto
« reductions in consumer spending and macroeconautorks that may adversely affect consumer spen
 speculation about our business in the press dntlestment community

« conditions or trends affecting our industntloe economy generally, including fluctuationsanefign
currency exchange rate

» stock market price and volume fluctuation®tbfer publicly traded companies and, in particulamse that
are in the technical athletic apparel indus

* announcements by us or our competitors of pesucts, significant acquisitions, strategic parships or
divestitures
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« changes in product mix between high and low mapgiucts;
 capital commitments

e our entry into new market

« timing of new store opening

* percentage of sales from new stores versus edtablstores
 additions or departures of key personi

« actual or anticipated sales of our commonisteluding sales by our directors, officers arsficant
stockholders

« significant developments relating to our manufaotrdistribution, joint venture or franchise rétaiships;
 customer purchases of new products from us andaupetitors

* investor perceptions of the apparel industry ineggahand our company in particul;

« changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretation or principles; ar

 speculative trading of our common stock in the gtrreent community

In the past, securities class action litigation dfsn been instituted against companies follovgrgods of
volatility in their stock price. This type of litegion, even if it does not result in liability fas, could result in
substantial costs to us and divert managemengst&in and resources.

A significant number of our outstanding shares agtigible for resale and may be sold on the Nasddqlsal
Select Market and the Toronto Stock Exchange. Thege number of shares eligible for public sale cdul
depress the market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could dedlisa result of sales of a large number of sharesrof
common stock in the market, and the perceptionthieste sales could occur may also depress the taige of oul
common stock. On July 31, 2008, we filed a regitrastatement on Form S-3ASR (as subsequently deteby a
post-effective amendment on Form $t8d on March 30, 2009) in the United States rigiag the issuance of up
20,935,041 shares of our common stock upon theagxghof the then-outstanding exchangeable shatadwf
Canadian Holding, Inc. Additionally, we filed a uaisal shelf registration statement on Form S-3A8Ruly 6,
2010, registering the possible issuance and/oteesahares of our common stock, preferred stdekt securities,
warrants and units. Sales of our common stockerptiblic market may make it more difficult for wssell equity
securities in the future at a time and at a ptied tve deem appropriate. These sales also couse cau stock price
to fall and make it more difficult for you to sehares of our common stock.

Our current directors and executive officers owrs@nificant percentage of our stock and will be afto
exercise significant influence over our affairs.

Our current directors and executive officers baialfy own 33% of our common stock. As a resulgsh
stockholders, if acting together, would be ablenfluence or control matters requiring approvalday stockholders
including the election of directors and the appl@fanergers, acquisitions or other extraordinaansactions. They
may also have interests that differ from yours aray vote in a way with which you disagree and whitcy be
adverse to your interests. This concentration afenship may have the effect of delaying, preventindeterring a
change of control of our company, could deprive siackholders of an opportunity to receive a premfar their
common stock as part of a sale of our company agttrmltimately affect the market price of our commstock.
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Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and our certdite of incorporation and bylaws could delay a
discourage takeover attempts that stockholders roaysider to be favorable.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorpaoatand bylaws and applicable provisions of theaidelre
General Corporation Law may make it more diffimitimpossible for a third-party to acquire conwbus or effect
a change in our board of directors and managerfese provisions include:

« the classification of our board of directors intoete classes, with one class elected each
« prohibiting cumulative voting in the election ofelttors;
« the ability of our board of directors to issue preéd stock without stockholder appro\

« the ability to remove a director only for cawmnd only with the vote of the holders of at et/ 3% of our
voting stock;

¢ aspecial meeting of stockholders may onlgddéed by our chairman or Chief Executive Offiocar,upon a
resolution adopted by an affirmative vote of a miajoof the board of directors, and not by our &tumlders;

« prohibiting stockholder action by written consearg

« our stockholders must comply with advanceawofirocedures in order to nominate candidatesléatien to
our board of directors or to place stockholder psaps on the agenda for consideration at any ngeefiour
stockholders

In addition, we are governed by Section 203 of@ktaware General Corporation Law which, subjectdme
specified exceptions, prohibits “business combareti between a Delaware corporation and an “intedes
stockholder,” which is generally defined as a statller who becomes a beneficial owner of 15% orenodra
Delaware corporation’s voting stock, for a threatypgeriod following the date that the stockholdecdme an
interested stockholder. Section 203 could havestfeet of delaying, deferring or preventing a changcontrol that
our stockholders might consider to be in their lgrests.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive and administrative offiegs located at 1818 Cornwall Avenue, Vancouvertjdri
Columbia, Canada, V6J 1C7. We expect that our nua@ministrative offices are sufficient for ourpaxsion plans
for the foreseeable future. In March 2011, we paselt the building that currently houses our adrnatige offices
We currently operate two distribution centers ledah Vancouver, British Columbia and Sumner, Wagtan,
which together are capable of accommodating ouamsipn plans through the foreseeable future.

The general location, use, approximate size argklesnewal date of our properties, none of whicloweed a
January 30, 2011, are set forth below:

Approximate

Location Use Square Feet Lease Renewal Date
Vancouver, BC Executive and Administrative Office 78,00( November 201
Vancouver, BC Former Executive and Administrative Offic 50,00( January 201
Vancouver, BC Distribution Cente 102,00( November 201
Sumner, WA Distribution Cente 82,00( April 202C

As of January 30, 2011, we leased approximately(®6gross square feet relating to our 133 corpevatned
stores. Our leases generally have initial termsedfveen five and 10 years, and generally can lndgt only in
five-year increments, if at all. All of our leasesgjuire a fixed annual rent, and most require togrgent of
additional rent if store sales exceed a negotiatedunt. Generally, our leases are “net” leases;iwigquire us to
pay all of the cost of insurance, taxes, mainteaamd utilities. We generally cannot cancel theasds at our
option.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On September 7, 2010, a former hourly employed file€lass action lawsuit in the United States @is€@ourt
For the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Dé&ibn entitled Lydia Brown v. lululemon athleticecirThe lawsuit
alleges that we require employees to work “offdlwek” without compensation. The plaintiff seekstmhalf of
herself and other putative class members back wagesest, attorney fees and costs, and equitebitf under the
Fair Labor Standards Act and the lllinois Wage Pagthand Collection Act. On February 24, 2011, thetrizt
Court granted our motion to dismiss the plaintifflaims in their entirety without prejudice. Thaioltiff was
granted leave to file an amended complaint on @arbeviarch 17, 2011. We continue to deny the atiega and
intend to vigorously defend the matter.

We are a party to various other legal proceedimniging in the ordinary course of our business,beitare not
currently a party to any legal proceeding that ng@naent believes would have a material adversetedfeour
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS ANI
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE!
Market Information and Dividends

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Globa&cb&larket under the symbol “LULWEANd on the Toron
Stock Exchange under the symbol “LLL.” The follogitable sets forth, for the periods indicated, g and low
closing sale prices of our common stock reportetheyNasdaqg Global Select Market for the last tiscal years:

Common Stock Price
(Nasdaq Global Select

Market)
High Low

Fiscal Year Ending January 30, 2011

Fourth Quarte $73.5] $44.6:
Third Quartel $47.4¢ $31.9(C
Second Quarte $45.5¢ $35.8:
First Quartel $45.07 $26.21
Fiscal Year Ending January 31, 201(

Fourth Quarte $32.5( $24.6¢
Third Quartel $27.9( $18.51%
Second Quarte $17.7: $11.3C
First Quarte! $14.43 $ 4.4¢

As of January 30, 2011, there were approximateyHealders of record of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not anticipate payingcashn
dividends on our common stock in the foreseealleduWe anticipate that we will retain all of cawailable funds
for use in the operation and expansion of our lassinAny future determination as to the paymectsh dividends
will be at the discretion of our board of directarsd will depend on our financial condition, opargtresults,
current and anticipated cash needs, plans for ekpaand other factors that our board of directorssiders to be
relevant. In addition, financial and other covesadntany instruments or agreements that we enteiirirthe future
may restrict our ability to pay cash dividends am common stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares the cumulatited stockholder return on our common stock between
July 27, 2007 (the date of our initial public offeg) and January 30, 2011, with the cumulativel t@urn of (i) the
S&P 500 Index and (ii) S&P Retail Index, over tlheng period. This graph assumes the investmentGff &t
July 27, 2007 in our common stock, the S&P 500 xmaled the S&P Retail Index and assumes the reimezgtof
dividends, if any. The graph assumes the initifde@f our common stock on July 27, 2007 was theiof sale
price of $28.00 per share.
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The comparisons shown in the graph below are basdustorical data. We caution that the stock price
performance showing in the graph below is not neardly indicative of, nor is it intended to foretabe potential
future performance of our common stock. Informatised in the graph was obtained from the Nasdack Stiarket
website, a source believed to be reliable, but eenat responsible for any errors or omissionsurhdanformation.
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27-Jul-07  3-Feb-08 1-Feb-09 31-Jan-10 30-Jan-11
lululemon athletica in $100.0C $124.6¢  $24.2¢  $100.8¢ $245.0¢
S&P 500 Inde) $100.0C $ 95.6¢ $56.61 $ 73.61 $ 87.4¢
S&P Retail Inde» $100.0( $ 87.6i $53.7( $ 82.1: $103.0¢

Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

The following table provides information regardiogr Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP) repurchiases
our common stock during the thirteen week periogeenJanuary 30, 2011:

Maximum Number

Total Number of of Shares that
Shares Purchase May Yet Be
Total Number  Average as Part of Publicly  Purchased Under
of Shares Price Paid  Announced Plans the Plans
Period(1) Purchased per Share or Programs(2) or Programs(2)
November 1, 201— November 28, 201 2,56z $ 52.6¢ 2,562 2,841,111
November 29, 201— January 2, 201 2,26¢ 68.8( 2,26¢ 2,838,84!
January 3, 201— January 30, 201 2,42¢ 68.1¢ 2,424 2,836,42!
Total 7,25( 7,25(

(1) Monthly information is presented by reference to fiscal months during our fourth quarter of fis2fi10.

(2) Our ESPP was approved by our Board of Directorssémekholders in September 2007. All shares puethas
under the ESPP will be purchased on the TorontokIwxchange or the Nasdaq Global Select Markesifoh
other stock exchange as we may designate fromttrtime). Unless our Board of Directors termindtes ESPI
earlier, the ESPP will continue until all sharethatized for purchase under the ESPP have beehgsed. The
maximum number of shares available for issuanceutie ESPP is 3,000,0C
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data set foetbw are derived from our consolidated financiatements
and should be read in conjunction with our constéd financial statements and the related notes and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” appearingveteze in
this Form 10-K. The consolidated statement of cj@ra data for each of the years ended Januar®Q,,
January 31, 2010, February 1, 2009 and Februé29@8 and the consolidated balance sheet dataJasaéry 30,
2011, January 31, 2010, February 1, 2009 and Feb8,2008 are derived from, and qualified by refere to, our
audited consolidated financial statements andea@labtes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Repbd.
consolidated statement of operations data foritlalfyear ended January 31, 2007 and the consatidelance
sheet data as of January 31, 2007 are deriveddtoranderlying accounting records. The consolidatatements
income for the fiscal year ended January 31, 20@i7@lance sheet for the fiscal year ended Jar8iar007 have
been prepared on the same basis as our auditedlidasd financial statements and, in the opinibmanagement,
contain all adjustments necessary to fairly pret@ninformation set forth below.

We completed a corporate reorganization on July2@67. The financial data below reflects our operstas if
the reorganization had occurred prior to the fietiod presented.

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30, January 31 February 1, February 3, January 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share date

Consolidated statement of operations date

Net revenu $ 711,70: $ 452,89( $ 353,48{ $ 269,94: $ 147,96:
Cost of goods sol 316,75 229,81: 174,42: 125,01! 72,24¢
Gross profi 394,94° 223,08t 179,06 144,92 75,71t
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrative exper 212,78 136,16: 118,09¢ 93,37¢ 51,86:
Provision for impairment and lease exit cc 1,772 37¢ 4,40¢ — —
Settlement of lawsu — — — — 7,22¢
Income from operatior 180,39: 86,54¢ 56,56 51,55 16,62«
Other income (expense), r 2,88¢ 164 821 1,02¢ 104
Income before provision for income ta» 183,27° 86,71( 57,38t 52,58( 16,72¢
Provision for income taxe 61,08( 28,42¢ 16,88¢ 20,46¢ 8,752
Net income from continuing operatio 122,19° 58,28: 40,50: 32,11¢ 7,97¢
Net income attributable to n-controlling interes 35C — — — —
Net loss from discontinued operatic — — (1,13¢) (1,279) (310
Net income attributable to lululemon athletica it $ 12184 $ 5828 % 3936i$ 3084i$  7,66¢

Basic earnings (loss) per shi

Continuing operation $ 1.7z $ 0.8 % 0.5¢ $ 0.4t $ 0.12
Discontinued operatior — — (0.02) (0.02) —
Net basic earnings per sh: $ 1.7z $ 0.8z % 057 % 0.4€ $ 0.12
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh
Continuing operation $ 1.6¢ $ 0.8z % 057 % 0.47 $ 0.12
Discontinued operatior — — (0.02) (0.02) —
Net diluted earnings per she $ 1.6¢ $ 0.8z % 0.5t % 0.4t $ 0.12
Basic weighte-average number of shares outstanc 70,86( 70,25 68,71 66,43( 65,157
Diluted weighte-average number of shares outstant 71,92¢ 70,94¢ 70,94 69,29¢ 65,30«
As of
January 30 January 31  February 1, February 3, January 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)
Consolidated balance sheet datz
Cash and cash equivalel $316,28¢ $159,57. $ 56,797 $ 52,54t $ 15,49«
Total asset 499,30: 307,25¢ 211,63t 155,09: 71,32
Total stockholder equity 394,29: 233,10t 154,84: 112,03« 37,37¢
Non-controlling interes 3,90/ — — — —
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

This discussion summarizes our consolidated opeyaésults, financial condition and liquidity dugithe
three-year period ending January 30, 2011. Oualfigear ends on the Sunday closest to January 8iedéllowing
year, typically resulting in a 52 week year, butasionally giving rise to an additional week, réisglin a 53 weel
year. Fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 ended on Jan@ai3031, January 31, 2010 and February 1, 200pectisely.
The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with our consolidated financiatsiments and
the related notes included elsewhere in this AnRegdort on Form 10-K.

This discussion and analysis contains forward-logldtatements based on current expectations thaltan
risks, uncertainties and assumptions, such aslanspobjectives, expectations and intentionsath fn the
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemér@sir actual results and the timing of events mifed
materially from those anticipated in these forwliwking statements as a result of various faciamduding those
set forth in the “Item 1A — Risk Factors” sectiamdeelsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Our results for fiscal 2010 demonstrate the ongsimzess of our efforts to overcome the instahititihe
economy for the last two fiscal years. In fiscal@Dwe committed to investing in our stores andpmople, making
infrastructure enhancements and funding workingtabpequirements, while remaining conscious of our
discretionary spending. These expenditures werigmkes to position our business for long-term padfie growth
and protect our brand integrity. We continuallyesssthe economic environment and market conditidren
making decisions regarding timing of our investnsent

These strong efforts to execute our strategic atarreflected in our comparable stores net revgnusth,
which leveraged our fixed operating costs and in ted to higher income from operations. We belithat our
brand is recognized as premium in our offeringeiofand yoga assortment, as well as a leader mites fabrics
and quality construction. This has made our prodestrable to our consumers and has driven demand.

Throughout fiscal 2010, we were able to grow ogpemerce website which has further increased amcdr
awareness and has made our product available immakets, including those outside of North Amerithis sales
channel offers product assortment with a higherginathan our other segments. We also increasedtotg base
through execution of our real estate strategy, varehwhere we saw opportunities for success. Famele, we
opened 23 net new corporate-owned stores and 38&meshowrooms in North America and Australia sifiseal
2009, including reacquired franchises. We beliawestrong cash flow generation, solid balance shedthealthy
liquidity provide us with the financial flexibilityo continue executing the initiatives which weibet will be
beneficial for the Company.

In fiscal 2011, we will continue to focus on thezeution of our strategic plan. Where we have found
opportunities for growth through opening showrooorspther community presence efforts, we will exghanr store
base and therefore our business. 12 to 15 of amngld store openings in fiscal 2011 will be in netslseeded by
showrooms in fiscal 2010. Continuing increasesaffit and conversion rates on our e-commerce welsad us to
believe that there is potential for our direct tmsumer segment to become an increasingly sutstaatit of our
business and we continue to commit a portion ofresources to further developing this channel.lieaurtwe see o
e-commerce website as an opportunity to increaséramd awareness in international markets.

Operating Segment Overview

lululemon is a designer and retailer of technithledic apparel operating primarily in North Amexiand
Australia. Our yoga-inspired apparel is primarilgnketed under the lululemon athletica and ivividedica brand
names. We offer a comprehensive line of apparebacdssories including fithess pants, shorts, aogdgackets
designed for athletic pursuits such as yoga, runaimd general fitness, and dance-inspired apparétifnale youth.
As of January 30, 2011, our branded apparel wagipally sold through 137 corporate-owned and frése stores
that are primarily located in Canada, the Uniteaté®t, and Australia and via our e-commerce webwiteigh our
direct to consumer sales channel. We believe otdicaéretail strategy allows us to interact monedtly with and
gain insights from our customers while providingwith greater control of our brand. In fiscal
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2010, 52% of our net revenue was derived from salesir products in Canada, 46% of our net revemag derive(
from the sales of our products in the United States2% of our net revenue was derived from sdlesioproducts
outside of North America. In fiscal 2009, 60% of oet revenue was derived from sales of our pradimc€anada,
40% of our net revenue was derived from the sdlesiioproducts in the United States and an immaitarnount of
our net revenue was derived from sales of our prisdoutside of North America. In fiscal 2008, 69%@uar net
revenue was derived from sales of our productsaina@a, 31% of our net revenue was derived fronsales of our
products in the United States and an immaterialarnof our net revenue was derived from sales opooducts
outside of North America.

Our net revenue increased from $40.7 million iedl2004 to $711.7 million in fiscal 2010 represegta 61%
compound annual growth rate. Our net revenue fronticuing operations also increased from $452.%aniin
fiscal 2009 to $711.7 million in fiscal 2010, repedating a 57% increase. Our increase in net revieamefiscal
2004 to fiscal 2010 resulted from the net additb23 retail locations in fiscal 2010, seven retadations and our
e-commerce sales channel in fiscal 2009, 35 netzditions in fiscal 2008, 31 retail locations isdal 2007, 14 retail
locations in fiscal 2006 and 17 retail locationsigwal 2005, including reacquired franchises, eochparable store
sales growth of 37%, 9%, 0%, 34% and 25% in fi&€dlO, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 anddls2006,
respectively. Our ability to open new stores armhgsales in existing stores has been driven byeasing demand
for our technical athletic apparel and a growingpgmition of the lululemon athletica brand. We eedi our superic
products, strategic store locations, inviting stamgironment, grassroots marketing approach arithclive
corporate culture are responsible for our strongrftial performance.

We have three reportable segments: corporate-ogtoegs, direct to consumer and other. We report our
segments based on the financial information weinusganaging our businesses. While we receive fiilghnc
information for each corporate-owned store, we hegygregated all of the corporatemed stores into one reporte
segment due to the similarities in the economicathdr characteristics of these stores. Our diteconsumer
segment accounted for 8% of our net revenues frammtirwing operations in fiscal 2010, 4% in fisc@D2 and 1%
in fiscal 2008. Our other segment, consisting ahéhise sales, wholesale accounts, sales from corgzerated
showrooms, warehouse sales and outlets, each aeddian less than 10% of our net revenues fromioaintg
operations in each of fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 fschl 2008. We previously reported our franchikarmel as an
operating segment; however, opening new franchi@esis not part of our near-term store growthtstyy, and as
such we expect net revenue from our franchise storeontinue to decrease, including as a percerghtptal net
revenue, in future years.

As of January 30, 2011, we sold our products thindl@3 corporat@wned stores located in Canada, the Ur
States and Australia. We plan to increase ourenegnue in North America and Australia by openinditiohal
corporate-owned stores in new and existing markaisporate-owned stores accounted for 83% of twhrevenue
in fiscal 2010, 87% of total net revenue in fis2@09 and 89% of total net revenue in fiscal 2008.

As of January 30, 2011, our direct to consumer sggrmcluded our e-commerce and phone sales clannel
E-commerce sales are taken directly from retaitausrs through www.lululemon.conPhone sales are taken
directly from retail customers through our call ®#nOur direct to consumer segment is an incrgassubstantial
part of our growth strategy, and we therefore ekpieerevenue derived from our direct to consuradessto
comprise more than 10% of the net revenue we repduture fiscal years.

In addition to deriving revenue from sales throogh corporate-owned stores and direct to consuweeglso
derive other net revenue, which includes wholesattomers, as well as franchise sales, wareholesasad sales
through a number of company-operated showrooms.l&gale customers include select premium yoga ssudio
health clubs and fitness centers. Franchise sadisdie inventory sales and royalties related tofour franchise
stores located in the United States. Warehouss aatetypically held one or more times a year tost@v moving
inventory or inventory from prior seasons to retaistomers at discounted prices. Our showroomsypieally smal
locations that we open from time to time when weeenew markets and feature a limited selectioousfproduct
offering during select hours. Other net revenu@anoted for 9% of total revenue in fiscal 2010, 9Ptotal net
revenue in fiscal 2009 and 10% of total net revanudescal 2008.

We believe that our athletic apparel has and wifitmue to appeal to consumers outside of North #eaevho
value its technical attributes as well as its fiorctand style. In 2004, we opened our first starAustralia
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which was operated under a franchise license stafi2008 we made a 13% equity investment in lolole athletic
australia Pty, our franchise operator. During fi®€H0 we increased our investment to 80% whichpnasided us
control over lululemon athletica australia Ptyfigtal 2008, we opened a company-operated showindtong
Kong.

In the past, we have entered into franchise agretnte distribute lululemon athletica branded pidiwo mor
quickly disseminate our brand name and increasaeiurevenue and net income. In exchange for teetisur
brand name and the ability to operate lululemofetitia stores in certain regions, our franchiseseeglly pay us a
one-time franchise fee and ongoing royalties basetheir gross revenue. Additionally, unless otheevapproved
by us, our franchisees are required to sell orllylémon athletica branded products, which are pasel from us at
a discount to the suggested retail price. Pursoéwg franchise partnerships or opening new franctises is not
part of our near-term store growth strategy. In s@@ses, we may exercise our contractual rightsittchase
franchises where it is attractive to us.

Basis of Presentation
Net revenués comprised of:

e corporate-owned store net revenue, which thedusales to customers through corporate-owneessitor
North America and Australit

« direct to consumer revenue, which includes satas foure-commercewebsite and phone sales; ¢

 other net revenue, which includes wholesatmaunts, franchises net revenue, which consisteyalties as
well as sales of our products to franchises, warsdcales, outlets and sales from company-operated
showrooms

in each case, net of an estimated allowance fessaturns and discounts.

In addition, we separately track comparable staless which reflect net revenue at corporate-ovaterks that
have been open for at least 12 months. Therefeteemenue from a store is included in comparatolee sales
beginning with the first month for which the stdvas a full month of comparable prior year salesdomparable
store sales include sales from new stores that halveeen open or otherwise not operated by usZanonths or
from stores which have been significantly remod@etklocated. Also included in non-comparableestm@ales are
sales from direct to consumer sales, wholesalacffiaes, warehouse sales and showrooms, and saies f
corporate-owned stores which we have closed.

By measuring the change in year-over-year net igvémstores that have been open for 12 monthsooe,m
comparable store sales allows us to evaluate howare store base is performing. Various factofscaf
comparable store sales, including:

« the location of new stores relative to existinges;

« consumer preferences, buying trends and overaticgo@ trends

« our ability to anticipate and respond effectivedyctistomer preferences for technical athletic agip
e competition;

« changes in our merchandise nr

* pricing;

« the timing of our releases of new merchandise aathptional events

« the effectiveness of our grassroots marketing tff

* the level of customer service that we provide insiores

« our ability to source and distribute products edfintly; and

« the number of stores we open, close (includingdorporary renovations) and expand in any pel
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Opening new stores is an important part of our ginastrategy. Accordingly, comparable store saleslinaited
utility for assessing the success of our growthtetyy insofar as comparable store sales do nettdfie
performance of stores open less than 12 months.

Cost of goods solmcludes:

« the cost of purchased merchandise, inbounghteduty and non-refundable taxes incurred irvéeing
goods to our distribution cente

« the cost of our distribution centers (suclea®r, rent and utilities) and the depreciation antbrtization
related to our distribution cente

« the cost of our production, merchandise argigihedepartments including salaries, stock-basethensation
and benefits, and operating expen:

« the cost of occupancy related to store opamat{such as rent and utilities) and the depreciatind
amortization related to stc-level capital expenditure

« hemming; anc
» shrink and valuation reserve

Cost of goods sold also may change as we operse stores because of the resulting change iredelat
occupancy costs. The primary drivers of the cobisdividual goods are the costs of raw materiaid Ebor in the
countries where we source our merchandise.

Selling, general and administrative expensessist of all operating costs not otherwise inellich cost of
goods sold and provision for impairment and leagecests. Our selling, general and administraxpenses
include marketing costs, accounting costs, infoiomattechnology costs, human resource costs, professees,
corporate facility costs, corporate and store-l@asiroll and benefits expenses, stock-based comapiensand
occupancy, depreciation and amortization expensalfassets other than depreciation and amorizagkpenses
related to store-level capital expenditures anddistribution centers, each of which are includedast of goods
sold. We anticipate that our selling, general athahiaistrative expenses will increase in absolutéadodue to
anticipated continued growth of our corporate supg@ff and store-level employees.

Provision for impairment and lease exit costsisists of asset impairments, lease exit and ogatied costs
associated with the relocation of our administetiffices and the closure of one Canadian corpanateed store in
fiscal 2010, as well as management’s evaluatiazogiorate-owned locations. Also included in prieass, are one
US corporate-owned store in the first quarter e¢dl 2009 and one US corporate-owned store inotinehf quarter
of fiscal 2008 as well as an asset impairment gioxibased on management’s ongoing evaluatiors giittfolio of
corporate-owned store locations. Long-lived asaetgeviewed at the store-level periodically fopairment or
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat full recoverability of net assets througtufa cash flows
is in question. Factors used in the evaluatioruhe] but are not limited to, management’s planduture
operations, recent operating results and projexdst flows.

Stock-based compensation expeanskides charges incurred in recognition of compéina expense associa
with grants of stock options, performance stocksuand restricted stock units. We recognize stadet
compensation expense for both awards granted bypdiswards granted under a stockholder sponsoaed $tock-
based compensation expense is measured at thedgtanbased on the fair value of the award anecisgnized as
an expense over the requisite service period.

We record our stock-based compensation expensestro€goods sold and selling, general and admatige
expenses as stock-based awards have been madployees whose salaries are classified in both esgpen
categories.

Other income (expense), rietludes interest earned on our cash balanceswarabdeances to franchise, intel
costs associated with our credit facilities anchdétters of credit drawn under these facilitiestfe purchase of
merchandise and our share of the operations ohwastment in lululemon athletica australia PT\tluding the
remeasurement of our investment immediately befbtaining control of the business. We expect to
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continue to generate interest income to the extexitour cash generated from operations exceedsastirused for
investment. We have maintained relatively smalstartding balances on our credit facilities and ekpecontinue
to do so.

Provision for income taxedepends on the statutory tax rates in the countriiese we sell our products.
Historically we have generated taxable income ing@ia and we have generated tax losses in the UBiiédes. For
periods up to and including the second quarteischf 2007, we recorded a full valuation allowaageainst our
losses in the United States. In the third and foqgrtarters of fiscal 2007, we earned taxable incontiee United
States. During the second quarter of fiscal 20@8r aonsidering a number of factors, includingergctaxable
income, utilization of previously unrealized neeogiting losses, or NOLs, our growth strategy as agebther
business and macroeconomic factors, we determiraddve would more likely than not realize the béruf
deferred tax assets through future taxable incoteehave recorded deferred tax assets in respéoteifin tax
credits and other deductible temporary differerafe®r.9 million as at January 30, 2011.

Several factors have contributed to our effectareraite fluctuating in recent periods. First, scél 2008 and
fiscal 2007, we generated losses in the UnitedeStahich we were unable to offset against our ireantCanada.
Second, we incurred stock-based compensation egpdi$7.3 million, $5.6 million and $6.5 million fiscal 2010,
fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively, a portsd which were not deductible for tax purpose€anada and the
United States during these periods. Third, the @iamacorporate tax rate decreased from 35% to 32fisdal 2008
Fourth, in fiscal 2008 we began to release theataln against US loss carry forwards. Our effectaserate in
fiscal 2010 was 33%, compared to 33% in fiscal 2808 29% in fiscal 2008.

We anticipate that in the future we may start tbag products directly to some customers locatetside of
Canada, the United States and Australia, in whide ave would become subject to taxation basedeofotkign
statutory rates in the countries where these s$alkesplace and our effective tax rate could fluewsccordingly.

Results of Operations

The following tables summarize key components afreaults of operations for the periods indicatemth in
dollars and as a percentage of net revenue:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31, February 1,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Consolidated statements of operations

Net revenue $711,70: $452,89¢ $ 353,48¢
Cost of goods sol 316,75 229,81: 174,42:
Gross profit 394,94 223,08¢ 179,06
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrative exper 212,78 136,16: 118,09¢
Provision for impairment and lease exit cc 1,772 37¢ 4,40¢
Income from operatior 180,39: 86,54¢ 56,56+
Other income (expense), r 2,88¢ 164 821
Income before provision for income tay 183,27 86,71( 57,38¢
Provision for income taxe 61,08( 28,42¢ 16,88¢
Net income from continuing operatio 122,19 58,281 40,50:
Net income attributable to n-controlling interes 35C — —
Net loss from discontinued operatic — — (1,139
Net income attributable to lululemon athletica i $12184 $ 58,287 $ 39,36!
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Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31. February 1,

2011 2010 2009
(% of net revenue)}

Net revenue 100.( 100.( 100.(
Cost of goods sol 44.F 50.7 49.5
Gross profit 55.t 49.5 50.7
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrative exper 29.¢ 30.1 33.t
Provision for impairment and lease exit cc 0.2 0.1 1.2
Income from operatior 25.4 19.1 16.C
Other income (expense), r 0.4 0.1 0.2
Income before provision for income tay 25.¢ 19.2 16.2
Provision for income taxe 8.€ 6.3 4.8
Net income from continuing operatio 17.2 12.¢ 11.4
Net income attributable to n-controlling interes 0.1 — —
Net loss from discontinued operatic — — (0.3
Net income attributable to lululemon athletica 17.1 12.¢ 11.1

Comparison of Fiscal 2010 to Fiscal 2009
Net Revenue

Net revenue increased $258.8 million, or 57%, tb1$7 million in fiscal 2010 from $452.9 million fam fiscal
2009. Assuming the average exchange rate betwedbahadian and United States dollars in fiscal 28@%ined
constant, our net revenue would have increased.62@dlion, or 51%, in fiscal 2010.

The net revenue increase was driven by increades ablocations in our comparable stores bases $aim
new stores and showrooms opened, sales from fregatistores that were reacquired during fiscal 20tDthe
growth of our e-commerce website sales includeslindirect to consumer segment. The constant dioitzease in
comparable store sales was driven primarily bysthength of our existing product lines, the sucegsstroduction
of new products and increasing recognition of thelémon athletica brand name, especially at o&. Stores.

Our net revenue on a segment basis for fiscal 20tifiscal 2009 are expressed in dollar amountgedisas
relevant percentages, presented as a percentégfalaiet revenue below.

Fiscal Year Ended January 30, 2011 and
January 31, 201C

2010 2009 2010 2009

(In thousands) (Percentages)
Corporat-owned store $591,03: $393,45: 83.C 86.¢
Direct to consume 57,34¢ 18,257 8.1 4.C
Other 63,32¢ 41,19( 8.9 9.1
Net revenue $711,70: $452,89¢ 100.C 100.(

Corporate-Owned StoresNet revenue from our corporate-owned stores sagmereased $197.6 million, or
50%, to $591.0 million in fiscal 2010 from $393.4lian in fiscal 2009. The following contributed the
$197.6 million increase in net revenue from ouipooate-owned stores segment:

« Comparable store sales increase of 37% ialfa@10 resulted in a $136.1 million increase tbraeenue,
including the effect of foreign currency fluctuat® Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluations,
comparable store sales increased 30%, or $112li2min fiscal 2010

« Net revenue from corpore-owned stores we opened during fiscal 2010, anthgdiscal 2009 prior to sales
from such stores becoming part of our comparablestbase, contributed $42.3 million of the inceed$et
new store openings in fiscal 2010 included 12 stang¢he United States and two in Australia;
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e The acquisition of one Canadian and nine Adlistn franchise stores in fiscal 2010 contribut2.8 million
of the increase

The increase was partially offset by a decreaseinmevenue related to gift card breakage. In [fizg089 we
recorded a one-time credit of $1.3 million relatec change in our estimated rate of redemption.

Direct to Consumer. Net revenue from our direct to consumer segmeaameased $39.1 million, or 214%, to
$57.3 million in fiscal 2010 from $18.3 million fiscal 2009. The increase in net revenue from dnactto
consumer segment was a result of increasing trafftcconversion rates on our e-commerce website #in
launched near the beginning of fiscal 2009. Pwadhe launch of our e-commerce website, our di@cbnsumer
segment consisted only of phone sales, and ultlynegsulted in an increased gross profit.

Other. Net revenue from our other segment increasedL$8flion, or 54%, to $63.3 million in fiscal 2010
from $41.2 million in fiscal 2009. There were inases in net revenues across most of our salesa@kanoluded in
our other segment: wholesale, showrooms, warehgales and outlets. Net revenues from our franattiaanel
decreased due to our reacquisition of one frandrstgre in Canada and nine franchised stores itréliss Our
other segment continues to grow year over yeautiirmew showroom locations, new wholesale partaedsnet
revenue growth at existing locations attributabla strong product offering and brand interest.dofginue to
employ our other segment strategy to increasedstén our product in markets we have not othensigered with
corporate-owned stores.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased 171.9 million, or 77%, t@®million in fiscal 2010 from $223.1 million imstal 2009.
The increase in gross profit was driven principélyincreased net revenues as well as a strength€@nadian
dollar relative to the U.S. dollar, which improveduct margin in all of our operating segments] aftimately
resulted in an increased gross profit.

The increase in gross profit was partially offsgiricreases in fixed costs, such as occupancy eosts
depreciation, as well as increased costs relatedrtdesign, production, distribution and merchaimdj
departments.

Gross profit, as a percentage of net revenue,assgnargin, increased 620 basis points, to 55.5fgdal 2010
from 49.3% in fiscal 2009. The increase in grossgimaresulted primarily from:

» adecrease in fixed costs, such as occuparsty end depreciation, relative to the increasetrrevenue,
which had a leveraging effect on gross margin amdributed to an increase in gross margin of 25sba
points;

e anincrease in product margins in corporateamhstores, direct to consumer and other segmehish
contributed to an increase in gross margin of 1la@fispoints primarily as a result of improved pretdu
costing on our spring, summer, and fall assortménterchandise and a higher proportion of totasal
coming from our direct to consumer segmi

e an improvement in the Canadian dollar, re@ativthe U.S. dollar, decreased foreign exchangadts on
product costs and contributed to an increase inggnwargin of 140 basis points; &

» adecrease in costs related to design, produdtistribution and merchandising, relative to ther@ase in ne
revenue, which had a leveraging effect on grosgyimand contributed to an increase in gross marfjin
50 basis points

Our costs of goods sold in fiscal 2010 and fis€@®included $1.4 million and $0.8 million, respeely, of
stock-based compensation expense.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses, @istuprovision for impairment and lease exit coststeased
$78.0 million, or 57%, to $214.6 million in fisca010 from $136.5 million in fiscal 2009. The $78&dlion
increase in selling, general and administrativeeesps was principally comprised of:

¢ an increase in employee costs of $24.8 milisnwe experience natural growth in labor houre@ated with
new corporal-owned stores, showrooms, outlets and other, angityrat existing location:

* an increase in variable administrative co$%18.4 million related to our direct to consumegmient,
primarily associated with revenue growth in e-commercewebsite sales channi

¢ anincrease in other costs, including occupaosts, depreciation, distribution and provisionifnpairment
and lease exist costs not included in cost of gsotly of $14.5 million as a result of the expansi6 our
business

¢ anincrease in head office employee costdydirtg stock-based compensation expense and maeagem
incentive-based compensation, of $9.6 million incurred ineorth position us for lor-term growth;

e an increase in administrative costs of $6.Hianirelated to our Australian business, in whieh increased
our investment significantly in the second quadtgfiscal 2010, which we now report on a consokdit
basis;

e an increase in marketing efforts, includinijiaives associated with the Olympic games, oB3%8illion to
increase our brand awareness in both new andrexistarkets; an

« an increase in professional fees of $0.9 arillivhich includes consulting fees for recruitingre
development and information systems, legal feescis®d with reacquisition of franchise rights, and
employment matter:

As a percentage of net revenue, selling, genethhdministrative expenses were 30.1% in both fi2640 and
fiscal 2009.

We expect selling, general and administrative egpsito increase throughout fiscal 2011 as we add
administrative and sales personnel and increasmfyastructure to support the growth in our stoase and invest
in our e-commerce channel.

Our selling, general and administrative expensdis@al 2010 and fiscal 2009 included $5.9 millemd
$4.8 million, respectively, of stock-based compé¢insaexpense.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased $93.8 million1@8%, to $180.4 million in fiscal 2010 from $86.4lion in
fiscal 2009. The increase of $93.8 million in inafmom operations for fiscal 2010 was primarily doea
$171.9 million increase in gross profit resultingrh sales growth at existing and additional corfsemvned stores
opened during fiscal 2010 and increasing traffioane-commercwebsite, offset by an increase of $78.0 millio
selling, general and administrative expenses inictpgrovision for impairment and lease exit costs.

On a segment basis, we determine income from apesatvithout taking into account our general cogter
expenses such as corporate employee costs, trqpaiges and corporate rent. For purposes of ouageament’s
analysis of our financial results, we have allodaeme general product expenses to our corporategstores
segment. For example, all expenses related torogluption, design, merchandise and distributioradmpents hav
been allocated to this segment.
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Income from operations (before general corporapersges) for fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 are express
dollar amounts as well as percentages, presentegeascentage of net revenue of their respectieeating
segments below.

Fiscal Year Ended January 30, 2011 an
January 31, 2010

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands) (Percentages
Corporat-owned store $215,15: $121,61: 36.4 30.¢
Direct to consume 16,36¢ 6,28¢ 28.F 34.4
Other 18,00¢ 10,84 28.4 26.5
Income from operations before general corporateesg $249,52; $138,74

Corporate-Owned StoresNet income from our corporate-owned stores segiimereased $93.5 million, or
77%, to $215.2 million for fiscal 2010 from $12Irfillion for fiscal 2009 primarily due to an increasf
$134.0 million in gross profit, which was offsetrfially by a natural increase in selling, generad administrative
expenses related to employee costs as well astoygpexpenses associated with new stores and vatue growth
at existing stores.

Direct to consumer.Net income from our direct to consumer segmeereased $10.1 million, or 160%, to
$16.4 million in fiscal 2010 from $6.3 million ifstal 2009. Prior to the launch of our e-commereésite, our
direct to consumer segment consisted only of plsales. The addition of our e-commerce website thear
beginning of fiscal 2009 has driven the increas@@ome from operations for our direct to consusegment.
Income from operations as a percentage of direcbmsumer revenues decreased in fiscal 2010 conhpafescal
2009 due to the introduction of promotional shigpamd increased costs related to our digital gjyadessociated
with this selling channel.

Other. Netincome from our other segment increased $ifllbn, or 66%, to $18.0 million in fiscal 2010dim
$10.8 million in fiscal 2009. Gross profit relatedour other segment increased in fiscal 2010 fiisoal 2009
primarily due to a higher proportion of full marggales channels in the current year, such as awrsbm sales
channel, than in the prior year. There was an as&én selling, general and administrative expeasesresult of
opening and operating an increased number of slmmsadn fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009, whitfeat a
portion of the gross profit increase.

Income from operations also includes general caeogxpenses. General corporate expenses increased
$16.9 million, or 32%, to $69.1 million in fiscaD20 from $52.2 million in fiscal 2009 primarily dte an increase
in expenses related to our head office growth &&million, as well as increased depreciation amdrtization
expense of $1.2 million, increased stock-based emsgtion expense of $1.0 million and increasedigimv for
impairment and lease exist costs of $1.4 millione Thcrease was partially offset by increasesatized foreign
exchange gains of $0.3 million. General corporateases are expected to continue to increaseurefyears as w
grow our overall business and require increasemttsfit our head office to support our corporate@avstores,
franchises and other segments.

Our $1.8 million provision for impairment and leasedt costs was a result of management’s revieauof
portfolio of corporate-owned store locations anel ithlocation of our administrative offices. In aemgtion with our
ongoing evaluation to ensure that each of our gatpeowned stores fit into our long-term growtlatggy, we
closed two of our corporate-owned stores in thetfoguarter of fiscal 2010. We recorded a $0.7iamilprovision
for impairment and lease exit costs related taweefiscal 2010 closures, and a $0.9 million prawisfor
impairment and lease exit costs related to thecagion of our administrative offices. We also clhsme of our
corporate-owned stores in the first quarter ofdi009; this closure was fully accrued in fisca08. The fair
market values were estimated using an expecteémtrealue technique.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net increased $2.7 miltm$2.9 million in fiscal 2010 from $0.2 milliom fiscal
2009. The increase was primarily a result of regugag our 13 percent non-controlling equity invesnt in
Australia immediately prior to obtaining controlthie business, which led to a $1.8 million gainrorestment.
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Additionally, we earned more interest income icdis2010 compared to fiscal 2009 on our increasstt balances.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes increased $32.7 millimn115%, to $61.1 million in fiscal 2010 from $28nillion
in fiscal 2009. In fiscal 2010, our effective tate was 33.3% compared to 32.8% in fiscal 2009.Higleer
effective tax rate was due to the proportional@ase of taxable income in the United States imffi2610 compared
to taxable income in Canada which is taxed atalmter than the US statutory rate combined withdbclining
Canadian Corporate tax rate. We expect this tremhtinue as we expect to generate a higher piiopaf our
future taxable income in the United States.

We have not recorded deferred taxes on undistibegenings and other temporary differences of amadian
subsidiary which are considered to be indefiniteipvested. If management’s intentions with respethese
undistributed earnings and other temporary diffeesnwere to change in the future, deferred taxgsmead to be
provided that could materially impact our finandiesults.

Net Income

Net income increased $63.6 million, or 109%, toX&2nillion in fiscal 2010 from $58.3 million indtal 2009
The increase in net income of $63.6 million in k2010 was primarily due to a $171.9 million irese in gross
profit resulting from sales growth at existing autlitional corporate-owned stores opened durirggfi2010 and
increasing traffic on our e-commenaebsite, and a $2.7 million increase in other ineqexpense), net, offset by
increase of $78.0 million in selling, general axddninistrative expenses including provision for inmpeent and
lease exist costs and an increase of $32.7 milligmovision for income taxes.

Comparison of Fiscal 2009 to Fiscal 2008
Net Revenue

Net revenue increased $99.4 million, or 28%, to2k@%nillion in fiscal 2009 from $353.5 million instal
2008. Assuming the average exchange rate betwedbahadian and United States dollars in fiscal 2e@&ined
constant, our net revenue would have increased.@X10ilion, or 29%, in fiscal 2009.

The net revenue increase was primarily the resuttoreased sales at locations in our comparablestase ¢
well as sales from new stores opened. The condtdlialr increase in comparable store sales wasmpvienarily by
the strength of our existing product lines, suctgsstroduction of new products and increasingogauition of the
lululemon athletica brand name.

Our net revenue on a segment basis for fiscal 200iscal 2008 are expressed in dollar amountgedisas
relevant percentages, presented as a percentégf@alaiet revenue below.

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010 an
February 1, 2009

2009 2008 2009 2008

(In thousands) (Percentages
Corporat-owned store $393,45.  $315,54¢ 86.¢ 89.2
Direct to consume 18,257 1,62¢ 4.C 0.5
Other 41,19( 36,31. 9.1 10.2
Net revenue¢ $452,89¢ $353,48¢ 100.C 100.(

Corporate-Owned StoresNet revenue from our corporate-owned stores sagimereased $77.9 million, or
25%, to $393.5 million in fiscal 2009 from $315.4limn in fiscal 2008. The following contributed the
$77.9 million increase in net revenue from our coape-owned stores segment:

* Net revenue from corpore-owned stores we opened during fiscal 2009, anthgdiscal 2008 prior to sales
from such stores becoming part of our comparablestbase, contributed $46.5 million of the incee&tet
new store openings in fiscal 2009 included twoeston Canada and five stores in the United St
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« Comparable store sales increase of 9% inlfi2@9 resulted in a $26.6 million increase toneeenue,
excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuaiso Including the effect of foreign currency fluations,
comparable store sales increased 8%, or $24.Jomiii fiscal 2009

» Net revenue related to gift card breakage contb$2.2 million of the increase. Based on histdigdh card
breakage, we recognize into revenue a portionfotgrd sales for which we estimate redemptioreiate
over the estimated period of redemption. This idekia one-time credit of $1.3 million recordedhe first
quarter of fiscal 2009 related to a change in stinated rate of redemption; a

e The acquisition of two Victoria, British Coluria and one Bellevue, Washington franchise stares i
September 2008 contributed $5.1 million before @mgethe comparative store ba

Direct to Consumer. Net revenue from our direct to consumer segmeaneased $16.6 million, or 1,020%, to
$18.3 million in fiscal 2009 from $1.6 million instal 2008. The increase in net revenue from awctto consumi
segment was primarily due to the launch of our mioerce in fiscal 2009, which contributed $16.8 imillin net
revenues. This increase was offset by decreasetephte revenue, which shifted to e-commerce, & 0llion.

Other. Net revenue from our other segment increasedfiflion, or 13%, to $41.2 million in fiscal 2009
from $36.3 million in fiscal 2008. An increase intket revenues of $5.0 million contributed to therease in net
revenues from our other segment. This increasetietarevenue resulted from a $3.2 million incremseevenue at
existing outlet locations and a $1.8 million incgean net revenue from two new outlet location$ tipeened in fisci
2009. New and existing wholesale accounts coneib®#.4 million to the increase, and increased shom sales
revenue contributed $1.6 million. The increasedghrevenue from our other segment was offset bypteary store
locations opened in fiscal 2008 but not fiscal 208Bich had contributed $3.2 million, and decreasacehouse
revenue due to fewer warehouse sales in fiscal 206%ared to fiscal 2008, of $0.6 million. $2.2 il of
franchise net revenue shifted to the corporate-ovateres segment when we acquired two franchisessio
Victoria, British Columbia and one franchise stor@ellevue, Washington.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $44.0 million, or 25%, t@3$2A million in fiscal 2009 from $179.1 million fiscal
2008. The increase in gross profit was driven fpiaity by increased net revenues which ultimatelsutted in an
increased gross profit.

The increase in gross profit was partially offsgircreased fixed costs, such as occupancy anedegion,
increased costs related to our design, produdtistrjbution and merchandising departments, as agihcreased
discounts, shrinkage and other as a result of &s&@ sales volume.

Gross profit, as a percentage of net revenue,assgnargin, decreased 140 basis points, to 49.3cad 200¢
from 50.7% in fiscal 2008. The decrease in grosggmaesulted from:

 unfavorable foreign exchange differences @ k8sis points on product costs, depreciation, gexacy and
production, design, merchandising and distributiepartments as a result of the weakening Canadiar;c

» adecrease in corporate-owned stores, frameinid other product margins, which contributedaetese in
gross margin of 60 basis points as a result okmsed direct product costs, markdowns and discoamd

 an increase in wri-downs and other of 10 basis poir

This was partially offset by a decrease in expenslased to our production, design, merchandisimt) a
distribution departments, relative to the increaseet revenue, which had a leveraging effect asgmargin and
contributed an increase of 60 basis points.

Our costs of goods sold in fiscal 2009 and fis€@&included $0.8 million and $0.8 million, respeely, of
stock-based compensation expense.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses, distuthe provision for impairment and lease ex#tep
increased $14.0 million, or 11%, to $136.5 milliarfiscal 2009 from $122.5 million in fiscal 2008s a percentage
of net revenue, selling, general and administraxgenses decreased 460 basis points, to 30.1fgcah 2009 fron
34.7% in fiscal 2008. Of the $14.0 million increaseselling, general and administrative expenses:

e an increase in administrative costs relatesutodirect to consumer segment, primarily assediatith the
launch in fiscal 2009 of our nee-commercewebsite, of $5.6 million

» an increase of $3.8 million primarily assoethtvith employment-related legal matters, professifees and
legal costs associated with ongoing litigation)Judag legal settlement cost

¢ an increase in employee compensation, inctudptions expense, of $2.7 million related to améase in
employee head count in our corporate-owned staagiins and store support center, as our net revenu
growth recovered in the latter half of fiscal 2089,well as increased store labor hours due toiogen
additional corporate-owned stores, partially offsgtr one-time charge in fiscal 2008 related to the
acceleration of performan-based award:

 an increase of $2.3 million related to higher mamagnt incentiv-based compensatio

e anincrease in credit card fees of $1.9 milliesulting from increased sales volume at corparvained store
and the addition ce-commercesales;

* an increase in depreciation costs of $1.8onilprimarily related to IT projects placed in wsewell as the
retirement of fixed assets no longer in L

 an increase in other costs of $0.7 million as altes the expansion of our busine
» an increase in distribution costs of $0.5 milliaaaresult of increased sales volume;

* an increase in occupancy costs of $0.4 milfelated to our other segment as we opened additorilet
locations in fiscal 200¢

These amounts were partially offset by a decraa#ieei provision for impairment and lease exit co$ts
$4.0 million, and a decrease in discretionary spendf $1.7 million related to travel, meals andegtainment and
supplies.

Our selling, general and administrative expensdis@al 2009 and fiscal 2008 included $4.8 milleomd
$5.8 million, respectively, of stock-based compéngaexpense.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased $30.0 million58%o, to $86.5 million in fiscal 2009 from $56.6 hah in
fiscal 2008. The increase of $30.0 million in inafmom operations for fiscal 2009 was primarily doea
$44.0 million increase in gross profit resultingrfr sales by additional corporate-owned stores apdngng fiscal
2009 and fiscal 2008, offset by an increase of Gillion in selling, general and administrativgperses including
provision for impairment and lease exit costs.

On a segment basis, we determine income from apesatvithout taking into account our general cogter
expenses such as corporate employee costs, toqpariges and corporate rent. For purposes of ouageament’s
analysis of our financial results, we have allodaeme general product expenses to our corporategstores
segment. For example, all expenses related toroguption, design, merchandise and distributioradmpents hav
been allocated to this segment.

Income from operations (before general corporapeesges) for fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 are express
dollar amounts as well as percentages, presentegeascentage of net revenue of their respectiesating
segments below.
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Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010 and
February 1, 2009

2009 2008 2009 2008
(In thousands) (Percentages)
Corporat-owned store $121,61: $ 94,867 30.¢ 30.1
Direct to consume 6,28¢ 665 34.4 40.7
Other 10,84¢ 11,55(  26.Z 31.¢
Income from operations before general corporateesg $138,74° $107,08(

Corporate-owned StoresNet income from our corporate-owned stores segmereased $26.7 million, or
28%, to $121.6 million for fiscal 2009 from $94.9llian for fiscal 2008 primarily due to an increasecorporate-
owned stores product margin of $45.9 million, whiedis offset by an increase of $11.6 million in qancy and
depreciation costs, $4.5 million in store emploggpenses, $1.5 million in administrative expenses$L.5 million
in other store expenses.

Direct to Consumer. Net income from our direct to consumer segmetreiased $5.6 million, or 849%, to
$6.3 million in fiscal 2009 from $0.7 million indtal 2008. This increase was primarily due to suath of our
e-commerce in fiscal 2009. Our direct to consuna@@sssegment is an increasingly substantial pastiobusiness
and we expect income from operations to continuadease in future years as a result of this gnowt

Other. Net income from our other segment decreasedriidlion, or 6%, to $10.8 million in fiscal 2009 fno
$11.6 million in fiscal 2008. This decrease wagipHy a result of franchise income from operatiais$2.2 million
shifting to corporatewned stores income from operations when we aagjtive franchise stores in Victoria, Briti
Columbia and one franchise store in Bellevue, Wagtbin. The decrease was partially offset by in@dascome
from operations from our wholesale channel, showrooutlet and remaining franchise locations. Opgmew
franchise stores is not a significant part of ogamterm store growth strategy, and as such westlexpect income
from operations from our franchises to grow in fetyears as a result of adding franchise locatimtseased outle
wholesale, and showroom income from operationsritirted to the remaining difference.

Income from operations also includes general caeogxpenses. General corporate expenses increased
$1.7 million, or 3%, to $52.2 million in fiscal 28Grom $50.5 million in fiscal 2008 primarily due &n increase in
expenses related to our head office growth of $illlon and an increase in depreciation and amatitin expense
of $1.8 million, offset by a decrease in provisfonimpairment and lease exit costs of $4.0 milléord a decrease
other corporate expenses of $1.2 million. Genesgda@rate expenses are expected to continue tcaiseria future
years as we grow our overall business and requireésed efforts at our head office to supporicogporat-ownec
stores, franchises and other segments.

Our $0.4 million provision for impairment and leaset costs was a result of management’s revieauof
portfolio of corporate-owned store locations. Imgmction with our ongoing evaluation to ensure #ech of our
corporate-owned stores fit into our long-term giowstrategy, we closed one of our corporate-ownastin the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. This closure wasyudlccrued in fiscal 2008. We also closed one ofcouporate-owned
stores in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Weorded a $0.7 million charge related to this closwigich included i
$0.5 million asset impairment and a $0.2 milliocraal for lease exit costs. The fair market valwese estimated
using an expected present value technique.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net decreased $0.7 mithio80%, to $0.2 million in fiscal 2009 from $0.8llion in
fiscal 2008. Of the $0.7 million decrease in otileome (expense), net:

* $0.5 million resulted from a decrease in iestlincome due to lower interest rates offeredasic
balances; an

+ $0.1 million resulted from an increase in interegiense
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Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes increased $11.5 millmmG8%, to $28.4 million in fiscal 2009 from $16r8llion
in fiscal 2008. In fiscal 2009, our effective tater was 32.8% compared to 29.4% in fiscal 2008.|3Wer effective
tax rate in fiscal 2008 was due to the releas@@f/aluation allowance against U.S. loss carry &vds in fiscal
2008. We generated taxable income in the UnitetbSia fiscal 2009 which contributed to the inceeasthe
effective tax rate.

During fiscal 2009 an adjustment was made to defetax assets and additional paiczapital in the amount ¢
$4,963 relating to windfall recorded in the yeadesh February 1, 2009 in excess of taxes payablecoffeluded
that the adjustment was not material to the fin@irgtatements.

Net Income

Net income increased $18.9 million, or 48%, to $58illion in fiscal 2009 from $39.4 million in fisd 2008.
The increase in net income of $18.9 million in &R009 was a result of an increase in gross pobdfd4.0 million
increase in gross profit resulting from sales bgitiohal corporate-owned stores opened during 2089 and
fiscal 2008, offset by an increase of $14.0 milliorselling, general and administrative expensekiding provision
for impairment and lease exit costs, an increasd df5 million in provision for income taxes andecrease of
$0.7 million in other income (expense), net.

Seasonality

In fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009, and fiscal 2008, weognized a significant amount of our net revenugaéfourth
guarter due to significant increases in sales duitie holiday season. We recognized 36%, 39%, 8#@df our full
year gross profit in the fourth quarter in fisc@llD, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively.testhe fact that w
have experienced a significant amount of our negmae and gross profit in the fourth quarter of fimoal year, we
believe that the true extent of the seasonalityyctical nature of our business may have been beel@ved by our
rapid growth to date. As our expected growth riders, we believe that we will experience fourth qaagross
profits as a percentage of full year gross prafitdigh, or higher, than in the current year.

The level of our working capital reflects the sawsiy of our business. We expect inventory, actepayable
and accrued expenses to be higher in the thirdamth quarters in preparation for the holidayiseliseason.
Because our products are sold primarily throughsbores, order backlog is not material to our bessn

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are our currentamees of cash and cash equivalents, cash flows fro
operations and borrowings available under our rgmglcredit facility. Our primary cash needs arpita
expenditures for opening new stores and remodelkigling stores, making information technology syst
enhancements and funding working capital requirésé@ash and cash equivalents in excess of ousraecheld
in interest bearing accounts with financial ingtgos.

As of January 30, 2011, our working capital (exalgdcash and cash equivalents) was a deficit of4safllion
and our cash and cash equivalents were $316.2milli
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The following table summarizes our net cash flowsv/gled by and used in operating, investing andrfaing
activities for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31. February 1,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Total cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: $179,99! $117,96( $ 46,43¢
Investing activities (42,839 (16,307 (46,795
Financing activitie: 13,69¢ (2,649 13,46(
Effect of exchange rate chang 5,85¢ 3,772 (8,857)
Increase in cash and cash equival $156,71. $102,77¢ $ 4,252

Operating Activities

Operating Activitiezonsist primarily of net income adjusted for certaon-cash items, including depreciation
and amortization, deferred income taxes, realizédsgand losses on property and equipment, stos&eba
compensation expense and the effect of the changem-cash working capital items, principally acots
receivable, inventories, accounts payable and edoeMpenses.

In fiscal 2010, cash provided by operating actsgtincreased $62.0 million, to $180.0 million comegito casl
provided by operating activities of $118.0 millionfiscal 2009. The $62.0 million increase was ity a result of
increased net income as we expanded our store dragg;rease in items not affecting cash and aeetease in the
change in other working capital balances. Themaease in items not affecting cash was primatily th an
increase in depreciation and amortization relatenlr increased store base, a net decrease inetbfacome taxes
and an increase in stock-based compensation. Tildeneease in the change in other working capékdrres was
primarily due to an increase in income taxes payahd an increase in other current liabilities ltesyfrom a
increased accrued compensation and unredeemezagiftiabilities.

Depreciation and amortizatiorelate almost entirely to leasehold improvemenisjifure and fixtures,
computer hardware and software, equipment and kshiic our stores and other corporate buildings.

Depreciation and amortization increased $3.8 nmiltim $24.6 million in fiscal 2010 from $20.8 millian fiscal
2009. Depreciation for our corporate-owned stoggrsnt was $16.3 million, $13.7 million, and $10.8iom in
fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, resp&dyivThere was no depreciation for our direct tostoner segment
in fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009, and fiscal 2008. Dejmion related to corporate activities was $8.8iom, $7.1 million
and $5.3 million fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 and fis2@08, respectively. We have not allocated anyreldption to our
other segment as these amounts to date have bewténal.

Investing Activities

Investing Activitieselate entirely to capital expenditures, investraémtand advances to franchises, and
acquisitions of franchises.

Cash used in investing activities increased $26lkom to $42.8 million in fiscal 2010 from $16million in
fiscal 2009. This increase in cash used in invgddictivities represents an increase in the numbeew stores
opened in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009, elé & our reacquisition of franchised stores irsthalia and
Canada. Capital expenditures for our corporate-dvateres segment were $14.5 million in fiscal 2@tich
included $7.0 million to open 14 corporate-owneaatest and $10.2 million in fiscal 2009 which incldde
$4.8 million to open ten corporate-owned store® fidmaining capital expenditures for our corpomtered stores
segment in each period were for ongoing store bifhment. Capital expenditures for our direct tostomer
segment were $4.6 million and $nil in fiscal 201@ discal 2009, respectively. Capital expenditusdated to
corporate activities and administration were $Iition and $5.3 million in fiscal 2010 and fisc2009,
respectively. The capital expenditures in eachogfior corporate activities and administration wiere
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improvements at our head office and other corpdratiglings as well as investments in informatiochteology and
business systems.

Capital expenditures are expected to range bet®&&0.0 million to $115.0 million in fiscal 2011 dluding
approximately $15.0 million to $19.0 million for m@ximately 25 to 30 new stores and the remaineléeating the
store support center purchase, renovation cajpitaXisting stores, information technology enhaneets and other
corporate activities.

Financing Activities

Financing Activitiesconsist primarily of cash received on the exerofsgtock options and excess tax benefits
from stock-based compensation. Cash provided fanéimg activities increased $16.3 million, to cpsbvided of
$13.7 million in fiscal 2010 from cash used of $&hilion in fiscal 2009.

We believe that our cash from operations and bdmgsvavailable to us under our revolving creditlfgcwill
be adequate to meet our liquidity needs and cagifaénditure requirements for at least the nexn@dths. Our
cash from operations may be negatively impacted dgcrease in demand for our products as welleasttier
factors described in “Risk Factordt’ addition, we may make discretionary capital ioy@ments with respect to ¢
stores, distribution facility, headquarters, orasthystems, which we would expect to fund throunghissuance of
debt or equity securities or other external finaga@ources to the extent we were unable to fund sapital
expenditures out of our cash from operations.

Revolving Credit Facility

In April 2007, we entered into an uncommitted sesigcured demand revolving credit facility with RbBank
of Canada. The revolving credit facility provideswith available borrowings in an amount up to CRO$ million
The revolving credit facility must be repaid inlfah demand and is available by way of prime laanSanadian
currency, U.S. base rate loans in U.S. currenaykéra’ acceptances, LIBOR based loans in U.S. oayrer Euro
currency, letters of credit in Canadian currencWd. currency and letters of guaranty in Canadianency or
U.S. currency. The revolving credit facility beamgerest on the outstanding balance in accordarittetiae
following: (i) prime rate for prime loans; (ii) U.Base rate for U.S. based loans; (iii) a fee 823% per annum on
bankers’ acceptances; (iv) LIBOR plus 1.125% peuanfor LIBOR based loans; (v) a 1.125% annuaféee
letters of credit; and (vi) a 1.125% annual feelédters of guaranty. Both lululemon usa inc. andlemon FC USA
inc., Inc. provided Royal Bank of Canada with gméeas and postponements of claims in the amounts of
CDN#$20.0 million with respect to lululemon athleticanada inc.’s obligations under the revolvinglitracility.
The revolving credit facility is also secured byaflour present and after acquired personal ptgpercluding all
intellectual property and all of the outstandingr&s we own in our subsidiaries. As of January8Q]1, aside from
the letters of credit and guarantees, we had Bfibirrowings outstanding under this credit facility

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Leases. We lease certain corporate-owned store locat&tosage spaces, building and equipment under non-
cancelable operating leases. Our leases geneeallyihitial terms of between five and 10 years, geerally can
be extended only in five-year increments, if at@lir leases expire at various dates between 20d 2@21,
excluding extensions at our option. A substantiehher of our leases for corporate-owned store mesrinclude
renewal options and certain of our leases incled¢ eéscalation clauses, rent holidays and leasebotdl
incentives, none of which are reflected in thedeiihg table. Most of our leases for corporate-owsiede premises
also include contingent rental payments based les salume, the impact of which also are not refidan the
following table. The following table summarizes @antractual arrangements as of January 30, 20it1the timing
and effect that such commitments are expectedue ba our liquidity and cash flows in future peod

Payments Due by Fiscal Yea

Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter
(In thousands)
Operating Leases (minimum re $248,99¢ $36,95¢ $36,32¢ $35,69¢ $35,277 $32,277 $72,46¢

Franchise AgreementsAs of January 30, 2011, we operated four starélse United States through franchise
agreements. Under the terms of our franchise agretmnunless otherwise approved by us, franchisees
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are permitted to sell only lululemon athletica prot, are required to purchase their inventory ftmywhich we
sell at a slight premium to our cost, and are meglio pay us a royalty based on a percentagesofdloss sales.
Under some of our franchise agreements, we havahifiey to repurchase franchises at a price etjual specified
percentage of trailing 12-month sales.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We enter into documentary letters of credit tolfede the international purchase of merchandise.al$o enter
into standby letters of credit to secure certainwfobligations, including insurance programs duties related to
import purchases. As of January 30, 2011, lettecsaalit and letters of guarantee totaling $1.9iarilhave been
issued.

Other than these standby letters of credit, weatdave any off-balance sheet arrangements, inezdgmin
special purpose entities or undisclosed borroworg#ebt. In addition, we have not entered into denivative
contracts or synthetic leases.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl
requires management to make estimates and assasf@iedicting future events is inherently an imjze activity
and, as such, requires the use of judgment. Actisalts may vary from estimates in amounts that beagnaterial t
the financial statements. An accounting policyesmed to be critical if it requires an accountiatineate to be
made based on assumptions about matters thatgng kbincertain at the time the estimate is madd,ifadifferent
estimates that reasonably could have been usdthages in the accounting estimates that are rellydileely to
occur periodically, could materially impact our sofidated financial statements.

We believe that the following critical accountinglipies affect our more significant estimates amdgments
used in the preparation of our consolidated finarstatements:

Revenue RecognitionNet revenue is comprised of corporatened store net revenue, direct to consumer
through_www.lululemon.comnd phone sales, and other net revenue, whichdes]dranchise royalties as well as
sales of products to franchisees, sales to wheesadounts, warehouse sales and sales from conupengted
showrooms, in each case, net of an estimated aflosvéor sales returns and discounts. Sales tomessothrough
corporate-owned stores and company-operated shaverace recognized at the point of sale, net ofséimated
allowance for sales returns. Direct to consumearssate recognized when goods are shipped and tiatiés
reasonably assured, net of an estimated allowamcsafes returns. Other net revenue related taffiaa royalties
are recognized when earned, in accordance wittethes of the franchise/license agreements. Rogadtie based «
a percentage of the franchisees’ sales and recadjmihen those sales occur. Other net revenue ddlatearehouse
sales is recognized when these sales occur. Ambilietd to customers for shipping and handlingr@eognized at
the time of shipment.

Sales are reported on a net revenue basis, whadmgputed by deducting from our gross sales theuataf
sales taxes, actual product returns received, digs@nd an amount established for anticipated satarns. Our
estimated allowance for sales returns is a subgectitical estimate that has a direct impact groreed net revenue.
This allowance is calculated based on a histogctdal returns, estimated future returns and ajmifggant future
known or anticipated events. Consideration of tHastors results in an estimated allowance forssedéurns. Our
standard terms for retail sales limit returns tpragimately 14 days after the sale of the merctemdtor our
wholesale sales, we allow returns from our whokesaktomers if properly requested and approved|@&ree
discounts are classified as a reduction of netmaee

Revenues from our gift cards are recognized whedeteed for payment, or upon redemption. Outstanding
customer balances are included in “Unredeemedaitt liability” on the consolidated balance she&tgre are no
expiration dates on our gift cards, and lululemogsinot charge any service fees that cause a dextéoncustome
balances.

While we will continue to honor all gift cards pesdged for payment, management may determine taghdod
of redemption to be remote for certain card balamies to, among other things, long periods of iaigt In these
circumstances, to the extent management deterrttiees is no requirement for remitting card

45




Table of Contents

balances to government agencies under unclaimgeégyolaws, card balances may be recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations in “Net raeen

Accounts ReceivableAccounts receivable primarily arise out of satesvholesale accounts, sales of products
and royalties on sales owed to us by our francheses landlord deferred lease inducements. Thevatice for
doubtful accounts represents management’s bestastiof probable credit losses in accounts recksvalnis
allowance is established based on the specificigistances associated with the credit risk of theivable, the size
of the accounts receivable balance, aging of adsaeceivable balances and our collection histodsather
relevant information. The allowance for doubtfutaants is reviewed on a monthly basis. Receivadnlesharged
to the allowance when management believes the ateall not be recovered.

Inventory. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and me&riCost is determined using weighted-average
costs. For finished goods, market is defined asewaizable value, and for raw materials, marketefned as
replacement cost. Cost of inventories includes isttégpn and production costs including raw mateaad labor, as
applicable, and all costs incurred to deliver ineeynto our distribution centers including freighgpn-refundable
taxes, duty and other landing costs.

We periodically review our inventories and makevsimns as necessary to appropriately value olesolet
damaged goods. The amount of the provision is dquak difference between the book cost of themery and it
estimated market value based upon assumptions aliore demands, selling prices and market corustitn
addition, as part of inventory valuations, we pdevfor inventory shrinkage based on historicaldeefiom actual
physical inventories. Inventory shrinkage estimatesmade to reduce the inventory value for lostaolen items.
We perform physical inventory counts throughoutybar and adjust the shrink provision accordintylyfiscal
2010, we wrote-off $1.0 million of inventory andfiacal 2009 we wrote-off $0.8 million of inventory

Property and Equipment.Property and equipment are recorded at costlemsmulated depreciation. Direct
internal and external costs related to softwarel fiseinternal purposes which are incurred durtmg application
development stage or for upgrades that add furaditgrare capitalized. All other costs relatedriternal use
software are expensed as incurred. Leasehold irmprents are amortized on a straight-line basis ineelesser of
the length of the lease, without considerationgifan renewal periods and the estimated usefublifdne assets, up
to a maximum of five years. All other property aagliipment are amortized using the declining balanethod as

follows:

Furniture and fixture 20%
Computer hardware and softwz 30%
Equipment and vehicle 30%

We recognize a liability for the fair value of ajtéred asset retirement obligation, or ARO, whethsu
obligation is incurred. Our AROs are primarily asisted with leasehold improvements which, at the: @ lease,
we are contractually obligated to remove in ordezamply with the lease agreement. At the inceptiba lease
with such conditions, we record an ARO liabilitydaa corresponding capital asset in an amount équbé
estimated fair value of the obligation. The lialyilis estimated based on a number of assumptiaonsrieg
management’s judgment, including store closingg;agist inflation rates and discount rates, amtdseted to its
projected future value over time. The capitalizesed is depreciated using the convention for dégiien of
leasehold improvement assets. Upon satisfactiotheoARO conditions, any difference between the mded ARO
liability and the actual retirement costs incurigdecognized as an operating gain or loss in tmsalidated
statements of operations.

We recognize a liability for a cost associated witlease exit activity when such obligation is imed. A lease
exit activity is measured initially at its fair wad in the period in which the liability is incurréd/e estimate fair
value at the cease-use date of its operating lessthe remaining lease rentals, reduced by estthsatblease
rentals that could be reasonably obtained for thpgrty, even where we does not intend to enterargublease.
Estimating the cost of certain lease exit costslvaes subjective assumptions, including the timeatld take to
sublease the leased location and the related jmitsnblease income. The estimated accruals f@etbests could |
significantly affected if future experience diffdrem that used in the initial estimate. Lease ea#ts are included
in provision for impairment and lease exit costs.
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Long-Lived Assets.Long-lived assets, including intangible assethinite useful lives, held for use are
evaluated for impairment when the occurrence oh&ver changes in circumstances indicates thatahging valus
of the assets may not be recoverable as measureahfyyaring their net book value to the estimatédréucash
flows generated by their use and eventual dispositimpaired assets are recorded at fair valueyehied
principally by the estimated future cash flows eotpd from their use and eventual disposition. Rédns in asset
values resulting from impairment valuations areggtzed in income in the period that the impairment
determined. Long-lived assets, including intangddsets with finite useful lives, held for sale emgorted at the
lower of the carrying value of the asset and falue less cost to sell. Any write-downs to refleit value less
selling cost is recognized in income when the assaassified as held for sale. Gains or losseassets held for
sale and asset dispositions are included in pavifir impairment and lease exit costs.

Income Taxes.We follow the liability method with respect tocazinting for income taxes. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are determined basdadmporary differences between the carrying amoamtsthe tax
basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred incomeatsets and liabilities are measured using engaxechtes that are
expected to be in effect when these differencesuatieipated to reverse. Deferred income tax assetseduced by
a valuation allowance, if based on the weight d@ilable positive and negative evidence, it is nlikedy than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assdtsiot be realized.

The recognition of a deferred income tax asseaget upon several assumptions and managementstseca
including current and proposed tax legislationyent and anticipated taxable income, utilizatiopviously
unrealized non-operating loss carry forwards agdlegory reviews of tax filings. Given the judgmeaind
estimates required and the sensitivity of the tedolthe significant assumptions used, we belibeeaccounting
estimates used in relation to the recognition ¢éided income tax assets are subject to measurameattainty an
are susceptible to a material change if the unghgylgssumptions change.

For financial reporting purposes, we generally ffevaxes at the rate applicable for the appropie
jurisdiction. Because our present intention isdiovest the unremitted earnings in our foreign apens, we do nc
provide U.S. income taxes on unremitted earningsraign subsidiaries. Management periodically ssse the
need to utilize these unremitted earnings to fieamar foreign operations. This assessment is basedsh flow
projections that are the result of estimates afreiproduction, fiscal requirements by tax jurisidic of our
operations and operational and fiscal objectivetakyjurisdiction for our operations. Such estinsadee inherently
imprecise since many assumptions utilized in tleh dbbw projections are subject to revision in theire.

We file income tax returns in the United Statesp&a and various foreign and state jurisdictions.ané
subject to income tax examination by tax authaitieall jurisdictions from our inception to da@ur policy is to
recognize interest expense and penalties relatieddme tax matters as tax expense. At Januar@®0L,, we do nc
have any significant accruals for interest relatednrecognized tax benefits or tax penalties. iB@rcompany
transfer pricing policies will be subject to auditsvarious foreign tax jurisdictions. Although Wwelieve that our
intercompany transfer pricing policies and tax poss are reasonable, the final determination oftadits or
potential tax disputes may be materially differieatn that which is reflected in our income tax psiens and
accruals.

Goodwill and Intangible Assetsintangible assets are recorded at cost. Non-ctitigpeagreements are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their eatad useful life of five years. Reacquired franehights are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their eatad useful lives of 10 years. Goodwill represéimisexcess of the
purchase price over the fair market value of idiadtie net assets acquired and is not amortizedd@&il and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives gsted for impairment annually or more frequenthew an event or
circumstance indicates that goodwill or indefiniseful live intangible assets might be impaired. e our best
estimates and judgment based on available evidarmmnducting the impairment testing. When theyiag amoun
exceeds the fair value, an impairment loss is neizegl in an amount equal to the excess of the icaymnalue over
its fair market value.

Stock-Based CompensatioWe account for stock-based compensation usinfathgalue method. The fair
value of awards granted is estimated at the dadeaoit and recognized as employee compensatiomsem a
straight-line basis over the requisite servicegabwith the offsetting credit to additional paidaapital. Our
calculation of stock-based compensation requirde usake a number of complex and subjective eséisnand
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assumptions, including future forfeitures, stock@wolatility, expected life of the options andated tax effects.
The estimation of stock awards that will ultimatedst requires judgment, and to the extent actsllts differ fron
our estimates, such amounts will be recorded asraulative adjustment in the period estimates arised. We
consider several factors when estimating expeaddifures, such as types of awards, size of ogtader group
and anticipated employee retention. Actual resukty differ substantially from these estimates. Expe volatility
of the stock is based on our review of companiebelieve of similar growth and maturity and our pgeup in the
industry in which we do business because we dtvae¢ sufficient historical volatility data for oawn stock. The
expected term of options granted is derived froendhtput of the option valuation model and represtre period
of time that options granted are expected to bstantling. In the future, as we gain historical datavolatility in
our own stock and the actual term employees holdptions, expected volatility and expected terny wizange
which could substantially change the grant-datevaiue of future awards of stock options and yudiiely, the
expense we record. For awards with service an@didopnance conditions, the total amount of compgmisa
expense to be recognized is based on the numlaevastls that are expected to vest and is adjustediézt those
awards that do ultimately vest. For awards wittfggenance conditions, we recognize the compensatipense
over the requisite service period as determined tange of probability weighted outcomes. For awavilh market
and or performance conditions, all compensatiorergp is recognized if the underlying market orgrentince
conditions are fulfilled. Certain employees ardtirt to share-based awards from one of our prai@pockholders.
These awards are accounted for as employee comjmenegpense in accordance with the above notedies!

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Stand&aksrd (or FASB) issued Accounting Standards Up@ate
ASU) 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclsiliopic 820: Improving Disclosures about Fair \éalu
Measurements (or ASU 2010-06). ASU 2010-06 requireg disclosures regarding transfers in and othef
Level 1 and 2 and activity within Level 3 fair valmeasurements and clarifies existing disclosurégpats and
valuation techniques for Level 2 and 3 fair valueasurements. The new disclosures and clarificatibpgisting
disclosures are effective for interim and Annuap®&ting periods beginning after December 15, 2@3@gept for thi
disclosure of activity within Level 3 fair value murements, which is effective for fiscal yearsiheigg after
December 15, 2010, and for interim reporting pesinithin those years. We adopted the new disclesefifective
January 31, 2010, except for the disclosure o¥/igtivithin Level 3 fair value measurements. Thevéle3
disclosures are effective for us at the beginniifigsoal 2011. The adoption of ASU 2010-06 did hate a material
impact, and is not expected to have a material @@ the disclosures within our consolidated iitial statement

In February 2010, the FASB amended Accounting StedsdCodification (or ASC) Topic 835ubsequent
Events(or ASC 855). Under the amended guidance, SEGfdes no longer required to disclose the date girou
which subsequent events have been evaluated imaltigissued and revised financial statementss Giidance
was effective immediately and we adopted thesenegwirements in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.

In April 2010, the FASB amended ASC Topic A8mpensatiorfor ASC 718) to clarify that a share-based
payment award with an exercise price denominatékdrcurrency of a market in which a substantiatipo of the
entity’s equity securities trades should not besmigred to contain a market, performance or sexcaocglition.
Therefore, an entity should not classify such aaravas a liability if it otherwise qualifies foradsification in
equity. This guidance is effective for interim aamthual periods beginning on or after December @502nd is to
be applied prospectively. We have determined tloptioh of the amendment will not have a materigdact on our
consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that magdnt our financial position due to adverse chatgésancial
market prices and rates. Our market risk exposupeimarily a result of fluctuations in interestasiand foreign
currency exchange rates. We do not hold or issuanfiial instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange RiskWe currently generate a significant portion of nat revenue in Canada.
The reporting currency for our consolidated finahstatements is the U.S. dollar. Historically, operations were
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based largely in Canada. As of January 30, 201Jgpeeated 44 stores in Canada. As a result, we bese
impacted by changes in exchange rates and maygdeetad materially for the foreseeable future. As@mmgnize
net revenue from sales in Canada in Canadian dplad the U.S. dollar has weakened during fisg&02it has ha
a positive impact on our Canadian operating resydts translation of those results into U.S. dslfar the purpost
of consolidation. However, the gain in net revemaes partially offset by higher cost of sales arghbr selling,
general and administrative expenses that are geddraCanadian dollars. A 10% depreciation inrtative value
of the Canadian dollar compared to the U.S. deliauld have resulted in lost income from operatiohs
approximately $11.3 million in fiscal 2010 and ampymately $11.2 million in fiscal 2009. To the emtehe ratio
between our net revenue generated in Canadiarrslollereases as compared to our expenses gengr&adadian
dollars, we expect that our results of operatioilsh& further impacted by changes in exchangestaieportion of
our net revenue is generated in Australia. A 10¥@reldation in the relative value of the Australdwoilar compared
to the U.S. dollar would have resulted in lost imeofrom operations of approximately $0.1 milliorfiscal 2010.
We do not currently hedge foreign currency fludmrad. However, in the future, in an effort to mittg losses
associated with these risks, we may at times émt@derivative financial instruments, although kave not
historically done so. We do not, and do not intemdengage in the practice of trading derivativeusigies for profit.

Interest Rate Risk.In April 2007, we entered into an uncommittedigsesecured demand revolving credit
facility with Royal Bank of Canada. The revolvingedit facility provides us with available borrowm@ an amour
up to CDN$20.0 million. Because our revolving ctedctility bears interest at a variable rate, w# k¢ exposed to
market risks relating to changes in interest ratege have a meaningful outstanding balance. A3aofuary 30,
2011, we had no outstanding borrowings under owlvéng facility. We had small outstanding balancesler our
revolving facility during fiscal 2010 as we buithientory and working capital for the holiday sedliseason, but we
do not believe we are significantly exposed to geann interest rate risk. We currently do not gjegia any intere:
rate hedging activity and currently have no intemtio do so in the foreseeable future. Howevethénfuture, if we
have a meaningful outstanding balance under owlvigg facility, in an effort to mitigate lossessagiated with
these risks, we may at times enter into derivdiin@ncial instruments, although we have not histlly done so.
These may take the form of forward sales contrapSpn contracts, and interest rate swaps. Weaotioamd do not
intend to, engage in the practice of trading deiressecurities for profit.

Inflation

Inflationary factors such as increases in the abstr product and overhead costs may adversetgtadfur
operating results. Although we do not believe th#iation has had a material impact on our finahpiasition or
results of operations to date, a high rate of figtain the future may have an adverse effect arability to
maintain current levels of gross margin and sellgeneral and administrative expenses as a pegeenfaet
revenue if the selling prices of our products dbinorease with these increased costs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of &rhubn athletica inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzgasheets and the related consolidated statenfents o
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows@néfairly, in all material respects, the finahgiasition of
lululemon athletica inc. at January 30, 2011 amiidey 31, 2010, and the results of its operationsits cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endedalgr80, 2011 in conformity with accounting prirleip generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addjtin our opinion, the financial statement schequkesents fairly
in all material respects, the information set fdahbrein when read in conjunction with the relatedsolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Camp maintained, in all material respects, effeciiternal control
over financial reporting as of January 30, 201%glleon criteria establishedlimernal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for thesediabstatements and financial statement schedaite, f
maintaining effective internal control over finaalkcieporting and for its assessment of the effeciss of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Mamagent’s Report on Internal Control over FinanciapBrting
under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to expressnigms on these financial statements, on the firdustatement
schedule, and on the Company’s internal controt &mancial reporting based on our audits (whichreviategrated
audits for the years ended January 30, 2011 anchdp31, 2010). We conducted our audits in accarelavith the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requitevtk plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable asser@mout whether the financial statements aredfesaterial
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects.
Our audits of the financial statements included@ring, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusats and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessgccounting principles used and significaninesties made by
management, and evaluating the overall financékstent presentation. Our audit of internal corakar financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding trimal control over financial reporting, assesshgrisk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evatu#imdesign and operating effectiveness of interoratrol based
on the assessed risk. Our audits also includedmeirig such other procedures as we considered sageis the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdkepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fapeto the maintenance of records that, in redsengetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvule reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nacesgarmit preparation of financial statementsd@cordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, BC

March 16, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 30 January 31
2011 2010
(Amounts in thousands,

except per share amounts)

ASSETS

Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel $ 316,28¢ $ 159,57
Accounts receivabl 9,11¢ 8,23¢
Inventories 57,46¢ 44,07(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 6,40¢ 4,52¢
389,27¢ 216,41(
Property and equipment, r 70,95¢ 61,59:
Goodwill and intangible assets, t 27,11: 8,05(
Deferred income taxe 7,89¢ 15,10
Other nol-current assei 4,062 6,10¢

$ 499,30: $ 307,25t

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 6,65¢ $ 11,02¢
Accrued liabilities 25,26¢ 17,58:¢
Accrued compensation and related expe 16,87: 10,62¢
Income taxes payab 18,39¢ 7,742
Unredeemed gift card liabilit 18,16¢ 11,69¢
85,36¢ 58,67¢

Other nor-current liabilities 19,64¢ 15,47:
105,00¢ 74,15(

Stockholder equity
Undesignated preferred stock, $0.01 par value 0ssb@res authorized, none issued and
outstanding — —
Exchangeable stock, no par value, 30,000 sharesraed, issued and outstanding 17,818 an

19,383 — —
Special voting stock, $0.00001 par value, 30,0@0eshauthorized, issued and outstanding 17
and 19,38:¢ — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares argldg issued and outstanding 53,378 an
51,126 534 511
Additional paic-in capital 179,87( 158,92:
Retained earning 189,65t 67,80¢
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 20,32¢ 5,867
390,38 233,10¢
Non-controlling interes 3,904 —

$ 499,30: $ 307,25¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenue
Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Operating expense

Selling, general and administrative exper
Provision for impairment and lease exit cc

Income from operatior

Other income (expense), r

Income before provision for income tay
Provision for income taxe

Net income from continuing operatio
Net income attributable to n-controlling interes
Net loss from discontinued operatic

Net income attributable to lululemon athletica it

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net basic earnings per sh

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Continuing operation

Discontinued operatior

Net diluted earnings per she

Basic weighte-average number of shares outstan
Diluted weighte-average number of shares outstanc

Fiscal Year Ended

January 30,
2011

January 31
2010

February 1,

2009

(Amounts in thousands,
except per share amounts

$711,70: $452,89¢ $ 353,48
316,75 22981 174,42
394,94 223,08t 179,06
212,78  136,16;  118,09¢

1,772 37¢ 4,40t
180,390 86,54t 56,56
2,88¢ 164 821
183,277  86,71( 57,38t
61,08 _ 2842¢ 16,88
122,190 5828 40,501
35C — —

— — (1,139)
$12184 $ 58,28 $ 39,36
$ 172 $ 08 $ 05¢
— — (0.02)

$ 172 $ 08 $ 057
$ 16¢ $ 08 $ 057
— — (0.02)

$ 16¢ $ 082 $ 05E
70,86(  70,25: 68,711
71,92¢  70,94¢ 70,94

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Special Voting

Exchangeable Stoct Stock Common Stock _ Additional Other Non-
Par Par Par  Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) _Total Interest Total
(Amounts in thousands)
Balance at February 3, 20 20,93t $ — 2093 $ — 46,68t $ 467 $ 136,00t $ (29,839 $ 5,397 $112,03! $ — $112,08!
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to lululemon
athletica inc. 39,36: 39,36: 39,36:
Foreign currency translation adjustm: (16,549 _ (16,549 (16,549
Comprehensive inconr 22,81t 22,81t
Stocl-based compensatic 6,532 6,532 6,532
Excess tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol 12,02« 12,02¢ 12,02«
Common stock issued upon exchange of
exchangeable shar (1,419 — (1419 — 1,41¢ 14 (149) — —
Restricted stock issuan 9 — —
Stock option exercise 2,31( 23 1,412 1,43¢ 1,43€
Balance at February 1, 20 19,517 $ — 19517 $ — 5042 $504$ 15596. $ 9,52¢ $ (11,15:) $154,84: $ — $154,84;
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to lululemon
athletica inc. 58,28: 58,281 58,28:
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 17,01¢ 17,01¢ 17,01¢
Comprehensive incor 75,29¢ 75,29¢
Stock-based compensatic 5,61¢ 5,61¢€ 5,61¢€
Excess tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol (3,85¢) (3,85¢) (3,85¢)
Common stock issued upon exchange of
exchangeable shar (134) — (1349 — 134 1 1) — —
Restricted stock issuan 15 — — — —
Stock option exercise 55E 6 1,20° 1,20¢ 1,20¢
Balance at January 31, 20 19,38: $ — 1938 $ — 5112¢ $511$ 15892 $ 67,80¢ $ 5,861 $233,10¢ $ — $233,10¢
Net income attributable to lululemon
athletica inc. 121,84° 121,847 121,84°
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 14,46. 14,46 14,46:
Comprehensive incor 136,30¢ 136,30¢
Stock-based compensatic 7,27¢ 7,272 7,27%
Excess tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol 7,86° 7,862 7,86%
Common stock issued upon exchange of
exchangeable shar (1,56%) —  (1,56%) — 1,56% 16 (16) — —
Restricted stock issuan 6 — — — —
Stock option exercise 681 7 5,82¢ 5,83¢€ 5,83¢
Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interests recognized on
acquisition 3,55¢ 3,55¢
Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests 35C 35C
Balance at January 30, 20 17,81¢ $ — 17.81¢ $ — 53,37¢ $ 534$ 179,87( $ 189,65t $ 20,32¢ $390,38¢ $ 3,904 $394,29:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31, February 1,
2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activiti

Net income attributable to lululemon athletica i $ 121,84 $ 58,28. $ 39,36:
Net income attributable inor-controllinginterest 35C —
Net loss from discontinued operatic — — (1,139
Net income from continuing operatio 122,19 58,28: 40,50:
Items not affecting cas
Depreciation and amortizatic 24,61« 20,83: 15,82:¢
Stocl-based compensatic 7,27: 5,61¢ 6,53
Provision for impairment and lease exit cc 1,77 37¢ 4,40¢
Derecognition of unredeemed gift card liabil (1,406 (2,189 —
Deferred income taxe 11,23« 387 (6,447
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (7,869 3,85¢ (12,029
Gain on investmer (1,799 — —
Other, including net changes in other -cash balance 23,96¢ 30,79( (3,369
Net cash provided by operating activit— continuing operation 179,99! 117,96( 45,43
Net cash provided by operating activit— discontinued operatior — — 1,00t
179,99! 117,96( 46,43¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of property and equipm (30,35)) (15,49)) (40,530
Investment in and advances to franct — (810 (2,8679)
Acquisition of franchise (12,48 — (3,409

Net cash used in investing activit— continuing operation (42,839 (16,309 (46,795
Net cash used in investing activit— discontinued operatior — —

(42,839 (16,307 (46,79

Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 5,83¢ 1,20¢ 1,43¢
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic 7,86% (3,85§) 12,02
Net cash provided by financing activit— continuing operation 13,69¢ (2,649 13,46(
Net cash provided by financing activiti— discontinued operatior — — —
13,69¢ (2,649 13,46(

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 5,85¢ 3,77: (8,85))
Increase in cash and cash equival 156,71: 102,77¢ 4,252
Cash and cash equivalents from continuing operstioeginning of yee $ 159,57 $ 56,797 $ 52,54¢
Cash and cash equivalents from continuing operstiend of yea $ 316,28 $ 159,57 $ 56,79

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts arglore count information, unless otherwise indicatd)

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Nature of operations

lululemon athletica inc., a Delaware corporatioll(flemon” or “LAI” and, together with its subsidiaries un
the context otherwise requires, the “Company”)ngaged in the design, manufacture and distribudfdmealthy
lifestyle inspired athletic apparel, which is sthidough a chain of corporate-owned and operatel stores, direct
to consumer through e-commerce, independent fraeskind a network of wholesale accounts. The Coytgan
primary markets are Canada, the United States aisttr&dlia, where 44, 78 and 11 corporate-owned store
respectively, were in operation as at January B012There were 133, 110, and 103 corporate-owioedssin
operation as at January 30, 2011, January 31, 200February 1, 2009, respectively.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the financial position, results of operati@and
cash flows of the Company and its subsidiary congsaduring the three-year period ended Januar@®Dl. The
consolidated financial statements have been prdpeiag the U.S. dollar and are presented in aecme with
United States generally accepted accounting phlie€i(fGAAP").

The Company has experienced, and expects to certiinexperience, significant seasonal variationgein
revenue and income from operations. Seasonal iargin revenue are primarily related to increasads of
products during the fourth fiscal quarter, reflegthistorical strength in sales during the holidagison. Historically
seasonal variations in income from operations ten driven principally by increased net revenushénfourth
fiscal quarter.

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday dléselmnuary 31 of the following year, typicallysudting in
a 52 week year, but occasionally giving rise t@dditional week, resulting in a 53 week year. Hi2€4.0, 2009 an
2008 ended on January 30, 2011, January 31, 26tiFebruary 1, 2009, respectively.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of lululemon athletica inc. and its whadyned
subsidiaries. All inter-company balances and tretisas have been eliminated. The results of oparatof
lululemon athletica australia Pty attributablehe hon-controlling interest are presented withinitggand net
income, and are shown separately from the Compaqugty and net income attributable to the Compdimg
results of operations of Lululemon Japan Inc. aesgnted as discontinued operations following tbm@any’s
wind-up of operations in Japan in fiscal 2008.Ha dpinion of management, all adjustments, congjgirimarily of
normal recurring accruals, considered necessary fair presentation of the Company'’s results arations for the
periods reported and of its financial conditiorolshe date of the balance sheet have been included

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on ban#,balances and short-term deposits with original
maturities of less than three months. The Compasyniot experienced any losses related to thesedeslaand
management believes its credit risk to be minimal.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable primarily arise out of salestwmlesale accounts, sales of inventory to ourdnésees,
royalties on sales owed to the Company by its fi@®es and landlord deferred lease inducementsallthweance
for doubtful accounts represents management'sdstishate of probable credit losses in accountsvabke and is
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reviewed monthly. Receivables are written off agathe allowance when management believes thatrttoaint
receivable will not be recovered. As at January280,1, January 31, 2010 and February 1, 2009 tihep@oy
recorded an insignificant allowance for doubtfut@ants.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting of finished goods and raatarials, are stated at the lower of cost and niaxdee.
Cost is determined using weighted-average costditished goods, market is defined as net realezablue, and
for raw materials, market is defined as replacemest. Cost of inventories includes acquisitionte@nd all costs
incurred to deliver inventory to the Company’s disition centers including freight, non-refundatdges, duty and
other landing costs.

The Company periodically reviews its inventoriesd amakes provisions as necessary to appropriatéeva
obsolete or damaged goods. The amount of the poovis equal to the difference between the coshefinventory
and its estimated net realizable value based ugsumaptions about future demand, selling pricesnaaudket
conditions. In addition, as part of inventory valaas, the Company accrues for inventory shrinkaaged on
historical trends from actual physical inventoryints. Inventory shrinkage estimates are made tacesthe
inventory value for lost or stolen items. The Compgaerforms physical inventory counts and cyclentsu
throughout the year and adjusts the shrink resargerdingly.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost lessradated depreciation. Direct internal and extlecnats
related to software used for internal purposes Wwhie incurred during the application developmésges or for
upgrades that add functionality are capitalized.oftier costs related to internal use softwaresapensed as
incurred.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a strdilghbasis over the lesser of the length of thedeaithout
consideration of option renewal periods, and thiengged useful life of the assets, to a maximurfivef years. All
other property and equipment are amortized usiagidtlining balance method as follows. Amortization
commences when an asset is ready for its intensied u

Furniture and fixture 20%
Computer hardware and softwz 30%
Equipment and vehicle 30%

Goodwill and intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost. Non-cotigretigreements are amortized on a straight-lirséshaver
their estimated useful life of five years. Reacgdifranchise rights are amortized on a straiglg-tiasis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Goodwill represents the excess of the net assqtsrad and liabilities assumed over the aggreghbtieeo
consideration transferred, the fair value of ang-nontrolling interest in the acquiree and the aitjan-date fair
value of the Compang’previously held equity interest. Goodwill anchimgible assets with indefinite lives are te
annually for impairment or more frequently whenesent or circumstance indicates that goodwill aleiimite life
intangible assets might be impaired. The Compaogé&rating segment for goodwill is its corporate-edistores.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, including intangible assets fiithe lives, held for use are evaluated for impaEnt when
the occurrence of events or a change in circumstaimglicates that the carrying value of the assatsnot be
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recoverable as measured by comparing their carmahge to the estimated undiscounted future camsfsfl
generated by their use and eventual dispositiopairad assets are recorded at fair value, detechgniacipally by
discounting the future cash flows expected fronir thee and eventual disposition. Reductions intasslees
resulting from impairment valuations are recognizeshcome in the period that the impairment issdetned.
Long-lived assets, including intangible assets Wiithe lives, held for sale are reported at thedo of the carrying
value of the asset and fair value less cost to Aell write-downs to reflect fair value less sediioost is recognized
in income when the asset is classified as helddfg. Gains or losses on assets held for salesmed dispositions
are included in provision for impairment and leas# costs.

Leased property and equipment

The Company leases corporate-owned stores, digtibcenters and administrative offices. Minimumteg
payments, including any fixed escalation of repe@ments and rent premiums, are amortized on igistdine basi:
over the life of the lease beginning on the possestate. Rental costs incurred during a constagbieriod, prior t
store opening, are recognized as rental expensedifierence between the recognized rental expanddhe total
rental payments paid is reflected on the consdidialance sheet as a deferred lease liabilitypoepaid lease
asset.

Deferred lease inducements, which include leaselhgidovements paid for by the landlord and fred,rare
recorded as liabilities on the consolidated balateet and recognized as a reduction of rent erpams straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Contingent rental payments based on sales volumageorded in the period in which the sales occur.

The Company recognizes a liability for the fairuabf a required asset retirement obligation (“AR®@hen
such obligation is incurred. The Company’s AROsm@mnarily associated with leasehold improvemeritgchy, at
the end of a lease, the Company is contractualigatied to remove in order to comply with the leageeement. At
the inception of a lease with such conditions,Gleenpany records an ARO liability and a correspogdiapital
asset in an amount equal to the estimated faievaiuhe obligation. The liability is estimated bdn a number of
assumptions requiring management’s judgment, imetustore closing costs, cost inflation rates aisdalint rates,
and is accreted to its projected future value ¢ivee. The capitalized asset is depreciated usiegdmvention for
depreciation of leasehold improvement assets. $atisfaction of the ARO conditions, any differethetween the
recorded ARO liability and the actual retiremenstsancurred is recognized as an operating gaiossrin the
consolidated statements of earnings.

The Company recognizes a liability for a cost asged with a lease exit or disposal activity whaols
obligation is incurred. A lease exit or disposahaty is measured initially at its fair value ihe period in which the
liability is incurred. The Company estimates faatue at the cease-use date of its operating |east®e remaining
lease rentals, reduced by estimated subleaseséhédlcould be reasonably obtained for the prgpeven where
the Company does not intend to enter into a subldasgtimating the cost of certain lease exit ciostslves
subjective assumptions, including the time it wotalkie to sublease the leased location and thesdepatitential
sublease income. The estimated accruals for theste could be significantly affected if future expace differs
from that used in the initial estimate. Lease eg#ts are included in provision for impairment éeake exit costs.

Deferred revenue

Payments received from franchisees for goods ripps as well as receipts from the sale of giftlsaare
treated as deferred revenue. Franchise inventqrggits are included in other current liabilitieslarcognized as
sales when the goods are shipped. Amounts rec@iwedpect of gift cards are recorded as unredegifiecard
liability. When gift cards are redeemed for appatted Company recognizes the related revenue.

58




Table of Contents

lululemon athletica inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)

Revenue recognition

Net revenue includes sales of apparel to custothevagh corporate-owned and operated retail stoliesct to
consumer through www.lululemon.casmnd phone sales, initial license and franchise fegslties from franchisees
and sales of apparel to franchisees, sales thraumgwork of wholesale accounts, and sales fronpeoyoperated
showrooms.

Sales to customers through corporate-owned retags and phone sales are recognized at the daatey net
of an estimated allowance for sales returns.

Sales of apparel to customers through the Compaatad internet site are recognized when goodshigped,
net of an estimated allowance for sales returns.

Franchise royalties are calculated as a perceutiaganchise sales and are recognized in the mibiaththe
franchisee makes the sale.

Sales of apparel to franchisees and wholesale atxave recognized when goods are shipped andtolias
reasonably assured.

All revenues are reported net of sales taxes delliefor various governmental agencies.

Revenues from the Company'’s gift cards are receghizhen tendered for payment, or upon redemption.
Outstanding customer balances are included in “teemed gift card liability” on the consolidateddrate sheets.
There are no expiration dates on the Compmgift cards, and lululemon does not charge anyicefees that caus
a decrement to customer balances.

While the Company will continue to honor all gitirds presented for payment, management may degthren
likelihood of redemption to be remote for certaamabalances due to, among other things, long ¢eeé inactivity
In these circumstances, to the extent managemésraiaes there is no requirement for remitting daathnces to
government agencies under unclaimed property lears, balances may be recognized in the consolidated
statements of operations in “Net revenue.” Foryiars ended January 30, 2011, January 31, 201Bebrdary 1,
2009, net revenue recognized on unredeemed gdtlances was $1,406, $2,183, and $nil, respégtive

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold includes the cost of purchaseatimandise, including in-bound freight, duty and
nonrefundable taxes incurred in delivering the gotodthe Company’s distribution centers. It alsdudes all
occupancy costs such as minimum rent, contingentwlere applicable, property taxes, utilities degreciation
expense for the Company’s corporate-owned storitmts and all costs incurred in operating the Camyfs
distribution centers and production, design andcimndise departments, hemming and shrink and vatuat
reserves. Production, design, merchandise andbdistm center costs include salaries and benasitwell as
operating expenses, which include occupancy costslapreciation expense for the Company’s distidoutenters.

Store pre-opening costs

Operating costs incurred prior to the opening af séores are expensed as incurred.

Income taxes

The Company follows the liability method with respto accounting for income taxes. Deferred incaoaxe
assets and liabilities are determined based ondeanpdifferences between the carrying amountstaadax basis
of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax &saerd liabilities are measured using enacteddtesithat are
expected to be in effect when these differencesatieipated to reverse. Deferred income tax assetseduced by

59




Table of Contents

lululemon athletica inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)

a valuation allowance, if based on the weight @ilable evidence, it is more likely than not thaitre portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The recognition of a deferred income tax asseaget primarily on management’s forecasts, includingent
and proposed tax legislation, current and antieighédxable income, utilization of previously unizedl non-
operating loss carryforwards and regulatory revieiwsx filings. Given the judgments and estimatsgpuired and
the sensitivity of the results to the significass@mptions used, the accounting estimates usedhition to the
recognition of deferred income tax assets are stiljemeasurement uncertainty and are susceptitdentaterial
change if the underlying assumptions change.

The Company generally provides for taxes at the applicable for the appropriate tax jurisdictiBecause
present intentions are to reinvest the unremitsedings into foreign operations, the Company dagrovide
U.S. income taxes on unremitted earnings of forsigmsidiaries. Management periodically assessesdbe to
utilize these unremitted earnings to finance fareigerations. This assessment is based on caslpftgjections the
are the result of estimates of future producti@tal requirements by tax jurisdiction of our opgnas and
operational and fiscal objectives by tax jurisdintfor our operations. Such estimates are inhgréngrecise since
many assumptions utilized in the cash flow proftdiare subject to revision in the future.

The Company files income tax returns in the Unib¢ates, Canada and various foreign and state jjcticsaks.
The Company is subject to income tax examinatiotelsyauthorities in all jurisdictions from our inién to date.
Our policy is to recognize interest expense analbies related to income tax matters as tax expektsganuary 30,
2011, the Company does not have any significamuat for interest related to unrecognized tax fiener tax
penalties. Intercompany transfer pricing policial e subject to audits by various foreign taxigdictions.
Although management believes that the Company&séoimpany transfer pricing policies and tax posgiare
reasonable, the final determination of tax auditpaiential tax disputes may be materially difféarieam that which
is reflected in the Company’s income tax provisiand accruals.

Currency translation

The functional currency for each entity includedhiase consolidated financial statements thatnsicled
outside of the United States (the foreign entitisshe applicable local currency. Assets and litéds of each
foreign entity are translated into U.S. dollarsh&t exchange rate in effect on the balance shéet Bavenues and
expenses are translated at the average rate ot dffang the period. Unrealized translation gaind losses are
recorded as a cumulative translation adjustmenigiwis included in other comprehensive income esjavhich is i
component of accumulated other comprehensive inédooheded in stockholders’ equity.

Foreign currency transactions denominated in aeagyr other than an entity’s functional currency are
remeasured into the functional currency with argulting gains and losses included in income, ext@pgains and
losses arising on intercompany foreign currencydaations that are of a long-term investment nature

Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, accounts receivable, treatriats
payable, accrued liabilities, and other liabilitiegless otherwise noted, it is management’s opithat the
Company is not exposed to significant interestrenay or credit risks arising from these finanamstruments. All
foreign exchange gains or losses are recordectindhsolidated statements of operations undengetiieneral and
administrative expenses. The fair value of thesarftial instruments approximates their carryingigalinless
otherwise noted.

Foreign exchange risk

A significant portion of the Company’s sales areatainated in Canadian dollars. The Company’s exgotu
foreign exchange risk is mainly related to flucioas between the Canadian dollar and the U.S. ddltds
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exposure is partly mitigated by a natural hedgihat a significant portion of the Company’s opergttosts are also
denominated in Canadian dollars. The Company setposed to changes in interest rates. The Congiaes/ not
hedge foreign currency and interest rate exposuaemanner that would entirely eliminate the effefathanges in
foreign currency exchange rates, or interest maeset income and cash flows.

The aggregate foreign exchange gains (losses)dadlin income amount to $477, $174, and $(110)Hfer
years ended January 30, 2011, January 31, 201G;ebrdary 1, 2009, respective

Concentration of credit risk

The Company is not exposed to significant credk dn its cash and cash equivalents and trade atscou
receivable. Cash and cash equivalents are heldhigithquality financial institutions. Trade accasingceivable are
primarily from certain franchisees and wholesalecanits. The Company does not require collateralifport the
trade accounts receivable; however, in certairuaigtances, the Company may require parties to geqvayment
for goods prior to delivery of the goods. The actusueceivable are net of an allowance for doulatéglounts,
which is established based on management’s assefsefribe credit risks of the underlying accounts.

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensagiog the fair value method. The fair value of avgard
granted is estimated at the date of grant and rézed as employee compensation expense on a sthaiglasis
over the requisite service period with the offsgjteredit to additional paid-in capital. For awavdth service
performance conditions, the total amount of compgos expense to be recognized is based on the erofib
awards expected to vest and is adjusted to rdfiese awards that do ultimately vest. For awardk pérformance
conditions, the Company recognizes the compensatipanse if and when the Company concludes tiet it
probable that the performance condition will beiaebd. The Company reassesses the probabilityriéaag the
performance condition at each reporting date. Ra@rds with market conditions, all compensation esgeis
recognized irrespective of whether such conditanesmet.

Certain employees are entitled to share-based avilamah the principal stockholder of the Companye§é
awards are accounted for by the Company as emptmapensation expense in accordance with the abotes
policies.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated using the weightedage number of common shares outstanding dthreng
period. Diluted earnings per share is calculateditaigling net income available to common stockhddder the
period by the diluted weighted-average number afroon shares outstanding during the period. Diletuhings
per share reflects the potential dilution from conmshares issuable through stock options and pesioce stock
units using the treasury stock method.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principlethia
United States requires management to make estimateassumptions that affect the reported amodrassets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent asseid liabilities at the date of the financial stagats as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting period.

Recently issued accounting standards

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Stand&aisrd (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”") 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disai@s Topic 820: Improving Disclosures about Failué
Measurements (“ASU 2010-06"). ASU 2010-06 requirews disclosures regarding transfers in and outef t
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Level 1 and 2 and activity within Level 3 fair valtmeasurements and clarifies existing disclosuregats and
valuation techniques for Level 2 and 3 fair valueasurements. The new disclosures and clarificatibpgisting
disclosures are effective for interim and Annuap®&ting periods beginning after December 15, 2@3@gept for thi
disclosure of activity within Level 3 fair value murements, which is effective for fiscal yearsiheigg after
December 15, 2010, and for interim reporting pesiaithin those years. The company adopted the neslodures
effective January 31, 2010, except for the disalesid activity within Level 3 fair value measuren®nThe Level 3
disclosures are effective for the company at thggriveng of fiscal 2011. The adoption of ASU 2010408 not have
a material impact, and is not expected to have tanahimpact, on the disclosures within the compsin
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB amended Accounting StatedCodification (*“ASC”) Topic 85Subsequent
Events(“ASC 855”). Under the amended guidance, SEC fiteesno longer required to disclose the date throug
which subsequent events have been evaluated imaltigissued and revised financial statementss Giidance
was effective immediately and the company adopgiedd new requirements in the first quarter of fi2g64.0.

In April 2010, the FASB amended ASC Topic T@8mpensatiof*ASC 718") to clarify that a share-based
payment award with an exercise price denominatékdrcurrency of a market in which a substantiatipo of the
entity’s equity securities trades should not bestered to contain a market, performance or seacgition.
Therefore, an entity should not classify such aaravas a liability if it otherwise qualifies foradsification in
equity. This guidance is effective for interim aamthual periods beginning on or after December @502nd is to
be applied prospectively. We have determined tloptioh of the amendment will not have a materigdact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiehform to fiscal 2010 presentation.

3 INVENTORIES

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Finished good $ 59,13¢ $ 45,18
Raw materialt 1,91: 1,461
Provision for obsolescence and shr (3,582) (2,577)

$ 57,46¢ $ 44,07(

4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Leasehold improvemen $ 84,770 $ 63,99¢
Furniture and fixture 17,94( 17,77¢
Computers and softwa 34,581 25,19«
Equipment and vehicle 1,03¢ 42¢
Accumulated amortizatio (67,379 (45,806

$ 70,95« $ 61,59

Included in the cost of property and equipmentcan@talized software costs of $17,252 and $11,823 a
January 30, 2011 and January 31, 2010, respectasdpciated with internally developed software.

Depreciation expense related to property and eqeripnvas $23,549, $19,758 and $14,819 for the yemaded
January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and Febru®90B, respectively.
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The Company recorded impairment of $700, $112 %1899 for the years ended January 30, 2011, JaBd:
2010, and February 1, 2009, respectively, in pitypend equipment for stores that were relocatedased. These
assets were previously used in the corporate-osturds segment.

5 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Goodwill $ 18437 $ 73¢
Changes in foreign currency exchange r 1,837 161
20,27 89¢
Intangibles Reacquired franchise rig $ 10,70¢ $ 10,16:
Non-competition agreemen 694 694
Accumulated amortizatio (6,355 (4,86¢)
Changes in foreign currency exchange r 1,79C 1,16:%
6,83¢ 7,157
Total goodwill and intangible $ 27,117 $ 8,05C

Amortization expense related to intangible assets $4,065, $1,074, and $1,004 for the years ended
January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and Febru@@0B, respectively. The estimated aggregate aratidgn
expense is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2011 $1,31¢
2012 1,31¢
2013 1,135
2014 1,00¢
2015 897
Thereatftel 1,16(
$6,83¢

In May 2010, the Company increased its investmehilulemon athletica australia Pty (“lululemon aaka”)
from 13 percent to 80 percent. The transactioniges/the Company control over lululemon australiaich
became a subsidiary of the Company on this ddtdelon australia is engaged in the distributiohedlthy
lifestyle inspired athletic apparel, which is stiidough a chain of corporate-owned retail locatiand through a
network of wholesale accounts, in Australia. Thenpany previously accounted for its 13 percent agein
lululemon australia as an equity investment.

The acquired business contributed net revenue$®794 and income from operations of $1,490 to the
Company from the date of acquisition to January28Q,1. The following unaudited pro forma summarngsents
consolidated information of the Company as if theibess combination had occurred on February 3:200

Fiscal Year Ended

January 30, January 31, February 1,
2011 2010 2009
Net revenue $716,32¢ $463,50¢ $359,99:
Income from operatior $180,83: $ 85,85« $ 54,92¢
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These amounts have been calculated after applggn@ompany’s accounting policies and adjusting¢iselts
of lululemon australia to reflect the additionapdeciation and amortization that would have beargdd assuming
the fair value adjustments to inventory and inthlggassets had been applied from February 1, 26@6ther with
the consequential tax effects.

In fiscal 2010, the Company incurred $181 of adtjois-related costs. These costs are included ireg# and
administrative expenses in the Compangonsolidated statements of operations for the ¢eded January 30, 20

The following tables summarize the consideratiamsferred to acquire lululemon australia and thewants of
identified assets acquired and liabilities assuatetie acquisition date, as well as the fair vali#ne non-
controlling interest in lululemon australia at #euisition date:

Fair value of consideration transferred

Cash $ 5,872
Conversion of note receivable to eqt 3,481
Total 9,35:¢
Investment in lululemon australia held prior to thesiness combinatic 2,34¢
Fair value of the nc-controlling interest in lululemon austra 3,554

$15,25:

The following table summarizes the fair valueshaf het assets acquired at the date of acquisition:

Inventory $ 3,05
Prepaid and other ass: 70¢
Property and equipme 1,812
Goodwill and intangible asse 11,87
Total assets acquire 17,44¢
Current and nc-current liabilities 2,19¢
Total liabilities assume 2,19¢
Total identifiable net asse $15,25:

As a result of the Company obtaining control owdulemon australia, the Company’s previously held
13 percent interest was remeasured to fair vaaseilting in a gain of $1,792. This gain has beengaized in the
line item Other income (expense), net in the Comisaronsolidated statements of operations.

The fair value of the non-controlling interest & %54 in lululemon australia was estimated by applya
market approach and an income approach. This #levmeasurement is based on significant inputelngdrvable
in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measunteas defined in ASC Topic 8Z8air Value Measurements
and Disclosureg¢*ASC 820). The fair value estimates use standaidation techniques, including discounted cash
flows, comparable transactions and internal pr@est and include assumed adjustments due to ¢tkeofecontrol
or lack of marketability that market participantewld consider when estimating the fair value ofriba-controlling
interest in lululemon australia.

In July 2010, the Company reacquired in an assehpge transaction a franchised store in Saskatoon,
Saskatchewan for total cash consideration of $6,8bluded in the Company’s consolidated statemehts
operations for the year ended January 30, 201thanesults of the reacquired Saskatoon franclitee from the
date of acquisition to January 30, 2011.
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The following table summarizes the fair valueshaf het assets acquired at the date of acquisition:

Inventory $ 32t
Prepaid and other current ass 9
Property and equipme 174
Goodwill 6,371
Total assets acquire 6,87¢
Current and nc-current liabilities 26¢
Total liabilities assume 26¢

Net assets acquire

©+
o
(o]
[ty
—~

On September 15, 2008, the Company reacquired @sset purchase transaction two franchised stores i
Victoria, British Columbia for total cash considéoa of $1,181 less working capital adjustment$4from a
related party. The fair values of the net assejsiiaed were measured as if the transaction occwvitda arm’s
length party. Included in the Company’s consolidatatement of operations for the year ended Fepdy®009,
are the results of the two reacquired Victoria ¢tased stores from the date of acquisition throwglRebruary 1,
20009.

The following table summarizes the fair valuesha het assets acquired as of September 15, 2008:

Inventory $ 30¢€
Prepaid and other current ass 2
Property and equipme 261
Reacquired franchise rigkr 78C
Total assets acquire 1,34¢
Unredeemed gift card liabilit 172
Total liabilities assume 172
Net assets acquire $1,177

On September 8, 2008, the Company reacquired asset purchase transaction a franchised storelievBe,
Washington for total cash consideration of $2,06i8 pvorking capital adjustments of $157. Includedhe
Company'’s consolidated statement of operationgi®year ended February 1, 2009, are the resultseof
reacquired Bellevue franchised store from the dagequisition through to February 1, 2009.

The following table summarizes the fair valuesha het assets acquired as of September 8, 2008:

Inventory $ 234
Prepaid and other current ass 38
Property and equipme 24¢
Reacquired franchise rigkr 1,75¢
Total assets acquire 2,27¢
Unredeemed gift card liabilit 52
Total liabilities assume 52
Net assets acquire $2,22¢

The acquisition of the franchised stores is parhahagement’s vertical retail growth strategy. Tdecquired
franchise rights are amortized on a straight-liasi® over their estimated useful lives. Goodwiliegiewed for
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impairment annually, or as events occur or circamsts arise which may reduce the fair value of gdbbdelow
carrying value. The weighted-average remaininguldies of the reacquired franchise rights wasi@ag at
January 30, 2011 and 6.28 years as at Januan03Q, 2

6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Security deposit $ 2,762 $ 94t
Deferred lease co 1,301 1,48
Advances to and investments in franct — 3,67

$ 406 $ 6,10¢

During fiscal 2008 the Company entered into a Gr&dreement (the “Agreement”) with its Australian
franchise partner, under which advances were peoMiy the Company to the franchisee. The Agreepravides
for a secured non-revolving credit facility of upAUD$3,900 and funds are only advanced upon agpimythe
Company. The line of credit was converted to eqintiylay 2010 as part of the Compasyonsideration transferr
to increase its investment in its Australian fraeetpartner, as described in Note 5. As of Jan8ar®010 a total of
AUD$3,255 has been drawn on the line of credioio the conversion in 2010, the loan was deseghat held to
maturity and beared interest at 8% per annum whehaccrued and capitalized to the loan principal.

7 ACCRUED LIABILITIES

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Inventory purchase $ 11,928 $ 7,664
Sales tax collecte 4,50k 2,75¢
Accrued ren 2,75(C 1,771
Lease exit cost 1,31% 80C
Other 4,76¢ 4,59(

$ 25266 $ 17,58

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Deferred lease liabilit $ 13,12¢ $ 10,82:
Tenant Inducemen 6,51¢ 4,65(

$ 19,64 $ 1547

9 LONG-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

In April 2007, the Company executed a new crediilift with a lending institution that provided far
CDN$20,000 uncommitted demand revolving creditlifiées to fund the working capital requirementstiog
Company. Borrowings under the uncommitted crediiifees are made on a when-and-as-needed baslis at
discretion of the Company.
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Borrowings under the credit facility can be madbesi as i) Revolving Loans — Revolving loan borrogs
will bear interest at a rate equal to the Bank’sN$br USD$ annual base rate (defined as zero%tpikender's
annual prime rate) per annum, ii) Offshore Loan©#shore rate loan borrowings will bear interesaate equal
to a base rate based upon LIBOR for the applicaléeest period, plus 1.125 percent per annumBaipkers
Acceptances — Bankers acceptance borrowings walt gerest at the bankers acceptance rate plas pércent
per annum and iv) Letters of Credit and Letter&aarantee — Borrowings drawn down under lettersredit or
guarantee issued by the banks will bear a 1.12&péper annum fee.

At January 30, 2011, there were no borrowings aotiihg under this credit facility. As well, at Jany 30,
2011, letters of credit totaling USD$nil and gudess totaling USD$1,466 had been issued undeattikty, which
reduced the amount available by a correspondingiatmo

10 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Authorized share capital

As part of the reorganization in connection with @ompany’s 2007 initial public offering (“the
reorganization”), the Company’s stockholders appdban amended and restated certificate of incotiporthat
provides for the issuance of up to 200,000 sharesramon stock, 5,000 shares of undesignated peefestock and
30,000 shares of special voting stock.

The holders of the special voting stock are emtitteone vote for each share held. The speciahgahares are
not entitled to receive dividends or distributimrseceive any consideration in the event of aidigtion, dissolutior
or wind-up. To the extent that exchangeable shasatescribed below are exchanged for common shock,
corresponding number of special voting sharesheiltancelled without consideration.

The holders of the exchangeable shares have dibided liquidation rights equivalent to those ofdesb of the
common shares of the Company. The exchangeablessban be converted on a one for one basis byolderat
any time into common shares of the Company plussa payment for any accrued and unpaid dividendkilesis of
exchangeable shares are entitled to the same pomically equivalent dividend as declared on th@remn stock
of the Company. The exchangeable shares are namgvdhe Company has the right to convert the emgbable
shares into common shares of the Company at amydftar the earlier of July 26, 2047, the date ditlvless than
2,094 exchangeable shares are outstanding or evg of certain events such as a change in dontro

11 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Share option plans

The Company’s employees participate in variouskstiased compensation plans which are either proigles
principal stockholder of the Company or the Company

During the year ended January 31, 2006, LIPO aRDLUSA, entities controlled by a principal stoclderl of
the Company, created a stockholder sponsored Siasid compensation plans (“LIPO Plans”) for cerédigible
employees of the Company in order to provide inwertb increase stockholder value. Under the piomisof the
LIPO plans, the eligible employees were granteéoptto acquire shares of LIPO and LIPO USA, retipely.
LIPO and LIPO USA held shares in LACI and the Compaespectively. Shares of the Company that arilbbe
issued to holders of the options or restrictedeshander the LIPO Plans are currently held by LUSA, an
affiliate of a principal stockholder. The exercigesting or forfeiture of any of these awards wdt have any impa
on the outstanding common shares of the Company.

In July 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors a@ddpand the Company’s stockholders approved tb& 20
Equity Incentive Plan (2007 Plan”). The 2007 Ptanvides for the grants of stock options, stockrapiation
rights, performance stock units, restricted stackestricted stock units to employees (includinficefs and
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directors who are also employees) of the Compahg.majority of stock options granted to date hafeua-year
vesting period and vest at a rate of 25% per eaeah gn the anniversary date of the grant. Perfocmatock units
issued under the 2007 Plan generally vest threes yieam the grant date and restricted stock issunetér the 2007
Plan vest one year from the grant date. To datshd@es of restricted stock have been issued the @007 Plan to
certain directors and consultants of the Company.

The Companys policy is to issue shares upon the exercise affamy options from treasury. Any shares is:
to employees related to stockholder sponsored plenprovided by the principal stockholder andrareissued
from treasury or repurchased by the Company.

Stockbased compensation expense charged to incomeef@idhs was $7,273, $5,616 and $6,532 for the
ended January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and &ghtu2009, respectively.

Total unrecognized compensation cost for all stgmion plans was $15,399 as at January 30, 201ithvid
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 2.7 years, and was $13,692 as at Jandar0a0 over
a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company’s Board of Directors and stockholdemaved the Company’s Employee Share Purchase Plan
(“ESPP”) in September 2007. The ESPP allows foptimehase of common stock of the Company by alilei
employees at a 25% discount from fair market valulgect to certain limits as defined in the ESPiRe Maximum
number of shares available under the ESPP is 3l0@@s. During the year ended January 30, 2014h&®s were
purchased under the ESPP, which were funded bgdhapany through open market purchases.

Stockholder sponsored stock options

On December 1, 2005, LIPO and LIPO USA each grabi286 Class A options with an exercise price of
CDN$0.00001 and an expiry date of December 31, 20@911,062 Class B options with an expiry date of
December 31, 2010, respectively, prior to the raoization. The LIPO and LIPO USA Class B optiorigioally
had exercise prices of CDN$0.99 and $0.01, resprgtiEach Class A option and each Class B optititled the
holder to acquire one share of common stock of L@ LIPO USA respectively.

While all of the Class A options of both companiested on December 5, 2005 and were immediately
exercised, 3,549 of the common shares of LIPO dROLUSA issued were designated as forfeitable. @hes
forfeitable shares were considered to be non-vdstesccounting purposes and were considered rio¢ ®arned as
of December 5, 2005. These non-vested shares bewamferfeitable over a four-year requisite servypegiod to
December 5, 2009. In addition, on December 5, 2239 of the Series B options vested, with theaiaing
options vesting over a five-year period ending Delger 5, 2010.

In connection with the reorganization of the Companodifications were made to the LIPO and LIPO USA
plans. The 5,285 LIPO Class A awards and the 4vésfied LIPO Class B awards were exchanged foraadbt
1,960 exchangeable shares of the Company throsghes of transactions. At the time of the reorgation, 1,418
of the new awards were considered to be vestedh@ngmaining 541 new awards were considered tobested.
The unvested exchangeable shares are held irbirake principal stockholder and are subject tosdime vesting
schedule as the original LIPO award.
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The following table summarizes the shares grantelbuthe stockholder sponsored plan. Amounts are

presented on a post reorganization basis.

Number of Number of
Exchangeable LIPO USA
Shares Shares

Unvested balance at February 3, 2! 26E 58
Granted — —
Vested 17C 37
Cancellec 57 13
Non-forfeitable balance at February 1, 2( 38 8
Granted — —
Vested 38 8
Cancellec — —
Non-forfeitable balance at January 31, 2( — —
Granted — —
Vested — —
Cancellec — —

Non-forfeitable balance at January 30, 2(

The total unrecognized compensation cost relatatigoes was $nil at January 30, 2011.

The following table summarizes the LIPO USA optigmanted under the stockholder sponsored plan. Atsou

are presented on a post reorganization basis @whawn in lululemon share equivalents.

Weighted-

Number of Average

LIPO USA Exercise

Options Price

Unvested balance at February 3, 2! 881 $ 0.01
Granted — —
Vested 337 $ 0.01
Cancellec 25 $ 0.01
Unvested balance at February 1, 2! 291 $ 0.01
Granted — —
Vested 184 $ 0.01
Cancellec — $ 0.01
Unvested balance at January 31, 2 107 $ 0.01
Granted — —
Vested 107 $ 0.01
Cancellec — $ 0.01
Unvested balance at January 30, 2 — 3 =

The total unrecognized compensation cost relatédR® USA options was $nil at January 30, 2011.

The Company records compensation expense for sisate=d under the stockholder sponsored awards ttos

requisite service periods.
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The vesting schedule of the stockholder sponsaredds in lululemon share equivalents is as follows:

Exchangeablt LIPO USA LIPO USA
Shares Shares Options

December 5, 200 78¢ 87 10E
December 5, 200 631 60 96
December 5, 200 27¢ 60 392
December 5, 200 19¢ 43 384
December 5, 200 66 14 31E
December 5, 201 — — 182
Total 1,96( 264 1,47°¢

The fair value of the non-forfeitable and forfet@bhares issued under LIPO Class A was measutbd &ir
value of the underlying stock on the grant dates fitir value of the LIPO Class B options was deteet using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the follawgi assumptions:

Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 45%
Risk-free interest rat 5%
Weightec-average expected life of option (yee 5.0 year

The expected volatility was based on availablerinfation on volatility from a peer group of publidiaded
U.S. and Canadian retail apparel companies. Thectag life of the options was determined by revigndata
about exercise patterns of employees in the rietdiistry as well as considering the probabilityadiquidity event
such as the sale of the Company or an IPO andatesfial impact of such an event on the exerciseepa The risk-
free interest rate approximates the yield on berarhr@overnment of Canada bonds for terms simildinéocontrac
life of the options.

The total fair value of awards under the stockhofgmnsored plans that vested during the yearsdende
January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010 and Febru@&@Q0B was $261, $464,and $1,137, respectively.
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Company stock options and performance stock units

A summary of the Company’s stock options, perforagashare units and restricted shares activity as of
January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and Febru&@0B, and changes during the years then endedssmted

below:

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average

Stock Exercise  Performance Grant Restricted Grant
Options Price Share Units  Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Balance at February 3, 20 4,796 $ 2.7¢ — $ 19.4¢ 10 $ 19.4:
Granted 54t 21.6¢ — 24.0¢ 9 24.0¢
Exercisec 2,31( 0.62 — 19.4: 10 19.4:
Forfeited 1,12¢ 2.4¢ — — — —
Balance at February 1, 20 1,90t $ 10.8: — $ 24.0¢ 9 $ 24.0¢
Granted 95¢ 14.81 — 13.8: 15 13.8:¢
Exercisec 557 2.2% — 24.0¢ 9 24.0¢
Forfeited 118 23.5i — — — —
Balance at January 31, 20 2,19¢ $ 14.0¢ — $ 138t 15 $ 13.8¢
Granted 24% 50.6: 84 41.8¢ 6 38.7¢
Exercisec 684 8.7¢ — — 15 15.3¢
Forfeited 12¢ 17.44 4 41.22 2 13.8:
Balance at January 30, 20 1,63( $ 21.5¢ 80 $ 41.9: 4 $ 42.4:

The Company’s performance stock units are awardedidgible employees and entitle the grantee teiueca
maximum of 1.5 shares of common stock per perfooaatock unit if the Company achieves specifiedgperance
goals and the grantee remains employed duringeking period. The fair value of performance stoclkts is based
on the closing price of the Company’s common stackhe award date. Expense for performance stoit isn
recognized when it is probable the performance gilhbe achieved.

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding and exercisable at Jar@yry

2011
Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- Average
Average Average Average Remaining
Range of Number of Exercise Remaining Number of Exercise Life
Exercise Prices Options Price Life (Years) Options Price (Years)
$0.49- $0.60 188 $ 0.5¢ 5.9 188 $ 0.5¢ 5.9
$6.98- 18.00 52¢ 9.9¢ 5.6 69 14.01 6.5
$18.91- $29.20 542 23.7¢ 6.7 12¢€ 22.5¢ 7.2
$32.31- $50.46 27C 36.2¢ 6.6 107 33.7¢ 6.
$67.00- $69.87 104 68.72 6.9 — — 0.C
1,63C $ 21.5¢ 6.3 487 $ 15.4i 6.5
Intrinsic Value $ 76,69: $ 26,00

As of January 30, 2011, the unrecognized companrsatist related to these options was $15,399, wkich
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 2.7 years; and the total aggregate intrimalue for

71




Table of Contents

lululemon athletica inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)

stock options outstanding and exercisable was $26;Dhe intrinsic value of stock options exercigdedng the
years ended January 30, 2011, January 31, 201G ebrdary 1, 2009 was $28,463, $8,093, and $50;0%
weightedaverage grant date fair value of options grantedthduhe years ended January 31, 2011, Januar3do,
and February 1, 2009 was $25.66, $8.07, and $16:8pectively.

The fair value of options with service conditionasadetermined at the date of grant using the BRddieles
model. Expected volatilities are based on a rexaéa peer group of publicly traded apparel retaild@he expected
term of options with service conditions is the sienaverage of the term and the requisite servicegas stated in
the respective option contracts. The risk-freeregerate is the Federal Reserve federal fundsTagfollowing
assumptions were used in calculating the fair vafugtock options issued in fiscal 2010:

lululemon
Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 66.3%
Risk-free interest rat 1.58%
Weightec-average life 3.76 year

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The details of the computation of basic and diligachings per share are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31, February 1,

2011 2010 2009
Net income from continuing operatio $122,19° $ 58,281 $ 40,50:
Net income attributable to n-controlling interes 35C — —
Net loss from discontinued operatic — — (1,139
Net income attributable to lululemon athletica i $121,84° $ 58,287 $ 39,36
Basic weighte-average number of shares outstan 70,86( 70,25! 68,71:
Effect of stock options assumed exerci 1,06¢ 69¢ 2,231
Diluted weighte-average number of shares outstanc 71,92¢ 70,94¢ 70,94
Basic earnings (loss) per shi

Continuing operation $ 17z $ 08: $ 0.5¢

Discontinued operatior — — (0.02)
Net basic earnings per sh $ 17z $ 082 $ 057
Diluted earnings (loss) per she

Continuing operation $ 16 $ 082 $ 057

Discontinued operatior — — (0.02)
Net diluted earnings per she $ 16¢ $ 082 $ 05t

13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has obligations under operating lefaseéts office, distribution centers and corporatened
store premises in Canada, the United States, Aiastniad Hong Kong. As of January 30, 2011, theddasms of
various leases are from two to 10 years. A subsfamimber of the Company’s leases for corporateahstore
premises include renewal options and certain ofbmpany’s leases include rent escalation clawsasholidays
and leasehold rental incentives. Certain of the gamy's leases for corporate-owned store premisesiatiude
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contingent rental payments based on sales volulmeCbmpany is required to make deposits for rgragients
pursuant to certain lease agreements, which haemeibeluded in other non-current assets. Minimumuahbasic
rent payments excluding other executory operatoxgs; pursuant to lease agreements are approxjynaestédid out
in the table below. These amounts include commitrimerespect of corporatewned stores that have not yet ope
but for which lease agreements have been executed.

Fiscal Yeal

2011 $36,95¢
2012 36,32¢
2013 35,69:
2014 35,277
2015 32,277
Thereatftel 72,46"

Rent expense for the years ended January 30, 28ddiary 31, 2010, and February 1, 2009 was $53,071,
$41,639, and $32,701, respectively, under operdtiase agreements, consisting of minimum rentatesg of
$36,754, $29,607, and $23,198, respectively, andragent rental amounts of $16,317, $12,032, an80®)
respectively.

The Company is, from time to time, involved in rioetlegal matters incidental to its business. Managnt
believes that the ultimate resolution of any sughtent proceedings will not have a material advefect on the
Company’s continued financial position, result®pérations or cash flows except as follows:

On September 7, 2010, a former hourly employed filelass action lawsuit in the United States Ris@ourt
For the Northern District of lllinois, Eastern Débn entitled Lydia Brown v. lululemon athleticacinrhe lawsuit
alleges that the Company requires employees to tadfkhe clock” without compensation. The plairfitfeeks on
behalf of herself and other putative class memback wages, interest, attorney fees and costsequithble relief
under the Fair Labor Standards Act and the lllinsge Payment and Collection Act. On February P412the
District Court granted the Company’s motion to disrthe plaintiff's claims in their entirety withbprejudice. The
plaintiff was granted leave to file an amended clainp on or before March 17, 2011. The Company icoeis to
deny the allegations and intends to vigorously nigfthe matter.

14 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS
The Company entered into the following transactiwith related parties:

January 30 January 31. February 1,

2011 2010 2009
Purchase price paid to franchises controlled by reited parties
Reacquired franchise rigr $ — % — $ 117
Payments from related parties
Sold merchandise and received royal $ — 3 — $ 252
Payments to related parties
Occupancy costs for orcorporat-ownedstore $ 0C % 63 % 19

“Franchises controlled by related parties” refeti@dbove relate to two franchise operations inciiur
principal stockholder previously owned a 50% inser®uring the year ended January 31, 2007, thmeipal
stockholder disposed of his interest in these fiesas to a family member.

During the year ended January 30, 2011, our pratackholder increased his interest from 50%01@%4 in a
company that leases retail space to one corpovated store.
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15 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash working capital items:

January 30 January 31. February 1,

2011 2010 2009

(Increase) in accounts receiva $ (587 $ (3,79 $ (1,179
(Increase) decrease in deferred lease inducenends/able 46 (17¢) 88¢
Increase in deferred lease inducements rece 1,93¢ 67t 851
(Increase) in prepaid expens (2,902 (225) (1,85¢)
(Increase) decrease in inventor (7,959 11,29¢ (29,787
(Increase) decrease in other -current asset 162 — (839)
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts pa (5,167%) 6,02¢ 832
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabili 7,40( (3,780 14,17¢
Increase in other current liabiliti 16,10¢ 14,88 5,981
Increase (decrease) in income taxes pay 14,92¢ 5,88¢ (2,435
$ 23,96¢ $ 30,79C $ (3,369

Cash paid for income tax $ 30,96¢ $ 27,71¢ $ 19,46
Interest paic $ 424 3 157  $ 46

16 INCOME TAXES

We file income tax returns in the U.S., Canada\artbus foreign and state jurisdictions. We argestttto
income tax examination by tax authorities in atlgdictions from our inception to date. Our polisyto recognize
interest expense and penalties related to incormmédters as tax expense. At January 30, 2011 ,ow@thave any
significant accruals for interest related to ungrired tax benefits or tax penalties.

Our intercompany transfer pricing policies will &gbject to audits by the various foreign tax judsdns.
Although we believe that our intercompany trangigcing policies and tax positions are fully suppbie, the final
determination of tax audits or potential tax digsutnay be different from that which is reflecteadim income tax
provisions and accruals.

The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

January 30 January 31. February 1,

2011 2010 2009
Federal income tax at statutory rate (35%, 35%, ) 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Non-deductible compensation expel 0.8 1t 2.7
Deemed divideni 0.C 0.C 6.C
Foreign tax credi 0.C 0.C (8.9
U.S. state taxe 1.7 0.3 0.C
Change in valuation allowan: 0.C 0.C (3.0)
Foreign tax rate differentii (4.0 (3.8 3.9
Permanent and oth (0.2 (0.2 1.4
Provision for income taxe 33.5% 32.8% 29.4%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tagets and
deferred tax liabilities at January 30, 2011 antiday 31, 2010 are presented below:

January 30, January 31

2011 2010
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwa $ 47z $ —
Foreign tax credit 672 7,58
Property and equipme (7349) (47¢€)
Deferred lease liabilit 4,89¢ 4,25¢
Lease exit cost 92 90¢
Stocl-based compensatic 1,567 1,24t
Other 1,027 1,68
Valuation allowanct (98) (100

$ 7,894 $ 15,10:

We have recorded deferred tax assets in respéotedfn tax credits and other deductible tempodiffgrence:
of $7,894.

The Company’s current and deferred taxes from fddstate and foreign sources were as follows:

January 30 January 31, February 1,

2011 2010 2009

Current taxe:

Federal $ 947¢ $ 3621 $ —
State 2,43k 2438 5
Foreign 37,93t 25,96¢ 23,723
Total current 49,84¢ 29,82¢ 23,73
Deferred taxe

Federal $ 11,18: $ (2,030 $ (5,149
State 63E — (984)
Foreign (589) 63C (727)
Total deferrec 11,23 (1,400 (6,84%)
Provision for income taxe $ 61,08¢ $ 28,42¢ $ 16,88

United States income taxes and foreign withholdiags are not provided on undistributed earningsreiign
subsidiaries which are considered to be indefipiteinvesting in the operations of such subsid&rige amount of
these earnings was approximately $196,763 at Ja30a2011 and $113,466 at January 31, 2010. Whearess
cash from unremitted earnings has accumulatedrifiooeign operations and it is advantageous foréasons, the:
earnings may be remitted.

17 SEGMENTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company applies ASC Topic 2&Egment ReportinASC 280"), in determining reportable segments
financial statement disclosure. Based on finarinfarmation provided to the chief operating deaisioaker of the
Company and the manner in which the Company opeitsteutlets and other operations, the Compangrohéhed
that each store, showroom and warehouse saleglet isuan operating segment. The Company’s opeayati
segments also include, direct to consumer throughviululemon.com phone sales, Canadian franchise
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activities, U.S. franchise activities and wholessées to the Company’s U.S. stores and to thirtigsa Previously,
the Company reported its franchise channel as aratipg segment, however it has accounted fortless 10% of
net revenue from operations in each of fiscal 28@ fiscal 2008. Opening new franchise stores i@rgignificant
part of the Company’s near-term growth strategytaedCompany does not expect that the revenueeattfiom
franchises to be greater than 10% of net revenfigtume years. Therefore, the Company has re-etedusegment
reporting in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. TBempany’s reportable segments are comprised obcatg-owned
stores, direct to consumer and other. Direct tsaorer includes sales from the Company’s e-commeedxsite an
phone sales. Franchise sales, wholesale, showrsales and outlet sales have been combined into. othe
Information for these segments is detailed in #imet below:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 30 January 31, February 1,

2011 2010 2009
Net revenue
Corporat-owned store $591,03: $39345. $315,54¢
Direct to Consume 57,34¢ 18,257 1,62¢
Other 63,32¢ 41,19( 36,31

$711,70: $452,89¢ $ 353,48¢

Income from operations before general corporateesg

Corporat-owned store $21515: $121,61: $ 94,86:
Direct to Consume 16,36« 6,28¢ 662
Other 18,00 10,84¢ 11,54¢
$249,52. $138,74° $107,07¢
General corporate exper 69,13 52,201 50,51t
Net operating incom 180,39: 86,54¢ 56,56+
Other income (expense), r 2,88¢ 164 821
Income before income tax $183,27 $ 86,71( $ 57,38t
Capital expenditure
Corporat-owned store $ 14,53¢ $ 10,17 $ 29,58t
Direct to consume 4,62¢ — —
Corporate 11,19¢ 5,32% 10,94:

$ 30,357 $ 15497 $ 40,53(

Depreciation and amortizatic
Corporat-owned store $ 16,338 $ 13,721 $ 10,557
Corporate 8,27¢ 7,111 5,26€

$ 2461 $ 20,837 $ 15,82!

The intercompany wholesale sales of $10,188, $5&0d $5,746 for the years ended January 30, 2011,
January 31, 2010, and February 1, 2009 respectikialye been excluded from the net revenue in therOt
reportable segment. In addition, the income fromrapons reported included in the segment resait®ther does
not reflect the intercompany profit on these saldsch amounted to $931, $30, and $158 for thesyended
January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and Febru@@QB, respectively.
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The Company operates in four geographic areas —adzarthe United States, Asia and Australia. Rev&nue
from these regions for the years ended Januarg®d,, January 31, 2010, and February 1, 2009 veefalaws:

January 30 January 31, February 1,

2011 2010 2009

Canad: $371,60: $271,16¢ $ 243,52
United State: 323,47 181,14« 109,84
Australia and Hong Kon 16,62: 58t 11¢

$711,70. $452,89¢ $ 353,48t

Long-lived assets by geographic area for the yeaded January 30, 2011, January 31, 2010, and &gkiu
2009 were as follows:

January 31 January 31. February 1,

2010 2010 2009
Canade $ 33,61¢ $ 28,507 $ 25,58
United State: 33,51 32,997 35,98(
Australia and Hong Kon 3,82¢ 87 10C

$ 70,95« $ 61,591 $ 61,66:

Substantially all of the Company’s intangible asseid goodwill relate to the reporting segment isting of
corporate-owned stores.

The Company has entered into franchise agreemades which franchisees are permitted to sell luhda
apparel and are required to purchase lululemonrapfsam the Company and to pay the Company a tpysised
on a percentage of the franchisee’s gross salesCbmpany also received royalty fees of $2,222Heryear ended
January 30, 2011, $2,980 for the year ended Jar®1ar3010, and $4,145 for the year ended Februa299. Sale
and cost of sales of apparel sold to franchiseesuated to $7,927 and $5,309 for the year endedalprd®, 2011,
$11,441 and $9,081 for the year ended January®D, 2nd $12,055 and $8,668 for the year endedukapd,
2009, respectively. The number of franchised stogpsrchased during the years ended January 3@, 201
January 31, 2010, and February 1, 2009 was 1(amil three, respectively.

18 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND LEASE EXIT COSTS

In accordance with ASC topic 36PRroperty, Plant and Equipme(itASC 360"), the Company reviews its long-
lived assets for impairment when changes in circant®s indicate that the carrying amount of thetassly not be
recoverable. ASC 360 requires that long-lived astsebe held and used be recorded at the lowearofing amount
or fair value. Londived assets to be disposed of are to be recortdibhe dower of carrying amount or fair value, |
estimated cost to sell.

In conjunction with the Company’s ongoing assesgrieernsure that each of the Company’s corporateedw
stores fit into the Company’s long-term growth &gy, the Company closed two of its corporatened stores in tl
fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company record&B866 charge related to these closures duringlf2010,
which included $194 provision for asset impairmemd $172 accrual for lease exit costs. In the fstrter of fisca
2009, the Company closed one of its corporate-ovet@es. The expense associated with this closaserecorded
in fiscal 2008. The Company recorded a $562 chdugimg fiscal 2008, which included $258 provisiam &sset
impairment and $304 accrual for lease exit codte. fair market values were estimated using an eézgquresent
value technique.

During fiscal 2010, the Company recorded a chaf@72 in provision for impairment and lease exists
related to certain locations.
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A reconciliation of the associated accrued liapili as follows:

Lease Exit and

Other Related Cost: Asset Impairment Total
Accrued liability at January 31, 20 $ 80C $ — $ 80c
Costs incurret 1,072 70C 1,772
Cash payment (570 (700) (1,270
Changes in foreign currency exchange r 15 — 15
Accrued liability at January 30, 20 $ 1317 $ — $1,317

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluates events or transactions teat @after the balance sheet date through to tteevdaich
the financial statements are issued, for potergi@gnition or disclosure in its audited consokdgfinancial
statements in accordance with ASC Topic &ihsequent EvenfASC 855”).

In March 2011, the Company purchased the land aiidibg that currently houses its principle exeeatand
administrative offices for $65.1 million plus acsjtion-related costs. The Company will recognizd areasure the
assets pursuant to ASC 360 and as necessary fatemee to ASC 820.
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20 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following tables present our unaudited quartestults of operations for each of the eight fisgarters in
the period ended January 30, 2011. You shouldtreatbllowing tables in conjunction with our audite
consolidated financial statements and related rajipearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We haveaned the
information below on a basis consistent with outitad consolidated financial statements and hascledied all
adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adj&stts, which, in the opinion of management, are s&any to
fairly present our operating results for the quarfgesented. Our historical unaudited quartedylte of operations
are not necessarily indicative of results for amyiffe quarter or for a full year.

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands)

(unaudited)

Consolidated statements of

income:
Net revenu $245,39¢ $175,80( $152,20¢ $138,29° $160,60¢ $112,89. $97,72. $81,68(
Cost of goods sol 101,93¢ 78,96¢ 71,91( 63,94( 74,04¢ 56,55:! 52,557 46,65¢
Gross profit 143,46( 96,83 80,29¢ 74,357 86,56( 56,33¢ 45,16« 35,02«
Operating expense
Selling, general and

administrative expenst 71,48: 53,86¢ 4554¢ 41,88: 44,92¢ 3541: 30,64¢ 25,17:
Provision for impairment and

lease exit cost 67¢ 587 50€ — 19€ — 188 —
Income from operatior 71,29¢ 42,37¢ 34,24 32,47« 41,43t 20,92¢ 14,33: 9,85:
Other income (expense), r 542 91 2,092 161 66 3 23 78
Income before provision for

income taxe: 71,84( 42,467 36,338 32,63¢ 41,50 20,92¢ 14,35 9,931
Provision for income taxe 16,87 16,563 14,62¢ 13,047 13,05( 6,85t 5,111 3,41:
Net income 54,967 25,93t 21,707 19,58¢ 28,45. 14,06¢ 9,24¢ 6,51¢
Net income attributable to n-

controlling interes 201 234 (85) — — — — —
Net income attributable 1

lululemon athletica inc $ 54,76¢ $ 25,707 $ 21,79: $ 19,58¢ $ 28,45 $ 14,06¢ $ 9,244 $ 6,51¢
Net basic earnings per sh: $ 07/$ 03€¢$% 031% 02% 04C$ 02C$% 01 8% o0.0¢

Net diluted earnings per she $ 07¢$ 03€$ 03C$ 02v$ 04C$ 020% 01% o0.0¢

Our quarterly results of operations have variethpast and are likely to do so again in the ftds such, w
believe that comparisons of our quarterly resulisperations should not be relied upon as an itidicaf our futur:
performance.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffeer
and principal financial officer, we conducted amlenation of the effectiveness of the design andatan of our
disclosure controls and procedures, as definedilasRL3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitiehdhge Act
of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, as anitleof the period covered by this report, or thel&ation Date.
Based upon the evaluation, our principal executiffieer and principal financial officer concludehit our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvefahe Evaluation Date. Disclosure controls armt@dures are
controls and procedures designed to reasonablyetisat information required to be disclosed in iports filed
under the Exchange Act, such as this report, erdea, processed, summarized and reported witkitirtie period:
specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosigetrols and procedures include controls and prareesddesigned
to reasonably ensure that such information is actated and communicated to our management, inajualim
chief executive officer and chief financial offices appropriate to allow timely decisions regaydequired
disclosure.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting isstied to provide reasonable assurances regatting t
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Our irgkcontrol over financial reporting includes thessicies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenanceodnds that, in reasonable detail, accurately ainty freflect the
transactions and dispositions of our assets; (@yide reasonable assurance that transactiongeoeded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with generally accepted acaugiptinciples,
and that our receipts and expenditures are beinproaly in accordance with authorizations of ounagement ar
directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assuraeganding prevention or timely detection of unauittext acquisitior
use, or disposition of our assets that could havairial effect on the financial statements. Mamagnt, including
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, does not expect that our internaltcols will prevent
or detect all errors and all fraud. A control syst@o matter how well designed and operated, cavige only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the iieiectf the control system are met. Further, trségieof a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resoiimGtations on all control systems, no evaluatidinternal
controls can provide absolute assurance that attralissues and instances of fraud, if any, haenkdetected.
Also, any evaluation of the effectiveness of calstio future periods are subject to the risk thatse internal
controls may become inadequate because of champesiness conditions, or that the degree of canpé with th
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiimg adequate internal control over financiglaring
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended). Management ctedlan
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internaltooover financial reporting based on the critexh forth in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh® €ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of thadweay
Commission, or COSO. Based on this evaluation, g@mant concluded that we maintained effective iater
control over financial reporting as of January 3011. The effectiveness of our internal controlrdieancial
reporting as of January 30, 2011 has been audjt&tibewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent asditdo
have expressed an opinion in their report on pdgef this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting during the fourth quarter oétfiscal yea
ended January 31, 2010, which were identified imeation with management’s evaluation required by
Rules 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) under the Seculiiehange Act of 1934, as amended, that have miieria
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNXCE

The information required by this item concerning dinectors, director nominees and Section 16 beiabf
ownership reporting compliance is incorporateddfgmence to our definitive Proxy Statement for 20t1 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Elattd Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnengliReporting
Compliance,” “Executive Officers” and “Corporate ¥&onance.”

We have adopted a written code of business coradutethics, which applies to all of our directafficers
and employees, including our principal executiviicef and our principal financial and accountingjesr. Our
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is availableusrinternet website, www.lululemon.cand can be obtained
by writing to Investor Relations, lululemon athégtiinc., 1818 Cornwall Avenue, Vancouver, Britishi@nbia,
Canada V6J 1C7 or by sending an email to investoii@imon.com. The information contained on our vitetis
not incorporated by reference into this Annual Repa Form 10-K. Any amendments, other than teclinic
administrative or other non-substantive amendméaitsur Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or eraifrom
the provisions of the Code of Business ConductEthits for our principal executive officer and quincipal
financial and accounting officer will be disclosaal our internet website within four business daf®wing the
date of such amendment or waiver.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our 2011 Proxy Statement uraer t
captions “Executive Compensation” and “Other Fooh€ompensation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpetby reference to our 2011 Proxy Statement urer t
caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiak@ers and Directors and Officers.”

Equity Compensation Plan Information (as of January30, 2011)

Number of Number of Securities
Securities to be Remaining Available
Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Plan Category QOutstanding Options Outstanding Options Compensation Plans(1
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholder 1,630,27. $21.5¢ 7,562,10!
Equity compensation plans not approved
by stockholde — — —
Total 1,630,27. $21.5¢ 7,562,10!

(1) This amount represents 4,725,680 shares of our constock available for future issuance pursuastdok
options available for grant under our 2007 Equityeintive Plan and 2,836,425 shares of our comnumk st
available for future issuance pursuant to our Eyg#oShare Purchase Pl

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our 2011 Proxy Statement urer t
captions “Certain Relationships and Related Traiwas' and “Corporate Governance.”
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our 2011 Proxy Statement urer t
caption “Principal Accounting Fees and Services.”

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statement§he financial statements as set forth under IteshtBis Annual Report on
Form 10-K are incorporated herein.
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2. Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule Il

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at Charged to Write-offs
Beginning of Costs and Net of Balance at

Description Year Expenses Recoveries  End of Year
Shrink Provision on Finished Goods

For the year ended February 1, 2! $ (194,89) (1,518,13) 952,89 (760,13)

For the year ended January 31, 2 (760,13) (2,604,72) 2,051,801 (1,313,05()

For the year ended January 30, 2 (1,313,05) (2,881,24) 2,751,021 (1,443,26)
Slow Moving and Obsolescence Provision on Finished

Goods and Raw Materials

For the year ended February 1, 2! $ (300,48 (433,059 158,92t (574,619

For the year ended January 31, 2 (574,61 (627,59)  241,03! (961,16¢)

For the year ended January 30, 2 (961,169 (283,679 107,15« (1,137,69)
Damage Provision on Finished Good

For the year ended February 1, 2! $ — — — —

For the year ended January 31, 2 — (835,24  536,95: (298,296

For the year ended January 30, 2 (298,29¢ (1,610,28) 907,47. (1,001,109
Sales Allowance:

For the year ended February 1, 2! $ 527,89( (246,659 — 281,23°

For the year ended January 31, 2 281,23 25,50( — 306,73t

For the year ended January 30, 2 306,73t 214,94( — 521,67
Valuation Allowance on Deferred Income Taxe:

For the year ended February 1, 2! $(2,401,94) 1,845,68: — (556,259

For the year ended January 31, 2 (556,25 455,88 — (100,36

For the year ended January 30, 2 (100,36 1,914 — (98,457
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit
No

Exhibit Title

Filed

Incorporated by Reference

Herewith Form Exhibit No.

File No.

Filing Date

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1*

10.2*

10.z*

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.€

10.12(

10.11

10.1z

10.1%

Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of lululemon athletica in
Amended and Restated Bylaws of lululen
athletica inc

Form of Specimen Stock Certificate of
lululemon athletica inc

lululemon athletica inc. 2007 Equity
Incentive Plar

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award
Agreement under 2007 Equity Incentive
Plan

Amended and Restated LIPO Investments
(USA), Inc. Option Plan and form of Award
Agreemen

Employment and Restrictive Covenant
Agreement with Dennis Wilson dated as of
December 5, 200

Amended and Restated Registration Rights
Agreement dated July 26, 2007 between
lululemon athletica inc. and the parties
named thereil

Exchange Trust Agreement dated July 26,
2007 between lululemon athletica inc., Lulu
Canadian Holding, Inc. and Computershare
Trust Company of Canac

Exchangeable Share Support Agreement
dated July 26, 2007 between lululemon
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Plan of Arrangement and Exchangeable
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Credit Facility between lululemon canada
inc. and Royal Bank of Canada dated as of
April 11, 2007

Form of Indemnification Agreement
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directors and certain office

Purchase and Sale Agreement between
2725312 Canada Inc and lululemon athle
inc., dated December 22, 20

Outside Director Compensation P!
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenitied
registrant has duly caused this report to be sigmeits behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthearized.

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemshose signature appears below constitutes

LULULEMON ATHLETICA INC.

By: /s/ CHRISTINE M. DAY

Christine M. Day

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive

Officer)

and appoints Christine M. Day and John E. Currize@ach of them, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution and full power to act without thbet, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-faodl agent to act in
his or her name, place and stead and to exectite iname and on behalf of each person, individually in each
capacity stated below, and to file, any and allutoents in connection therewith, with the Securiéied Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtoitio and
perform each and every act and thing, ratifying emafirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and igeor any of
them or their and his or her substitute or subtstitumay lawfully do or cause to be done by vithexeof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, this report has &igaenad
below by the following persons on behalf of theisgignt and in the capacities and on the datesatel:

Signature

Title

Date

Is/  QHRISTINE M. DAY

Christine M. Day

/s/ DHN E. QURRIE

John E. Currie

/sl DennNis J. WiLsoN

Dennis J. Wilsor

/s/  MicHAEL CASEY

Michael Case)

/s/ ROANN COSTIN

RoAnn Costir

/s/ R. BRAD MARTIN

R. Brad Martin

/sl MARTHA A.M. MORFITT

Martha A.M. Morfitt

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financi

and Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Signature Title Date
/s/ RHopbA M. PITCHER Director March 16, 201
Rhoda M. Pitche
/s THoMmAS G. STEMBERG Director March 16, 201

Thomas G. Stembel
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN
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AND

LuLuLEMON ATHLETICA CANADA INC.

DECEMBER 22, 2010
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THis AGREEMENT dated for reference December 22, 2010

BETWEEN :
2725312 GNADA INC.
Suite 1800 — 1055 Dunsmuir Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
V7X 1B1
(the “Vendor ")
AND :

LuLuLEMON ATHLETICA CANADA INC.
1818 Cornwall Avenue

Vancouver, British Columbia

V6J 1C7

(the “Purchaser”)

WITNESSES THAT WHEREAS :
A. The Vendor is the legal and beneficial owokthe Lands (hereinafter defined); and

B. The Vendor has agreed to sell and the Passttaas agreed to purchase the Purchased Propergynafter defined) on the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cars and agreements herein set forth in this Agee¢and other good and valua
consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of whighereby acknowledged), the Vendor and the Peshaovenant and agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 DEFINITIONS .

The following terms have the following meaningsasgd the subject matter or context otherwise resjt

@ “Architect " means an independent professional architect extyby the Vendor from time to time in connectionhwthis
Agreement

(b) “Business Day’ means a day which is not a Saturday, Sundayatutstry holiday (as defined in tlenployment Standards
Act (British Columbia)) in British Columbie

(c) *“ City " means the City of Vancouve
(d) “ Completion Date” means that day which is 30 days after the satisfactr waiver of the Purcha¢s Conditions
(e) *“ Conditions Removal Date” means 5:00 p.m. (Vancouver time) on February 1812

® " Confidential Information ” means the confidential information set forth inteet9.14;




(9)

(h)
(i)
0

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

-2-

“Delivery Materials " means all information and material delivered tmtherwise made available to the Purchaser putsuan
to subsections 4.1(b) and (

“ Deposit” means, collectively, the amounts paid by the Pusehpursuant to subsections 2.3(a) and
“ Effective Date” means December 22, 20:

“ Environment " means humans, animals, plants and other livigguoisms and all components of the earth, including
land, soil, water (including surface and undergbwmter) and all other external conditions or iaflaes under which huma
animals, plants and other living organisms, liveu@ developed, and the interacting natural systhatsnclude any of the
components referred to in this definitic

“ Environmental Laws " means all applicable common laws, statutes, a@uils, rules, standards, codes, protocols, pslicie
guidelines and bylaws of, or issued by or underihection or authority of, any Governmental Autityprelating to or in
respect of the protection of the Environment areispect of Hazardous Substances including-tbleeries Ac{Canada), the
Canadian Environmental Protection A@anada), th@ransportation of Dangerous Goods A€anada) and the
Environmental Management A(British Columbia);

“ Equipment ” means all the chattels, personal property, goedsipment, inventory and supplies used by the @end
anyone on the Vendor’s behalf in connection with dperation, use, enjoyment, maintenance or marageshthe Lands,
provided however that the Equipment must be ownethé® Vendor or otherwise be subject to a conditi@ale agreement in
favour of the Vendor as of the Effective De

“Estoppel Certificates” means a certificate substantially in the formagtin Schedule B addressed to the Purchaser and
such other Persons as the Purchaser requiresaayiather form or forms which may be required arcified under the terms
of any of the Lease:

“Governmental Authority ” means any federal, provincial, regional, munitipalocal government, government authority,
office or official having jurisdiction or other gtital subdivision of any of them, or any entitythority, agency or court or
person exercising executive, legislative, judiaiagulatory or administrative functions on behdlany such government,
government authority, office or official having isdiction or other political subdivision there:

“Hazardous Substanc¢’ means any substance, material or thing or contioinaf substances, materials or things which
could cause an adverse effect on, or which is dangeor detrimental or potentially dangerous oridegntal to, any part of
the Environment, including a substance, materighimg included in or containing components incldidie the definition or

meaning of “biomedical waste”, “contaminant”, “damgus good”, “deleterious substance”, “hazardoosipet”, “nutrient”,

“pollutant”, “reportable substance”, “Special Wdste “toxic substance” or any variation of any suelm, in any
Environmental Law or which is prohibited, contraller regulated under any Environmental Law andegpect of the
foregoing, is found in a material or relevant cartcation for the purpose of any Environmental La




(p) “ HST” has the meaning set forth in section !
(@) “ HST Certificate ” has the meaning set forth in section !
(9] “Lands " means that real property legally described inegiche A, together with all buildings, improvemef(itsluding

parking structures) and fixtures thereon and ghts and benefits appurtenant thereto (for grestetainty, such appurtenant
rights and benefits include the Least

(s) “Leases<” means every written agreement, pursuant to whithperson has any interest in the Lands in thereatf a
tenancy or a right to occupy premises, including modification or extension thereof, andléase” means any of such
Leases

® “LTO " means the Lower Mainland Land Title Offic

(u) “Lululemon Lease” means the lease dated May 21, 2010, as amendextiime to time, between the Vendor, as landlord,

and the Purchaser, as tenant, in respect of thest.

(V) “Order " means any written directive, decision, order je®including a notice of litigation or proceeditetter or other
written communication, that requires the takingao§ measures or actions or refraining from takimg measures or actions,
issued or made by any Governmental Authority uahgr Environmental Law

(w) “ Other Leases’ means the Leases, excluding the Lululemon Le

(x)  “ Other Tenants” means the Tenants, excluding the Purchaser, asttender the Lululemon Leas

(y) “ Parties” means, collectively, the Vendor and the Purchaseé“ Party ” means either of the Vendor or the Purche
(2) “Permitted Encumbrances” means the Leases and the legal notations, chdiges and interests listed in Schedule A

attached hereto (except for any Leases listed lre@de A that pertain to premises that are no Iongeupied by the
applicable Tenant), including any agreements edtigrt® by the Vendor in accordance with sectiofisahd 4.6 and any other
tenancy agreements, agreements, charges, lieescombrances expressly permitted in writing byRbechaser prior to the
Completion Date

(aa) “ Person” includes a firm, corporation or other enti

(bb) *“ Purchase Price” means the amount set out in section

(cc) “Purchased Property” means the Lands, the Leases, the Equipment, thfidbe Service Contracts which are assigned to the
Purchaser with effect on the Completion Date purst@mthis Agreement, and all other rights and ffie\e be granted or
transferred to the Purchaser under this Agreen

(dd) *“ Purchaser” means lululemon athletica canada il

(ee) " Purchasers Conditions” means the conditions precedent set forth in sulosescé.1(a) and 6.1(b




-4 -
(f)  “ Purchaser’s Solicitors” means the Vancouver office of McCarthy Tétrault L.

(gg) “Quantity Surveyor " means an independent quantity surveyor approyatié Purchaser, acting reasonably, and retained by
the Vendor for the purposes of section :

(hh)  “Release includes releasing, spilling, leaking, pumpinguping, flowing, depositing, emitting, emptyingsdharging,
escaping, leaching, disposing and dumping and dedll matters included in the words “introducestednto the
environment” in thé&environmental Management A@ritish Columbia), the word “deposit” in tHésheries Ac{Canada) or

the word “release” in th€anadian Environmental Protection A€@anada), in each case as in force on the dateésof t
Agreement

(il  “ Replacement Estoppel Certificate” has the meaning set forth in section -

(i) " RJC Report” has the meaning set forth in section 4.1(b)

(kk) “Service Contracts” means all written agreements entered into by dredralf of the Vendor with respect to the furnishdd
supplies or services to the Lands or with respetiteé management or operation of the Lands (instudgreements with
parking facility operators, janitors, building maeas and other management or maintenance persp

(I  “ Statement of Adjustments” has the meaning set forth in subsection 3.:

(mm) “ Tenants” means all persons holding an interest in the Isgmarsuant to the Leases anfiéhant” means any of such
Tenants

(nn) “ Tenant Receivables has the meaning set forth in subsection 3..
(00) “ Transfer " means the Freehold Transfer delivered to the Pa&r’s Solicitors pursuant to subsection 7.1
(pp) “ Vendor” means 2725312 Canada Inc.;

(qg) *“ Vendor's Solicitors” means the Vancouver office of Stikeman Elliott LI

GENERAL PRINCIPLES.
For the purposes of this Agreeme

€) “this Agreement” means this Agreement,udahg the Schedules hereto, as the same may béeesugamed or amended and in
effect from time to time

(b) any reference in this Agreement to a saecsoibsection, paragraph, subparagraph or Schisdaleeference to the appropriate
section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph @d8khin or to this Agreemer

(c) if any provision of this Agreement or argrphereof is found or determined to be invalidiit be severable and severed from
this Agreement and the remainder of this Agreemaélhbe construed as if such invalid provision @rphad been deleted
from this Agreement




(d)

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

0)

(k)
()

-5-

this Agreement and all matters arising heder will be governed by and construed in accardawith the laws of British
Columbia, which will be deemed to be the proper hereof, and the courts of British Columbia wilveahe non-exclusive
jurisdiction to entertain and determine all claiaml disputes arising out of or in any way conneutitd this Agreement an
the validity, existence and enforceability here

the headings used in and the organizafiohi® Agreement are solely for convenience of reiee and will not in any way
affect, limit, amplify or modify the terms hereaicwill not be construed in any way to be parthi$ tAgreement in the
interpretation hereo

the words “herein”, “hereof” and “hereuntiand words of similar import refer to this Agreemes a whole and not to any
particular Article, section, subsection, paragrautyparagraph or other subdivision or Scheduleoffie

the word “including”, when following any geral statement, term or matter, will not be caredrto limit such general
statement, term or matter to the specific itemsatters set forth immediately following such word@similar items or
matters, but will be construed to refer to all etihems or matters that could reasonably fall wittiie scope of such general
statement, term or matter, whether or not non-irgitanguage (such as “without limitation”, “buttdionited to” or words of
similar import) is used with reference there

in the computation of periods of time franspecified date to a later specified date, urddssrwise expressly stated, the word
“from” mean<“from and includin” and the wor“to” and“until” each mea’“to but excludin”;

words importing the masculine gender inedlde feminine or neuter gender and words in thgusar include the plural, and
vice versa

any reference to a statute includes aradrisference to such statute and to the regulati@te pursuant thereto, with all
amendments made thereto and in force from timerte, tand to any statutes or any regulations that lneapassed which have
the effect of supplementing or superseding sudiitemor regulations

all references to monetary amounts in this Agree¢raenreferences to Canadian dollars;

any reference herein to “the knowledgehaf Yendor”, “the awareness of the Vendor” or “awdveéth reference to the
Vendor) will mean the actual knowledge of Chry&alns, Director, Investment Management and JohodéfyuSenior Vice
President & Portfolio Manager, both of Bentall Kedy (Canada) LP. For greater certainty, and irh&rgnce of the “as is-
where is” basis of this transaction, neither theda, Ms. Burns nor Mr. Purcell will be requireddonduct or initiate any
investigations or inquiries of any kind whatsoeweto commission any independent or internal stjdresestigations or
reports in connection with the Purchased Propergng matters contemplated by or otherwise dedh imithis Agreement,
except that each of Ms. Burns and Mr. Purcell waihsult with such asset managers, portfolio marsaged leasing managers
within Bentall Kennedy (Canada) LP as may be realslymecessary to ensure that they are fully infmtmregarding the
matter that is qualified by tH*awarenes” or “knowledg¢ of the Vendor
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

SCHEDULES.
The following are the Schedules to this Agreemeath of which is an integral part here

Schedule A Lands and Permitted Encumbran
Schedule E Estoppel Certificat:

ARTICLE 2
PURCHASE AND SALE

AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE.

Subject to the terms and conditions of thisefegnent and based on the warranties and represastatrein contained, the Vendor
agrees to sell and the Purchaser agrees to purttt@Beirchased Property on the Closing Date foPtirehase Price, all on an “as is-
where i basis.

PURCHASE PRICE.

The Purchase Price for the Purchased Propélithen$65,000,000, exclusive of HST. The Partidél uge reasonable efforts to agree
prior to the Completion Date on an allocation & Burchase Price among the Purchased Property.Judovtbe Parties acknowledge
and agree that failure to agree on such an altmcgtiior to the Completion Date will neither conéer any Party the right to termini
this Agreement nor result in the termination o§tAgreement

PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE.
The Purchase Price for the Purchased Propertyowifiaid as follows

€)) as to $1,000,000, by payment of such amoytihe Purchaser to the Purchas&olicitors, in trust, and as a stakeholder u
the Real Estate Services A, within two (2) Business Days after the Effectivate;

(b) as to $14,000,000, by payment of such ambyithe Purchaser to the Purchaser’s Solicitargust, and as a stakeholder
under theReal Estate Services Aawithin two (2) Business Days after the satisfawtdor waiver of the PurchassrConditions
and

(c) asto the balance of the Purchase Price (subj¢ketadjustments made pursuant to section 3.3)abynent of such amount
the Purchaser to the Vendor pursuant to Articl

INVESTMENT OF DEPOSIT.
The Deposit will be invested by the PurchasBo#citors in an interest-bearing trust accountetificate of deposit as approved by

the Purchaser, with interest for the account ofRbiechaser unless the Deposit and interest istpdfte Vendor pursuant to
paragraph 2.5(a)(ii’




2.5

3.1

APPLICATION OF DEPOSIT.

The amount paid at any time on account of the Depal be:

@

0)

(i)
(b)

0)

(i)

(iii)
COMPLETION .

paid to the Vendol

on the Completion Date on account of thecRase Price, if the Vendor and the Purchaser caafihe sale and
purchase of the Purchased Property on the ComplBiabe; o1

together with interest earned thereon,ufee default of the Purchaser in completing thelpase of the Purchased
Property on the Completion Date (after the Purahaggonditions have been satisfied or waived), urdass default i
expressly waived in writing by the Vendor, or otlisse upon the Purchaser repudiating this Agreenvemtéreupon
such amount so paid to the Vendor will be absojutaifeited to the Vendor as liquidated damagethas/endors sole
and exclusive remedy and this Agreement will teatérforthwith upon such payment being made. Faatgre
certainty, the Purchaser hereby acknowledges amgaghat such forfeiture of the Deposit and actimterest will no
constitute a penalty and the Purchaser will neitiiege nor assert that such forfeiture is harshpnscionable or a
penalty; or

paid to the Purchaser (less the $10.00 paid bi?tinehaser to the Vendor pursuant to section

if the Purchaser does not notify the Vendbthe satisfaction or waiver of all of the Pursbids Conditions in the
manner and within the time provided therein

upon the default of the Vendor, withoutjrdice to any other right or remedy of the Purehgi§ the Vendor is in
default of its obligation to complete the saletof Purchased Property hereunder, unless such tisfanpressly
waived in writing by the Purchaser, or otherwisemthe Vendor repudiating this Agreement and withpyajudice to
any other right or remedy of the Purchaser, othichaser has elected to complete the purchabe #futrchased
Property without prejudice to any other right amegly of the Purchaser;

if this Agreement is terminated pursuamtsubsection 3.4(b) or if the Purchaser electdmobmplete the purchase of
the Purchased Property pursuant to section

ARTICLE 3
COMPLETION, POSSESSION AND ADJUSTMENTS

The completion of the purchase and sale oPtvehased Property contemplated by this Agreemiindbeeur on the Completion
Date, or such other date as may be agreed in giiynthe Parties, and the place of closing wilthee Vancouver offices of the
Purchase's Solicitors at 130— 777 Dunsmuir Street, Vancouver, British Columl




PossEssioN

The Vendor will deliver to the Purchaser posgesof the Purchased Property free from all lietsims, charges, encumbrances and
legal notations other than the Permitted Encumlasimomediately upon completion of the sale andhmse of the Purchased
Property.

ADJUSTMENTS.

@) Adjustment Date Adjustments for the Purchased Property will lmmas of the Completion Date and the payment due
pursuant to subsection 2.3(c) will be adjusted edingly. Except as otherwise provided in this Agnest, the Vendor will be
responsible for all expenses and will be entitedlt revenues accrued with respect to the Purch@easperty for the period
ending on the day before the Completion Date amdhie period from and including the Completion &dhe Purchaser will
be responsible for all expenses and will be ewtititeall revenues accruing with respect to the Rased Property

(b) Adjustment Items The adjustments with respect to the Leasesndglude all current rents (including current basnt,
current additional rent and other current charga®gpaid rents and other prepaid charges, seaefgsits and all other items
normally adjusted between a vendor and purchasespect of the sale of property similar to thedsaror greater certaint

0] pursuant to the Lululemon Lease, the Puseh&as prepaid the basic rent payable for thetfiree years of the term
thereof, and the Purchaser will receive a credihenStatement of Adjustments for the portion aftshasic rent that is
attributable to the period from and after the Caatiph Date; an

(i)  pursuant to the Lululemon Lease, the Vandmbligated to undertake certain future workaepect of the proposed
lease expansion scheduled to occur in 2011, arfdahi@gations on the part of the Vendor will bewasgd by the
Purchaser on the Completion De

(c) Statement of AdjustmentsA statement of adjustments (th&tatement of Adjustments”) will be delivered to the Purchaser
by the Vendor at least five (5) Business Days poahe Completion Date and will have annexed tioedetails of the
calculations used to arrive at all debits and ¢senin the Statement of Adjustments. The Vendorgiié the Purchaser and its
representatives reasonable access to all workipgrpand back-up materials in order to verify tbeuaacy of the Statement
of Adjustments

(d) Readjustment If the final cost or amount of an item whichasbe adjusted has not been determined as of thglétion
Date, then an initial calculation or adjustmentdach item will be made as of the Completion Daie i@eflected on the
Statement of Adjustments. The amount of such itelirbe estimated by the Vendor and agreed to byPihkehaser, each
acting reasonably, as of the Completion Date orb#®és of the best evidence available at the Caiopl®ate as to what the
final cost or amount of such item will be. In eaase, when such cost or amount is determined @ketelhmination to be ma
as soon as possible and in any event prior tod@matvhich is one year after the Completion Dateg,Rurchaser will, within
30 days of determination, provide a complete statarthereof to the Vendor and, within 30 days thiteg, the Vendor and
the Purchaser will make a final adjustment as efGlompletion Date for the item
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(f)
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question. In the absence of agreement bPénges, the final cost or amount of an item willdetermined by independent
auditors, acceptable to the Vendor and the Purcheaeh acting reasonably, with the cost of sudtitars’ determination
being shared equally between the Vendor and theh@ser. On the Completion Date, the Parties wékeie an undertaking
to further adjust between themselves to confirmatiieeement set out in this section :

Commissions, Tenant Inducements and Lani’s Work. With respect to

() any Lease entered into by the Vendor prior to tfiediive Date, and subject only to the exceptiorfeeh in paragrap
3.3(b)(ii), the Vendor will be responsible for thayment of all third party leasing commissions, thiee payable or
accrued before or after the Completion Date, ofesdant inducements and allowances, including ledseover
obligations and free rent, payable or accrued véfipect to such Lease, and of all costs and exp@fisay landlord’s
work or improvements pursuant to such Lease. T@xtent that any such leasing commissions, temaltcements ar
allowances and costs of landlasdvork or improvements for which the Vendor is msgible have not been paid by
Vendor as of the Completion Date, the Purchasémwitredited with respect thereto on the StateroBAdjustments;
and

(i)  any Lease modified by the Vendor after Eféective Date or any new lease entered into iejMbndor after the
Effective Date, in each case modified or enteréal with the prior written approval of the Purchasbe Purchaser will
be responsible for the payment of all third paegsing commissions, whether payable or accrueddefaafter the
Completion Date, of all tenant inducements andnadloces, including lease take-over obligations aee fent, payable
or accrued with respect to such Lease, and obaliscand expenses of any landlsrdiork or improvements pursuani
such modification of Lease or new Lease and, featgr certainty, if the Purchaser does not appobeay such
modification, the Vendor will be responsible forypzent of all such amounts and the Purchaser witirbdited with
respect thereto on the Statement of Adjustm

Tenant ReceivablesAny rental arrears and accounts receivable agdther claims against a Tenant payable or acqouec
to the Completion Date and unpaid on the Compldiiate (the “Tenant Receivables) will remain the property of the
Vendor and there will be no adjustment in favoutha&f Vendor on the Statement of Adjustments fohsaamounts save and
except for arrears under the Lululemon Lease, whickars will be adjusted on the Completion Datgy Amount of rent
received or collected by the Purchaser after th@etion Date from a Tenant that owes Tenant Rabdds to the Vendor
will be credited, first, to current month’s rengécend, to any arrears of rent owing and accruiogfand after the Completion
Date, and third, to any Tenant Receivables oweldd/endor. Any amount of rent received or collddig the Vendor after
the Completion Date from a Tenant that owes TeRackivables to the Vendor will be credited, fitstsuch Tenant
Receivables, and any surplus rent, if any, recedrazbllected by the Vendor will be promptly paidthe Purchase
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34 Risk.

The Lands and Equipment will be at the Venddsk until the completion of the transaction canfdated herein and thereafter at the
risk of the Purchaser. If there is material losd@mage to the Lands and Equipment before the @atioplof the sale and the
purchase of the Purchased Property, the follownogipions will apply:

(a) if in the written opinion of the Quantity&eyor the estimated cost to repair such damalgsssthan $750,000, then the
Vendor must elect, within ten (10) Business Daygreckipt of the Quantity Surveysrbpinion, to either (A) repair the dame
with due dispatch following the delivery of suchrdpn and receipt of applicable insurance proceed8) assign to the
Purchaser all insurance policies and proceedseatbtherefrom relevant to the damage to the LandsleEquipment, and to
pay to the Purchaser on closing an amount equbktdeductible under such insurance policies amdtaplete the sale and
purchase of the Purchased Prope

(b) if in the written opinion of the Quantity&eyor the estimated cost to repair such damageeter than $750,000, then the
Purchaser will be entitled to elect, within ten)Blisiness Days of receipt of the Quantity Survisyopinion, to either
(A) terminate this Agreement, in which event thepbBst and all interest earned thereon will be retdrto the Purchaser, and
thereafter neither party will have any further ontinuing obligation to the other under this Agresin(except as otherwise
specifically provided for in this Agreement) or (B)quire the Vendor to assign to the Purchaseénslirance policies and
proceeds derived therefrom relevant to the damagieetLands and the Equipment, and to pay to theh@ger on closing an
amount equal to the deductible under such insurpabieies and to complete the sale and purchasigedPurchased Proper

(c) if necessary, the Completion Date will bgeaded until that day which is ten (10) Businesy®after the delivery of the
Quantity Surveyor’s written opinion to the Vendadahe Purchaser, subject to further extensioh@Qompletion Date
pursuant to paragraph (d) below; ¢

(d) if the Vendor elects to repair pursuanpavagraph (a) above, the completion of the purchadesale of the Purchased
Property following the occurrence of any such daenadl be the later of

0] the Completion Date as defined in this Agreememd,
(i)  thetenth (1@") Business Day after the date the Purchaser rexéiom the Vendor a certificate of the Architedttthe
damage to the Lands and the Equipment has beetastibby repaired
ARTICLE 4
VENDOR’'S COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
4.1 Basic COVENANTS.

The Vendor covenants and agrees with the Purcliasethe Vendor will

@ subject to the rights of the Other Tenao¢smit the Purchaser and the Purchaser’'s emplpgagmeers, agents and advisors
to enter onto the Lands and carry out s




(b)
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inspections, tests, studies, surveys andstigations of the Lands and Equipment as the Peethaay reasonably require on
twenty-four (24) hours’ written notice, providedatithe Purchases’access to the Lands for such purposes will beagonabl
times scheduled by the Vendor at the Purchaseglseist and in accordance with the terms of the Qthases and, at the
option of the Vendor, subject to the Vendosupervision, will cause no material disruptiomty of the Other Tenants or ot
occupants of the Lands, will be at the Purchassis risk and expense and will be subject to thetaser, at its cost,
repairing any and all damage caused in connedii@retvith and indemnifying the Vendor in accordawié section 5.5

permit the Purchaser to have access dmongal business hours to the Vendor’s corresporaléiles with respect to the
Other Tenants, (and will permit the Purchaser t&ersuch copies thereof, at the Purchaser’s coseaBurchaser may
reasonably require), and deliver to the Purchatsiés address herein on or before the date whithree (3) Business Days
after the Effective Date

(0 original or true and complete copies of @iher Leases and of any current drafts of anyiatied offers to lease any
part of the Lands

(i)  atrue and complete “rent roll” in respettthe Leases, consisting of a list of the Tenahis monthly rental payable by
each, the date the tenancy commenced, particllarsycarrears of rent owing by or outstanding dispuith any Other
Tenant, particulars of any default under the Otlearses (including material non-financial defaulpgticulars of any
modification of any Other Leases, particulars of prepayments or abatements of rent, particulaengfsecurity or
damage deposits held by or on behalf of the Ver

(iii)  to the extent they are in the Vendor'sspession or control, true and complete copiesl @lahs, drawings and
specifications of the Lands (including floor plaekvation drawings, building cross-sections atel @ians), “as built”
or other mechanical, electrical and plumbing drasirbuilding inspection certificates, licences pednits issued in
connection with or pertaining to the Lan

(iv) to the extent they are in the Vendopossession or control, true and complete cogiab third party reports (includin
engineering, geotechnical and environmental repatsveys, plans, specifications, drawings andnisrconcerning
the Lands and the Equipment, and with respecte@liysical condition (excluding the environmentaidition) of the
Equipment and the improvements located on the Lahdsvendor will deliver only the report preparett issued by
RJC Consultants in February 2008 (tHeJC Report "), which the Vendor represents and warrants istlost recent
third party report examining the physical conditafrthe Equipment and the improvements locatecherLainds that is
in the Vendor’s possession and control. For grezgainty, the Vendor will not be required to delito the Purchaser
any appraisals of the Lands or other like documéraspurport to establish the value (whether daubased on
assumptions) of any component of the PurchasedeRyor any third party reports or internal rega@kamining the
physical condition (excluding the environmental @ition) of the Equipment and/or the improvementsated on the
Lands other than the RJIC Report, but will be regfuto deliver all other third party reports (indhgl engineering
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)
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geotechnical and environmental reports) whlicinot pertain to the physical condition (exclggthe environmental
condition) of the Equipment and the improvementshenLands, as contemplated abc

to the extent they are in the Vendor’s pss#on or control, true and complete copies ofdoguments indicating
whether:

A. the building on the Lands encroaches onjacaut land or any buildings on adjacent land emciianto the
Lands;

B. the Lands provide adequate support for adjaland, receive adequate support from adjacedt lar are
unstable; an

C. the Lands suffer from or cause drainage, erosidiooding problems

to the extent they are in the Vendor'sgassion or control, the originals or true and c@atgptopies of all agreements
and correspondence with the City regarding devetoprevies, if any, or local improvement chargéany, payable
after the Completion Date, servicing agreementsirngy building restrictions, development permits &uilding
permits related to the development of the Lau

a reasonably detailed inventory of the Equipm

original or true and complete copiestbé Service Contracts and a summary of the stateasfunts with respect to the
Service Contracts as at the Effective D.

a list of all warranties in favour of the Vendomrantly in effect with respect to the Lands and Bugiipment;

property level operating statements witbpect to the Lands for 2008, 2009 and 2010 to aladea written statement of
all budgeted expenses for 20:

current property tax statements for the Lands artiqulars of any current property tax appe

to the extent they are in the Vendor'spession or control, any other document or infoignawhich is within the
scope of disclosure described in paragraphs 4i1{b)(xi) and is requested in writing from timetime by the
Purchaser, acting reasonably, and which is relemantaterial to the operation and ownership ofRbechased
Property; anc

all material information in the possessior control of the Vendor with respect to any afidrirst Nation or aboriginal
claims or issues associated with the Lau

deliver to the Purchaser the original érnu@ and complete copy of any other document ofythe described above in
subsection 4.1(b) which, after the Effective Datames within the possession of the Vendor, sudheatglto be made within
three (3) Business Days following such date of pssi®n;
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(f)
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(h)

(i)
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subject to the overriding provisions ofté@t 9.14 and subsection 5.3(b), permit the Purehasd its agents, representatives
and consultants to make such copies of the matefiaired to in subsections 4.1(b) and 4.1(cheatRurchaser’s cost, as the
Purchaser may reasonably require in connectionitgittiue diligence review of the Purchased Prop:

from the Effective Date until the CompletiDate, use its reasonable commercial efforts timtaia the Lands and Equipment
in the same general state of repair and conditsoexésts as of the Effective Date, subject to reable wear and tez

from the Effective Date until the Completion De

0] enforce the terms of all Leases (howevena event will the Vendor be entitled to terminaty of the Leases except
as permitted under section 4.6 without the pridttem consent of the Purchase

(i) not modify existing Leases and not enter into agy hease except as permitted under section 4.6

(iii)  not modify existing Service Contracts anot enter into any new Service Contract excepeasiitted under
section 4.7

maintain in force current insurance in respechefltands and the Equipme

cancel and terminate all existing propengnagement agreements with respect to the Larfdstieé as of the Completion
Date;

cancel and terminate all other contractsciviielate to the operation of the Lands and theififgent, including any Service
Contracts which the Purchaser does not advise émgldf that the Purchaser wishes to assume in aowdvith section 5.4,
effective as of the Completion Da

pay all amounts due, owing or payable pursuartiédService Contracts to and including the Compieiate;

execute, or cause to be executed, andrébuthe Purchaser or the Purchaser’s Solicitosoas as is reasonably possible all
consents or letters of authority which it may beessary for the Vendor or any director, officesbareholder thereof, to
execute in order for the Purchaser to conduct duehdiligence searches with respect to the purabistbe Purchased
Property as it determines to be necessary

forward to the Purchaser within two (2) Bwess Days of the Vendor’s receipt, any searchitseBom government offices
which are directed to the Vendor in response todueydiligence inquiries made by or at the reqaé#ite Purchase

VENDOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .

The Vendor hereby represents and warrantspassentations and warranties that are true aedttfective Date and will be true at
the Completion Date as follow
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(h)
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0)

(k)
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the Vendor has now, and will have good ewadketable legal and beneficial title to the PusgltaProperty on the Completion
Date, free and clear of all liens, claims, chargesumbrances and legal notations save and exaethtef Permitted
Encumbrances

the Vendor is a body corporate duly incogbed and validly existing under the laws of Canada is duly qualified to own
and sell the Purchased Property and has full paavghority and capacity to enter into this Agreetrard to carry out the
transactions contemplated here

the Vendor has never been struck from the regidteompanies maintained by its jurisdiction of inparation;

all necessary corporate action on the gfatie directors and shareholders of the Vendoibleas taken to authorize and
approve the execution and delivery of this Agreetnidne completion of the transactions contempléte@in and the
performance and observance of the Ve’s obligations hereunde

there is no action or proceeding pendindmthe knowledge of the Vendor, threatened agétmesVendor before any court,
arbiter, arbitration panel or administrative trilbiior governmental agency which, if decided advgrigethe Vendor, might
materially affect the Vend’s ability to perform the Vend’s obligations hereunde

no consent or approval of, or registratidaclaration or filing with any governmental comsiis, board or other regulatory
body is required for the execution or deliverylistAgreement by the Vendor, the validity or enéaility of this Agreement
against the Vendor, or the performance by the Vendany of the Vend/s obligations hereunde

neither the Vendor entering into this Agreementtherperformance by the Vendor of the terms hanglbfesult in the breac
of or constitute a default under any term or priavif any instrument, document, agreement, stabyiaw, regulation, or
encumbrance to which the Vendor or the PurchasepePty are bound or subject or which would resuthie creation of any
lien, encumbrance or other charge on the PurchRssakrty;

the Vendor is not “nor-residen” of Canada within the meaning of tincome Tax Ac(Canada)

the Vendor has no present or future obiaato construct or provide, or to pay any amoordny person in connection with,
off-site services, utilities or similar services in nention with the Land:

there is no action, suit, claim or litigani pending or, to the knowledge of the Vendor,atered with respect to the Lands or
the existing use or occupancy thereof and, to tlmkedge of the Vendor, no state of facts existewhould constitute the
basis of any such action, suit, claim or litigati

except as may otherwise be disclosed in the DgliMaterials, the Vendor has not received and thedde is not aware of al
notice, request, directive or order from any Gowgental Authority or official, requesting, requirilg ordering the
performance of any work or alteration in respedhefLands. For the purposes of this subsec
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(n)
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reference to any notice, request, directive orongieans any written notice, request, directiverdeg

the Vendor has received no written noti€armd the Vendor is not aware of any proposed gxation of the Lands or any
part thereof

all local improvement, municipal, real pesty, school and other taxes and assessments dimchyhatsoever levied by any
Governmental Authority having jurisdiction whicheadue or payable, are paid in full to the due @at@ayment thereof
except for current charges for utilities consunrethe Lands and, except as disclosed to the Pweciagriting, on the
Completion Date will be paid in full to the Compdet Date;

the Equipment will, on the Completion Da
0] be free and clear of all claims, liens, chargesermimbrances; ar
(i) be assignable by the Vendor to the Purchi
except as disclosed by the Vendor to the Purclmssuant to subsection 4.1(

there are no Other Leases, except thoseededl to the Purchaser as part of the Deliveryedals, and in respect of each of
the Other Lease:

() each is a valid and subsisting lease andafault exists thereunder, except as disclosatidyendor to the Purchaser
pursuant to subsection 4.1(

(i)  the rents and other payments reserveddoy ©ther Lease have not been demanded, collecteepted or paid
in advance of the time for payment thereof, exespdisclosed by the Vendor to the Purchaser pursoian
subsection 4.1(b

(iii)  the Vendor is the absolute owner theranél has not assigned, mortgaged, pledged, hypadueocnotherwise dealt
with such Other Lease or rents payable thereuntibtteere is no existing right of defence, set of€@unterclaim
against the Vendor on the part of the tenant theveiny guarantor, indemnitor or covenantor ipees thereof

(iv)  all covenants on the part of the landlorééach of the Other Leases has been observedeafudrped, except as
disclosed by the Vendor to the Purchaser purswasitisection 4.1(b); ar

(v)  there are no deposits held or prepaymeiasp rents, common expenses or other paymentsninection with any of
the Other Leases, except as disclosed by the Vaadbe Purchaser pursuant to subsection 4.

each of the Service Contracts is in goadding and assignable to the Purchaser or camibetged by the Vendor on not
more than 30 days’ notice, except as disclosethéwendor to the Purchaser pursuant to subsectigh)4and there is no
material default thereunder by the Vendor or theptontracting parties thereto and contains thiesesigreement between t
parties identified therein. There are no oral atipby oral and partially written Service Contrag
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(q) to the Vendos knowledge, all of the documents and other mdsepiavided pursuant to subsections 4.1(b) anccidre true
and complete copie

(9] the Vendor is not now and has not beenrty i@ any collective agreement or subject to aoliective bargaining obligation
relating to the Purchased Property or any busioesducted thereon with any labour union or othspeigtion of employee:

(s) the Vendor has no employees in respedteoVendor’s operation of the Lands for whom thecRaser will be responsible
following the completion of the sale and purchafs#he Purchased Proper:

® there are no rights of first refusal to ghaise, options to purchase, rights of first reftsétase, options to lease or similar
agreements which have been granted by the Vendesjpect of any part of the Purchased Property tffae any such
agreements which may be contained in the copiéiseofeases delivered by the Vendor to the Purclasgexcept as
disclosed by the Vendor to the Purchaser purswasitisection 4.1(b); ar

(u) the Vendor is not in default under any s@mn of any of the Permitted Encumbrances or ggrg@ment in any way related to
the Lands and the Equipment, and has performeaf @l obligations with respect to all such encuamues, charges and
agreements, except as disclosed by the VendoetBuhchaser pursuant to subsection 4.:

The Vendor acknowledges and agrees that thehBser has entered into this Agreement in reliancthe foregoing representations
and warranties and the representation and warmamgragraph 4.1(b)(iv) with respect to the RIC &g,

SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS.

The representations and warranties by the feexioressed in section 4.2, or otherwise exprelsgede Vendor in this Agreement,
will not merge on the Completion Date but will simevthe Completion Date for a period of two (2) geed he Purchaser will give
written notice of each breach of a representationarranty to the Vendor, together with detailsrétod, promptly after becoming
aware of such breach and, in any event, no lager tivo (2) years after the Completion Date. After éxpiration of such two

(2) years period, the Vendor will be absolutely andonditionally released from all obligations diadbilities in respect of the
representations and warranties expressed in set@omr otherwise expressed by the Vendor inAlgieement or in any document
certificate given to the Purchaser in order to cletepthis transaction, save and except with redpeathy claims made by the
Purchaser in writing prior to the expiration of Buwo (2) year perioc

INDEMNITY .

The Vendor will indemnify the Purchaser agaiastd save the Purchaser harmless from, any losspc damage of any nature
whatsoever sustained by the Purchaser directlydiractly by reason of a breach by the Vendor ¢f afrits obligations under secti
4.1 or any other provision of this Agreement oredgh of, or inaccuracy in, any of the warrantiesepresentations set forth in
section 4.2 or any other provision of this Agreem

EstorPEL CERTIFICATES .

Except as hereinafter provided, the Vendor @bliain and deliver to the Purchaser, prior tocthmpletion of the purchase and sale of
the Purchased Property, Estoppel Certificates ftmrOther Tenants. To the extent that the Vendon&ble to obtain and deliver to
the Purchase
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prior to the Completion Date, Estoppel Ceréfes from all of the Other Tenants despite usihgeakonable commercial efforts to
obtain the same, the Vendor will execute and deliw¢he Purchaser on the Completion Date certésaf the Vendor for such Ott
Tenants certifying the information that would hde®n in the applicable Estoppel Certificates (tReplacement Estoppel
Certificates ”). The Replacement Estoppel Certificates will eeched for all purposes to be a representation amchaty hereunder
by the Vendor of the truth and accuracy of the enatset forth in the Replacement Estoppel Certdzalrhe Purchaser will, for a
period of sixty (60) days after the Completion Da&turn to the Vendor any Replacement Estoppéificate (which will be deemed
null and void except in the case of a material beindf information contained in the Estoppel Céctite and the Replacement
Estoppel Certificate) for which the Vendor delivesghe Purchaser an Estoppel Certificate in a@ed with this section 4.5 for the
same Other Lease. For greater certainty, the Vendionot be required to obtain an Estoppel Ceztife from the Purchaser in resy
of the Lululemon Lease or to provide a Replacerastoppel Certificate in respect there

The Vendor will deliver to the Purchaser fariiformation, at least 72 hours prior to the Venfidowarding them to the Other
Tenants, drafts of all the Estoppel Certificatescivithe Vendor proposes to deliver to the Otherahgs for executior

L EASE CHANGES.

Until the Purchaser’s Conditions have beersgatl or waived, the Parties acknowledge and cartirat any modification of an
existing Lease and all new proposed Leases wilbhearded to the Purchaser for its review. From after the Effective Date, and
prior to the satisfaction or waiver of all the Phmser’'s Conditions, all such modifications andsalth new proposed Leases will be
subject to the prior written approval of the Pugdrawhich approval will not be unreasonably witdh&rom and after the
satisfaction or waiver of all the Purchaser’s Ctinds, approval may be given or withheld in thedPaser’s sole and unfettered
discretion. The Purchaser agrees that it will resigo any request for approval within three (3) iBass Days after such request is
made in writing to it and if the Purchaser failgéspond within such time the Purchaser will bentkx to have approved such
modification or new proposed Lease. Notwithstandiregforegoing, the Purchaser will not unreasonalitithold or delay its
approval in connection with any requests made byQther Tenants for consents to assignments oetsubl connection with Other
Leases

SERVICE CONTRACT CHANGES.

Until the Purchaser’s Conditions have beersBatl or waived, the Parties acknowledge and conirat any modification of an
existing Service Contract and all new proposed iSer@ontracts will be forwarded to the Purchaseitforeview. From and after the
Effective Date, and prior to the satisfaction oiiwea of the Purchaser’s Conditions all such modificns and all such new proposed
Service Contracts will be subject to the prior tertapproval of the Purchaser, which approval mall be unreasonably withheld.
From and after the satisfaction or waiver of thecRaser’s Conditions, approval may be given or métt in the Purchaser’s sole and
unfettered discretion. The Purchaser agrees thall itespond to any request for approval withineth (3) Business Days after such
request is made in writing to it and if it failstespond within such time the Purchaser will bentegk to have approved such
modification or new proposed Service Contract. Nibtstanding the foregoing, the Vendor may entey arty modification of an
existing Service Contract or any new Service Camntnathout requiring the Purchaser’s approvalh#é term of same expires prior to
the Completion Date or if the relevant Service Caxcttis terminable by the Vendor prior to the Coetiph Date
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ARTICLE 5
PURCHASER’'S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

PURCHASER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

The Purchaser hereby represents and warranép@Esentations and warranties that are true tieedEffective Date and will be true
as of the Completion Date as follov

€)) the Purchaser validly exists and is dulglijied to purchase and own the Purchased Propeidyhas full power, authority and
capacity to enter into this Agreement and carrytbattransaction contemplated her

(b) there is no action or proceeding pendintpdhe Purchaser’'s knowledge, threatened agdiasetirchaser before any court,
arbiter, arbitration panel, administrative tribupalagency which, if decided adversely to the Paseh, might materially affe
the Purchas’s ability to perform the Purcha’s obligations hereunder; a

(c) neither the Purchaser’s entering into Agseement nor the performance of its terms willtem the breach of or constitute a

default under any term or provision of any indeatumortgage, deed of trust or other agreement tohithe Purchaser is
bound or subjec

Asl|s—WHERE Is.
The Purchaser agrees and acknowledges

(@) the Purchaser is acquiring the Purchasegddrty from the Vendor on an “as is-where is” basid the Purchaser will satisfy
itself with respect to all matters related to thedhased Property that pertain, in any way

0] the suitability or fitness of the Lands and the iaqment for the Purchas’s purposes
(i) the physical and environmental condition of thedsaand the Equipmer

(iii)  the area or dimensions of the Lands, includingetkistence of any encroachmer
(iv)  the rights to develop, build on, subdivide or ottiee extract value from the Lanc

(v)  the existing or potential costs or obligat which might be imposed on the Purchaser bygamgrnmental authority
(including the City) including, and by way of exal@pnly, resulting from a determination that thentis:

(A) do not provide adequate support for adjatamd, do not receive adequate support from adjdeed, or are
unstable

(B) suffers from or causes drainage, erosion or flopgiroblems; o
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(C) the legal terms and conditions of, andekisting and potential rights and obligations whaetse from or may
arise from the Permitted Encumbranc

the Purchaser has entered into this Agreénedying solely and entirely upon its own inspees and the limited
representations and warranties of the Vendor dpatif set out herein. The Purchaser acknowledgasthere are no
representations, warranties, guarantees, agreewrectsditions, whether direct or collateral, opeess or implied, which
induced the Purchaser to enter into this Agreemeah which reliance is placed by the Purchasewhich affects this
Agreement or the Purchased Property, other thapexsfically set out in sections 4.2 and 4.3. Tleador is not giving to the
Purchaser, and the Purchaser is not requiring fhemvendor, any express or implied warranties apdasentations regarding
the Lands including that, before or after the BfferDate or the Completion Dal

0] the Lands and the surrounding Environment complyoonot comply with Environmental Law
(i)  the Lands and the surrounding Environment are®nat free from Special Waste or other Hazardousstauces

(iii) any Hazardous Substances have or havéeen released, spilled, leaked, pumped, poureitteelmemptied,
discharged, dumped or disposed of, or have or havescaped, leached, or migrated, from the Landgfze
surrounding Environment to, on, or under adjacentl$ or their surrounding Environment;

(iv)  the Lands will or will not be environmetitaor otherwise suitable for any purpose includoagupancy, development,
or derivation of revenu

it is the obligation of the Purchaser ttisfn itself that there is no Special Waste or otHazardous Substances on, in or about
the Lands, and the Purchaser understands and dbgat¢lse Vendor has no obligation to make anystigations, tests or
studies with respect to the existence of any Sp@¢éste or other Hazardous Substances on, in artdbe Lands

the Purchaser is relying on its own du@édiice in reviewing the Delivery Materials and Bxaivery Materials are not
intended to constitute a representation or warraatio any of the contents thereof on the pati@Mendor or as to the
accuracy and sufficiency thereof, other than asesgty represented and warranted by the Vendoimhened

the Purchaser hereby waives, to the exemhitted by Laws, any requirement for or obligati®f the Vendor to obtain or
provide to the Purchaser a “site profile” or anlgestenvironmental report for the Lands as may Qaired under any
applicable Environmental Law

PURCHASER’S COVENANTS.

The Purchaser covenants and agrees with the Venaliothe Purchaser wil

(@)

keep the Delivery Materials in confidence pursuargection 9.14; an
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(b) return all copies of the Delivery Materitdsthe Vendor, including copies made by or on Hedfahe Purchaser pursuant to
subsections 4.1(b) and 4.1(d), in the event thatrdmsactions contemplated herein are not contpfeteany reason other th
the default of the Vendo

SERVICE CONTRACTS.

Except for those of the Service Contracts withehPurchaser advises the Vendor, on or beforddteethat the Purchaser’s
Conditions are satisfied or waived in writing b tAurchaser, that the Purchaser wishes to asshenéendor will cause the Service
Contracts to be terminated effective on or befbeeGompletion Date

INDEMNITY .

The Purchaser hereby covenants and agreesheitiendor that the Purchaser will indemnify thentfer and save the Vendor
harmless from and against any and all damagegdpBabilities, costs and expenses (includinglléggs on a solicitor and own clie
basis) at any time suffered or incurred by the \6eras$ a result of any damage or injury to the Laordbie Equipment or other
property of the Vendor or of any occupant of thedsresulting from the exercise by the Purchasés ofghts under subsection 4.1
(a) or any breach by the Purchaser of any of itigations under any provision of this Agreemenadireach of, or inaccuracy in, any
of the warranties or representations set forttestien 5.1 or any other provision of this Agreem

ENVIRONMENTAL AND PHYsICAL CONDITION — RELEASE.

Save and except for any and all liabilitiestsswactions, obligations, statutory or other pextiags, judgments, investigations,
demands, claims, losses, damages, consequentiabdanremediation cost recovery claims, remediatists, fines, penalties,
expenses, and legal costs on a soli-client basis (collectively, th* Claims ") arising out of section 4.2 and 4

€) each Party, from and after the CompletiateDhereby releases the other Party from all Glaumich a Party may assert
against the other Party at law or in equity, agsinit of or in connection with the application afifonmental Laws to the
Lands, including

0] the noi-compliance of the Lands or the surrounding Envirentwith any Environmental Law
(il any investigation or claim of such r-compliance by any Persa
(iii)  the presence within the Lands or the surroundingrBEnment of‘ Special Wast” or other Hazardous Substances

(iv)  the leaching, escaping; or migrating op&8ial Waste” or other Hazardous Substances frenhémds or the
surrounding Environment to other lands or their@umding Environment, whether or not any such evesmppening, ¢
condition arose or arises before or after the HEffedDate or the Completion Date, and whether d@rcaosed in whole
or in part or directly or indirectly by the Vendeamd

(b) from and after the Completion Date, thecRaser hereby releases the Vendor from all Claitiswthe Purchaser may assert
against the Vendor at law or in equity, arising
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of or in connection with the physical condition astdte of repair of the Lands and the buildingqronements, structures and
fixtures thereon.

SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS.

The representations and warranties by the Raetexpressed in section 5.1 will not merge orCibrapletion Date but will survive
the Completion Date for a period of two (2) yedise Vendor will give written notice of each breafta representation or warranty
to the Purchaser, together with details thereafimptly after becoming aware of such breach andninevent, no later than two

(2) years after the Completion Date. After the eaggon of such two (2) year period, the Purchaséitoe absolutely and
unconditionally released from all obligations aiabilities in respect of the representations andavdies expressed in section 5.1, or
otherwise expressed by the Purchaser in this Ageaeor in any document or certificate given toWemdor in order to complete tt
transaction, save and except with respect to aignslmade by the Vendor in writing prior to the ieafion of such two (2) year
period.

ARTICLE 6
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

PURCHASER’S CONDITIONS .

The obligation of the Purchaser to completepiinehase of the Purchased Property on the CoraplBiate is subject to each of the
following Purchaser’s Conditions having been wailsgdhe Purchaser in writing or satisfied by thedRaser, on or before the
Conditions Removal Dati

€)) the Purchaser will have conducted all ®fiite diligence searches with respect to the Psechroperty and will have
completed its review of the Delivery Materials andthout limiting any of its rights or remedies w@rdhis Agreement, have
satisfied itself, in its sole discretion, as toraktters related to the Purchased Property antlahsactions contemplated
hereby, including all matters related to projeateenues and expenses, the Other Leases, the S@uwtracts and other
relevant contracts, the geotechnical, engineenmbesmvironmental condition of the Lands, the titiehe Lands and the
physical condition of the Lands and fitness for asthe Purchased Property by the Purchaser

(b) the Purchaser will have obtained the apglro¥its Board of Directors to the completion bétpurchase of the Purchased
Property pursuant to the terms of this Agreernr

In consideration of the non-refundable sum of $Q(@8id by the Purchaser to the Vendor and othed god valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are herebynaeidedged by the Vendor, the Vendor acknowledgésaamees that, although the
Purchaser’s obligation to complete the sale andhmse contemplated by this Agreement is subjesatisfaction or waiver of the
Purchaser’s Conditions, this Agreement is not veaddable, revocable or, otherwise capable of b&nginated by the Vendor until
the time limited for the satisfaction or waivertbé Purchaser’s Conditions has expired.

For greater certainty, the Purchaser acknowledgésgrees that the $10.00 paid to the Vendor potgaahis paragraph is the
absolute property of the Vendor and in no eventtwé $10.00 be returnable to or paid to the Pgeha
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WAIVER AND SATISFACTION .

The Purchaser’s Conditions are for the Purafmsele benefit and each may be waived unilatetal the Purchaser, at the
Purchaser’s election. None of the Purchaser’s Giomdi will be considered satisfied unless the Paseh confirms to the Vendor in
writing that such condition has been satisfiedhdf Purchaser does not give the Vendor noticeen§#tisfaction or waiver of each of
the Purchaser’s Conditions by the Conditions Rembase then the Purchaser’s obligation to purchasd,the Vendor’s obligation
to sell, the Purchased Property pursuant to thizé&mgent will be at an end and the Deposit andhtdrést accrued on it will be
returned immediately to the Purchas

ARTICLE 7
PREPARATION OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS

DELIVERY OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS BY THE VENDOR.

On or before the Completion Date, the Venddragiuse the Vendor's Solicitors to deliver to farchaser’s Solicitors the following
items, duly executed by the Vendor and all othes@es (other than the Purchaser) as appropriattaedistrable form wherever
appropriate, to be dealt with pursuant to Article

Documents Transferring Lands:

€)) a Freehold Transfet.é&nd Title Act— Form A) conveying the Lands to the Purchaseaootherwise directed by the
Purchaser)

(b) an agreement pursuant to which the Vendsigas to the Purchaser and the Purchaser assoeesases and all deposits,
guarantees, indemnities, covenants and other sgaurespect of any of ther

(c) directions to the Other Tenants directing the Offemrants to pay future rentals to or as directethbyPurchase
(d) the Estoppel Certificates required pursuant toi@ee.5 (and, if required, the Replacement Estoeetificates)

(e) an agreement pursuant to which the Vengsigas to the Purchaser and the Purchaser asshiosesdf the Service Contracts
(if any) in which the Purchaser has elected purstmasection 5.4 to assun

() an agreement pursuant to which the Vendsigas to the Purchaser and the Purchaser asshengsridor’s right, title and
interest and benefit in and to all current warresmtivhich are assignable and which pertain to tmelé and the Equipment and
in and to all Delivery Materials and all trade m@ritade names and other intellectual property egetlisively in connection
with the Lands

() adischarge of Notice of Interest BM338:
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Documents Transferring Equipment:

(h) a bill of sale conveying and assuring ® Burchaser good and marketable title in and t&thepment, free and clear from
any lien, claim, charge or encumbrance of any kindature whatsoeve

Other Documents:
0] a Statement of Adjustments prepared in accordaitbesection 3.3

()] a certificate of the Vendor, dated the Cdatipn Date, that certifies that the Vendor has pbed with all of its obligations
under this Agreement in all material respects &adl ¢ach of the warranties and representatiorfsedfeéndor set out herein is
true and accurate on the Completion Date in alenwtrespects

(k)  a mutual undertaking to make final adjustmentscitnaedance with section 3.3; a

() such further documentation relating to toenpletion of the transaction contemplated hereitha Purchaser or the Vendor
may reasonably requir

DELIVERY OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS BY PURCHASER.

On or before the Completion Date, the Purchadécause the Purchaser’s Solicitors to delivethite Vendor’s Solicitors the
following documents to be dealt with pursuant teidke 8:

(@) any documents contemplated by section 7.1 whichire@xecution or delivery by the Purchaser, exegtibly the Purchase
(b) the HST Certificate, executed by the Purchaser;

(c) such further documentation relating to¢hepletion of the transactions contemplated heaeithe Vendor may reasonably
require.

PREPARATION OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS.

Except for the Statement of Adjustments, whidlhbe prepared by the Vendor pursuant to sec8@®) the closing documents
contemplated in sections 7.1 and 7.2 will be pregpdry the Purchaser’s Solicitors, for approvalt®y ¥Yendor’s Solicitors, acting
reasonably, and delivered to the Vendor’s Solisitmy the Purchaser’s Solicitors at least two (23iBess Days prior to the
Completion Date. All documents referred to in satsi 7.1 and 7.2 will be in form and substance malsly satisfactory to the
solicitors for the party entitled to delivery thefe

ARTICLE 8
CLOSING PROCEDURE

PAYMENT IN TRUST.

On or before the Completion Date, the Purchadépay to the Purchaser’s Solicitors in trus¢ timount due to the Vendor pursuant
to subsection 2.3(c), as adjusted pursuant toase8tB, less the amount to be advanced to the Bseclon the Completion Date un
any mortgage financing arranged by the Purchi
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REGISTRATION .

Forthwith following the payment in section &ud after receipt by the Purchaser’s Solicitorthefdocuments referred to in section
7.1 and after receipt by the Vendor’s Solicitorshef documents referred to in section 7.2, the liager will cause the Purchaser’s
Solicitors to file in the LTO on the Completion [@ahe Transfer, the discharge of Notice of InteBM83815 and any security
documents applicable to any mortgage financingnged by the Purchaser in connection with the peelud the Purchased Prope

CLOSING.

Forthwith following the filings referred to section 8.2 and upon the Purchaser’s Solicitonsgosatisfied as to the title to the Lands
after conducting a post filing for registration chef the property index for the Lands disclosimdyche following:

(@) the existing title number to the Lan«

(b)  Permitted Encumbrance

(¢) pending numbers assigned to the instruments reféorin section 8.2; ar
(d) any other charges granted by the Purchaser aghsmkands

the Purchaser will cause the Purchas8olicitors, forthwith upon receipt by them of gr@ceeds of any mortgage financing arrar
by the Purchaser, to initiate a wire transfer,docadance with wire transfer instructions to bevped by the Vendor’s Solicitors on
the Completion Date for the aggregate of the Deosl the amount due to the Vendor pursuant toestibs 2.3(c), as adjusted
pursuant to section 3.3, and concurrently therethi¢hPurchaser’s Solicitors will be entitled toemede the documents referred to in
section 7.1 to the Purchaser, the Vendor's Sofiitall be entitled to release the documents reféto in section 7.2 to the Vendor
and the Purchaser’s Solicitors will be entitledand will be directed by the parties to) releasthPurchaser all interest earned on
the Deposit (unless such interest has been adjfmtet the Vendor's Statement of Adjustments, mal event the interest will be
paid to the Vendor

CONCURRENT REQUIREMENTS.

It is a condition of this Agreement that aljsérements of sections 8.1 to 8.3 are concurrentirements and it is specifically agreed
that nothing will be completed on the Completiortdantil everything required to be paid, executed delivered on the Completion
Date has been so paid, executed and deliveredraitdhe Purchaser’s Solicitors have satisfied thelves as to title pursuant to
section 8.3

DISCHARGE OF ENCUMBRANCES BY VENDOR.

If on the Completion Date there are any judgisidiens, claims of lien or any other financiahofpes against title to the Lands which
are not Permitted Encumbrances, the Vendor willogotequired to clear the title to the Lands priothe receipt of the net sales
proceeds of the Purchased Property, but will begat#d to do so forthwith following receipt of sucht sales proceeds and, in that
event, the Purchaser’s Solicitors will pay the sades proceeds to the Vendor’s Solicitors on thelition that the Vendos' Solicitors
undertake to hold such amount of the net salesspadxcin trust as is sufficient to secure the digghaf any such n-Permittec
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Encumbrances, and not to release such amount ¥ethdor until such charges have been so rele:

CLOSING DELIVERIES .

To the extent that the Vendor has not alreadiyered such items to the Purchaser and such iseenwithin the possession or control
of the Vendor, the Vendor will deliver to the Puaskr, within three (3) Business Days after the Qetigm Date, the items listed
below:

(@) originally executed copies of the Leases and afgutees, indemnities and covenants in respecdf:
(b) originally executed copies of the written Serviaen@acts assigned to the Purcha
(c) all keys and like devices for the Lands and theifggent which are in the possession or control ef\flendor;

(d) all files, manuals, plans and other relé\dltuments in the possession or control of theddepertaining to the Lands and
reasonably required by the Purchaser for the futandéinuous operation of the Lan:

(e) all instructions, manuals, plans and otltmuments associated with any of the Equipmenhpioéthe improvements on the
Lands which are in the possession or control oMéedor; anc

) to the extent they are in the Vendor’'s @ss$on or control, duplicates of the documentsredeto in subsections 4.1(b)
and (c).

ELECTION .

If on the Completion Date any of the represgona or warranties made by the Vendor is untruagniy material respect or the Vendor
is in default in a material way under any of theemmants and agreements to be observed or perfdmntiet Vendor under this
Agreement, the Purchaser may elect not to comgieteurchase of the Purchased Property hereundercomplete the purchase of
the Purchased Property hereunder, in either cabeuwtiprejudice to any rights or remedies the Pageh may have in respect of the
Vendor's breach or defaul

ARTICLE 9
MISCELLANEOUS
TIME .

Time will be of the essence of this Agreemart will remain of the essence notwithstanding tktersion of any of the dates
hereunder

No WAIVER.

No failure or delay on the part of either partyeiercising any right, power or privilege under tAgreement will operate as a wai\
thereof, nor will any single or partial exerciseanly right, power or privilege preclude any othefusther exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right, power or privilegecept as may be limited herein, either party maytsisole discretion, exercise any
and all rights, powers, remedies and recoursesad@ito it under thi
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Agreement or any other remedy available tmd such rights, powers, remedies and recoursesmayercised concurrently or
individually without the necessity of making angetion.

TENDER.

It is agreed that any tender of documents aneyanay be made upon the respective solicitorthwparties and that it will be
sufficient to tender a solicit’s certified trust cheque rather than ci

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisaf this Agreement, the parties agree that, iRhechaser is required |
applicable legislation to cause the adjusted PselRaice to be paid by electronic transfer, therRtirchaser will make all
commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that succhmount will be transferred to and receivedhgy\tendor’s Solicitors on or
before 3:00 p.m. (Vancouver time) on the Complebate. If for any reason out of the control of Berchaser (which, for greater
certainty, will not include any event which is daldt by the Purchaser under this Agreement), tretRaser cannot ensure that such
an amount will be received by the Vendor’s Soligton or before the time and date set out aboes, ttte Purchaser will be entitled
to pay such amount on or before 3:00 p.m. (Vancotivee) on the next Business Day following the Cdetipn Date so long as, in
addition to such amount, the Purchaser also patfet¥endor at the same time interest on such amatia rate equal to the Prime
Rate plus one percent (1%) per annum, for eacHrdayand including the Completion Date to but matluding the day such
payment is made.Prime Rate”, as used herein, means that variable annual rat¢éenést quoted by the main branch of Royal B
of Canada, Vancouver, British Columbia, from tiroditme as the rate of interest used by it as aeafe rate for setting rates of
interest on Canadian dollar loans in Canada repayabdemand and commonly referred to by such Baniks"prime rat”.

FEES AND EXPENSES.

Each party will pay its own legal fees. ThedPaser will be responsible for all registrationsfemd transfer taxes payable in
connection with the registration of the Transfed any mortgage security arranged by it and forld8{ payable in connection with
the Purchas’s acquisition of the Purchased Prope

HARMONIZED SALES TAX.

On or before the Completion Date, the Purchadéprovide the Vendor with a certificate (theHdST Certificate ") stating that the

Purchaser is registered with Canada Revenue Aganayy successor thereto for the purposes of ther&/provincial harmonized

sales tax (‘HST ") and setting out its HST registration number, fagilimhich the Purchaser will pay to the Vendor therHipplicable
to the purchase and sale of the Purchased Propeitye Completion Dati

COMMISSION .

Any commission or brokerage fees payable to EBB a maximum of $975,000, plus applicable HSill,lve paid by the Vendor
upon the due completion of the transactions conlategb herein. Any commissions or brokerage feesliplayto CBRE in excess of
$975,000, plus applicable HST, and any commissidirakerage fees payable to any other third pargny amount will be the sole
responsibility of the Purchaser. The Vendor conditimt it has not engaged any third party brokeoimection with the purchase
and sale of the Purchased Prope
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ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement and the agreements, instrunsmother documents entered into pursuant to thieément set forth the entire
agreement and understanding of the parties withetgo the subject matter hereof and supersegeiatlagreements and
understandings among the parties with respectetoniditters herein and there are no oral or writtgaeaments, promises, warranties,
terms, conditions, representations or collateret@gents whatsoever, express or implied, otherttih@se contained in this
Agreement

AMENDMENT .

This Agreement may be altered or amended only bggaeement in writing signed by the parties hel

FURTHER ASSURANCES

Each of the parties hereto will at all timesl &rom time to time and upon reasonable requesexiecute and deliver all further
assurances, acts and documents for the purposgdeheing and giving full force and effect to th@venants, agreements and
provisions in this Agreemer

No MERGER.

Except where specifically set out in this Agremt, none of the provisions of this Agreement wiirge in the transfer of the
Purchased Property or any other document delivenetie Completion Date, and the provisions of igseement will survive the
Completion Date

NoOTICES.

Any demand or notice which may be given purstathis Agreement will be in writing and delivergransmitted by facsimile or
electronic mail or sent by postage prepaid mail ashdfressed to the parties as follo

TO THE PURCHASER

lululemon athletica canada inc.
1818 Cornwall Avenue
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6J 1C7

Attention: Wynn Spencer

Fax No.:  (604) 87-6124
Email: wspencer@Iululemon.co




-28 -
with a copy to:

McCarthy Tétrault LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
1300 — 777 Dunsmuir Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
V7Y 1K2

Attention: Scott Smythe

Fax No.:  (604) 62:-5752
Email: ssmythe@mccarthy.c

TO THE VENDOR!

2725312 Canada Inc.

c/o Bentall Kennedy (Canada) LP
Suite 1800, Four Bentall Centre
1055 Dunsmuir Street

P.O. Box 49001

Vancouver, British Columbia
V7X 1B1

Attention: Chrystal Burns

Fax No.:  (604) 642805
Email: cburns@bentallkennedy.cc

with a copy to:

Stikeman Elliott LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
1700 — 666 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6C 2X8

Attention: Ross MacDonald

Fax No.:  (604) 63-1367
Email: rmacdonald@stikeman.co

or at such other address, fax number or electroait address as either party may specify in writmghe other. The time of giving
and receiving any such notice will be deemed torbéhe day of delivery or transmittal if deliveredsent by facsimile or electronic
mail (so long as such delivery or transmittal wasied out prior to 5:00 p.m. on a Business DaWinfawhich such notice will be
deemed to have been given and received on thesnegeeding Business Day), or on the third Busibessafter the day of mailing
thereof if sent by mail. In the event of any digiop of mail services, all notices will be delivdrer sent by facsimile or electronic
mail rather than mailed.
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ASSIGNMENT.

The Purchaser may assign its legal and beakfiterests in this Agreement to any other pefgaeiuding, but not limited to, a
corporation or partnership formed for such purpogejvided that any such legal or beneficial agsignt by the Purchaser will not
release the Purchaser from any of its obligatiarmdeuthis Agreement. For greater certainty, theRaser will also be entitled to
direct the Vendor to transfer legal and registeittzlto the Lands to a corporation acting as naaiand bare trustee on behalf of the
Purchaser

NoO PARTNERSHIP.

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to ¢eca partnership or joint venture between the gswtiith respect to the Purchas
Property or the transactions contemplated hereu

CONFIDENTIALITY .

Unless the sale and purchase of the Purchaspe®y contemplated by this Agreement is completeel parties will not disclose to
any third party the existence, contents or efféthis Agreement or any documents, materials armftion (including the results of
any due diligence tests, assessments or searaloegjqu pursuant to or obtained in relation to thigeement, (collectively, “
Confidential Information ") without the prior written consent of the othearty, except that each party may disclose the tarite
employees, inspectors, lenders, agents, advisomsuttants, potential investors and such othempsras may reasonably be required
and except that Confidential Information will natiude:

® information which is required by law, oryaregulatory disclosure requirements to be disdaseonnection with the
proposed sale and purchase of the Purchased Brc

(9) information which is known to the recipientis in the recipient’s possession prior to @saipt thereof from the other party
hereto;

(h) information which is obtained by a recigi&om a person or entity which is not, to the kiedge of the recipient, prohibited
from disclosing such information to the recipiegtdmny contractual, legal, or fiduciary obligatianthe other party heret

0] information which is or becomes publicly availatiieough no fault of the recipier

Until such time as the transaction contemplatethis Agreement is completed, the Vendor andPiliehaser also agree that neither
of them will issue any press or other publicityesde or communication to the general public coregnfe proposed purchase and
sale of the Purchased Property without the prigttevr approval of the other party, unless any disblosure is otherwise required
law.

COUNTERPARTS.

This Agreement may be executed in any numberigial counterparts, with the same effect aalithe parties had signed the same
document, and will become effective when one orercmunterparts have been signed by all of thegsaatnd delivered to each of 1
other parties. All counterparts will be construegdther and evidence only one agreement, whichbwileemed to be dated the
reference date set out abo
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9.16 BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of andbireding upon the successors and assigns of thiegaats applicable

9.17 EXEcuTION BY ELECTRONIC MEANS.

This Agreement may be executed by the partidg@nsmitted by facsimile or other electronic neand if so executed and
transmitted this Agreement will be for all purpossseffective as if the parties had delivered ateted original Agreemer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement on the @@y of December, 2010.

LULULEMON ATHLETICA CANADA INC.

By: /s/ John Currie
Authorized Signatory

2725312 CANADA INC.

By: /s/ Chrystal Burns
Authorized Signatory

By: /s/ John Purcell
Authorized Signatory




SCHEDULE A
LANDS AND PERMITTED ENCUMBRANCES

Lands

Parcel Identifier 007-095-333
Lot A

Block 197

District Lot 526

Plan 18728

Permitted Encumbrances

The Lands are subject to the following Permittedunbrances:
Legal Notations
None.

Charges, Liens and Interests

(@  Indemnity Agreement 20400\

(b)  Easement and Indemnity Agreement H43¢
(c) Easement and Indemnity Agreement J50«
(d)  Easement and Indemnity Agreement J67¢
(e) Easement and Indemnity Agreement K44z
U Lease BF25195(

(g) Lease BF26370;

(h) Lease BM231324

0] Lease BT176245; ar

0] Lease BV38972(




SCHEDULE B

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

TO: .
AND TO: -
AND TO:
RE: The lease between the “I(andlord ") and the undersigned, as tenant dated

(t* Lease”) of certain premises (thePremises”) described in the Lease which Premises are
located in the Kvaerner Chemetics Building, VanaBritish Columbia (th* Property ")

We understand that « will be purchasing the Prypend that ¢ has requested certain informatimmcerning the Lease. In connection with
this request and knowing that you and your respediiccessors and assigns intend to rely on thiffiCate, we certify to you and to any
other person referred to above that:

1. The Lease has been validly executed and detiviey the undersigned, the undersigned has unimmally accepted the possession of
the Premises except as set out in item 4 of thesNlserein and the undersigned is in possessidred?itemises

2. The Lease contains the entire and only agreebetween the undersigned and the Landlord péntaio the undersigned’s occupation
of the Premises. The Lease has not been alteremhded or assigned by the undersigned nor has aflyopart of the Premises been
sublet by the undersigned except as set out inltefithe Notes hereil

3. The rent payable pursuant to the Lease hasmd through the period ending ,201 . Norentis
prepaid to the Landlord except for the current tmntent nor has the undersigned deposited anyisgwith the Landlord except as
set out in item 2 of the Notes here

4, The undersigned is not claiming any deductidmatement or set-off against the Landlord witlpeesto the undersigned’s obligations
to pay rent and additional rent pursuant to theskeaxcept as set out in item 4 of the Notes he

5. The term of the Lease will end on . There is no right to renew or extendeha except as set out in item 3 of
the Notes herein. The monthly minimum rental is . The monthly additional rent (being chdrige operating costs and
realty taxes), exclusive of harmonized sales &présently . The monthly minimumtateand the monthly
additional rent are calculated on the basis ttat@hsable area of the Premises has been accepteihg square

6. The Premises conform to the Landl's obligations under the Lea:

7. There is no existing default under the Leaséhe part of the undersigned or, so far as thersighed is aware, on the part of the

Landlord.
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8. The undersigned does not have any right sf fefusal or option either to purchase the Prgpartease any space in the Property
except as set out in item 5 of the Notes hel

9. The undersigned has no claims against the Landiio@hcial or otherwise, except as set out in iteof the Notes hereil

NOTES:

10. Sublet:

11.  Security Deposit:

12. Renewals:

13. Claims:

14. Other Matters:

DATED the day of 1,20

(Tenant)

By:
Authorized Signing Officer




AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated for reference February 11, 2011.

BETWEEN :
2725312 CANADA INC.
(the* Vendor ")

AND :

LULULEMON ATHLETICA CANADA INC.
(the" Purchaser”)

WHEREAS :

A. By apurchase and sale agreement dated fererte December 22, 2010 between the Vendor arfeutithaser (the Purchase
Agreement”), the Vendor agreed to sell and the Purchase¥eabto purchase, among other things, the landpr@mdises located at
1818 Cornwall Avenue, Vancouver, British Columbialdegally described as Parcel Identifier: 007-@33; Lot A, Block 197, District
Lot 526, Plan 18728, on the terms and conditioh®sein the Purchase Agreement; ¢

B. The parties have agreed to amend the PurchaserAgneén accordance with the terms of this Agreemnr

THEREFORE in consideration of $1.00 now paid by each parttheoother and other good and valuable consideratie receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged byheaicthe parties, the parties agree as follows:

1.

Amendments. The Vendor and the Purchaser agree that, efeeawof the date of this Agreement, the Purchaseehgent is amended
as follows:

(@) by deleting subsection 1.1(d) and replacing it itk following:
“(d) “ Completion Date” means March 1, 201"; and
(b) by deleting subsection 3.3(a) and replacing it i following:

“(a) Adjustment Date Adjustments for the Purchased Property will belenas of the Completion Date and the payment due
pursuant to subsection 2.3(c) will be adjusted atingly. Except as otherwise provided in this Agneat, the Vendor will
be responsible for all expenses and will be eutitteall revenues accrued with respect to the Riseth Property for the
period ending at 11:59:59 p.m. on the day befoeelbmpletion Date and, for the period from andraf#200:01 a.m. on the
Completion Date, the Purchaser will be respondiall expenses and will be entitled to all revesaccrued with respect
the Purchased Proper”.




Construction . The parties agree that this Agreement will, fittie date hereof, be read and construed togethlethgtPurchase
Agreement and be treated as part thereof, anduteh&e Agreement, as amended by this Agreemdhtontinue in full force and
effect in accordance with the terms thereof anédie

Conflict . In case of any conflict between the terms andlitimms of the Purchase Agreement and the ternesiditions of this
Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agregmall prevail.

Further Assurances. Each of the parties hereto will at all times #&mn time to time and upon reasonable request xkxde and
deliver all further assurances, acts and docunfentke purpose of evidencing and giving full fomred effect to all the provisions in
this Agreement

Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in any numberiginal counterparts, with the same effect aslifteg parties had
signed the same document, and will become effegtiven one or more counterparts have been signadl the parties and delivered to
each of the other parties. All counterparts willdo&strued together and evidence only one agreenteah, notwithstanding the dates
of execution of any counterparts, will be deemebdalated the date first above writt

Execution by Electronic Means. This Agreement may be executed by the partiedalidered by fax or other electronic means and if
so executed and delivered this Agreement will beaflopurposes as effective as if the parties haateted and delivered an executed
original of this Agreemen

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreementtthe date first above written.

2725312 CANADA INC. LULULEMON ATHLETICA CANADA INC.
By: /s/ Chrystal Burn By: /s/ David Negu:

Authorized Signator Authorized Signator
By: /s/ John Purce By: /s/ John Currit

Authorized Signator Authorized Signator



Exhibit 21.1

lululemon athletica inc.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Listed below are the subsidiaries of lululemonetibh inc. as of January 30, 2011. The list indisdahe
respective jurisdiction of incorporation or orgaatinn of each entity.

NEVADA
lululemon usa inc.
Lululemon FC USA, Inc.

ALBERTA
Lululemon Callco ULC

BRITISH COLUMBIA

Lulu Canadian Holding Inc.
lululemon athletica canada inc.
0902600 B.C. Ltd.

VICTORIA
lululemon athletica australia holdings Pty Ltd.
lululemon australia Pty Ltd.

NEW ZEALAND
lululemon athletica new zealand limited

HONG KONG
Lululemon Hong Kong Limitet



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B8378 and No. 333-145453),
Form S-3ASR (No. 333-152701 as subsequently amemgedoost-effective amendment on Form S-3 filedvianch 30, 2009) and Form S-
3ASR (No. 333-167985) of lululemon athletica intoar report relating to the consolidated finansi@tements and on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting dated etal6, 2011, which appears in the Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Vancouver, British Columbia

March 16, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

I, Christine M. Day, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKululemon athletica inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal ctatreer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyévide reasonable assurances regarding the faljaddi
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegsegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

By: /s/ CHRISTINE M. DAY
Christine M. Day
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 16, 201



Exhibit 31.2

[, John E. Currie, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKululemon athletica inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal ctatreer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyévide reasonable assurances regarding the faljaddi
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegsegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

By: /s/ JoHN E. CURRIE
John E. Currie
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 16, 201



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of lululemdhlatica inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tfiscal
year ended January 30, 2011, as filed with the i@@=iand Exchange Commission on the date hetke
“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of @@mpany certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135@dapted
pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2884, to such officer’'s knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exgjean
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition
and results of operations of the Company.

Is/  GHRISTINE M. DAY

Christine M. Day
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: March 16, 2011

Is/ bHN E. QURRIE

John E. Currie
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and is not beilggifas part
of the Report or as a separate disclosure docul



